Public Document Pa Horsham

| N District
Email: committeeservices@horsham.gov.uk .
Direct line: 01403 215465 Cou nC||

Extraordinary Council Meeting

Monday, 22nd May, 2017 at 6.00 pm
Conference Room, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham

To: All Members of the Council

(Please note that prayers will be taken by Father David Bouskill, Vicar of Holy Trinity, Horsham before
the meeting commences)

You are summoned to the meeting to transact the following business
Tom Crowley
Chief Executive

Agenda
1
Page No.
1. Apologies for absence
2. Declarations of Members' Interests
To receive any declarations of interest from Members
3. Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Council, the Leader,
Members of the Cabinet or the Chief Executive
4. Planning Application DC/16/1677 - Land North of Horsham 3-104

Wards: Holbrook West, Rusper & Colgate, Holbrook East
Applicant: Mr Derek Lloyd, Liberty Property Trust

To consider the planning application referred to Council by Planning Committee
(North) at its meeting on 28™ April 2017

Please note: Public speaking on this item is limited to those who attended and spoke at the
Planning Committee (North) on 28th April 2017

5. Urgent Business
To consider matters certified by the Chairman as urgent

Horsham District Council, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1RL
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded) Horsham.gov.uk Chief Executive — Tom Crowley



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Report to Council Horsham
22 May 2017 District
By Director of Planning, Economic Development and Council
Property

DECISION REQUIRED

Not Exempt

Planning Application DC/16/1677 — Land North of Horsham

Executive Summary

An outline planning application with all matters reserved except access was submitted on
4t August 2016. This is a mixed use strategic development to include housing (up to 2,750
dwellings), business park (up to 46,450 m2), retail, community centre, leisure facilities,
education facilities, public open space, landscaping and related infrastructure.

This report informs Members of the assessment and the recommendation of officers,
addresses questions raised at the North Committee on 28" April 2017 and provides other
relevant updates. (See attached Appendices 1, 2 and 3.)

Recommendation
The Council is recommended:

i) to delegate the application for approval to the Director of Planning, Economic
Development and Property, in consultation with the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of
the Planning Committee (North) and the Planning Committee (South) and the
Cabinet Member for Planning & Development, subject to a Legal Agreement to
secure the details as set out in the Heads of Terms attached to Appendix 1 and
appropriate conditions. Both the Legal Agreement and planning conditions may be
added to, removed or varied.

Reasons for Recommendations

i) It is recommended that the application be delegated for approval as the proposal
would bring forward the development of a strategic site allocated for a mixed use
development within the adopted Horsham District Planning Framework. The
development of Land North of Horsham will provide an important component of the
District’s housing delivery over the current plan period, up to 2031.

ii) It is recommended to delegate the approval to the Director of Planning, Economic
Development and Property, in consultation with the Members set out above, in
order that the detail and clauses of the necessary Legal Agreement can be finalised
and all necessary conditions be imposed.

Page 3



Background Papers
Appendix 1 - Committee Report to Planning Committee (North) 28" April 2017

Appendix 2 - Addendum to Committee Report to Planning Committee (North) dated 28"
April 2017 (Addendum A)

Appendix 3 — New addendum to Committee Report (Addendum B) dated 22" May 2017
Appendix 4 — Letter from Liberty Property Trust dated 9t May 2017

Wards affected: Holbrook East, Holbrook West, Roffey North, Rusper and
Colgate are directly affected. All other wards are affected to some degree.

Contact: Helen Lowe, Principal Planning Officer — 01403 215346

Page 4



Background Information

1

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.2

4.1

Introduction and Background

The District’s housing provision targets require 16,000 homes to be developed over
the period of the Horsham District Planning Framework (i.e. up to 2031), with this
amounting to an average of 800 homes per year. The Land North of Horsham site
forms an integral element of this housing delivery and further delay or refusal of
permission could jeopardise this required level of delivery.

Should permission be withheld this would delay the commencement of works on
site and therefore the delivery of both new homes and community facilities,
including the schools, for which there is a current existing need. A delay in the
commencement of development on this allocated site could adversely impact upon
the Council’s ability to provide a rolling 5 year supply of deliverable housing land.
Should a 5 year supply of housing land not be demonstrable, the housing supply
policies of the HDPF could be considered to be out-of-date and the Council would
struggle to resist ad-hoc applications for housing and unsustainable patterns of
development.

Relevant Council policy

The development of the strategically allocated Land North of Horsham site will
meet, and assist in meeting, objectives of the Corporate Plan 2016-2019. The
approval of the application will ensure delivery of the new community and business
park at North Horsham, together with its necessary infrastructure and services, a
key environment priority.

The approval of the proposal would also assist in delivering housing to meet local
needs, a community priority, and promote the district as a first choice business
destination, an economy priority.

Details

The application for Land North of Horsham (referenced DC/16/1677) was reported
to a special Planning Committee (North) on Friday 28t April 2017 with an Officer
recommendation to delegate authority for approval subject to a legal agreement and
conditions. The applicant, their agent, representatives of three Parish Councils and
members of the public addressed the Committee. Members discussed the proposed
development and form of the application in detail.

In accordance with part 4a.27(d) of the Constitution (Motions without Notice —
referral of something to another body), Members decided to refer the application to
Council for decision.

Next Steps

Should the application be delegated for approval, the next steps will be to progress
and complete the necessary Legal Agreement to secure all the community benefits
and infrastructure improvements required as a result of the development, and to

Page 5



5.1

6.1

10
10.1

finalise the detail of planning conditions to be imposed upon the approval to control
the development. These discussions are likely to last several months but once
finalised, the Director of Planning, Economic Development & Property will check
that the Members listed are happy that the details meet the objectives agreed by
Council. Those Members are the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Planning
Committee (North) and the Planning Committee (South) and the Cabinet Member
for Planning & Development.

Outcome of Consultations

The responses received from all consultees and members of the public are
summarised within the report attached at Appendix 1 and the addendums attached
at Appendices 2 and 3.

Legal Issues

Separate confidential legal advice addressing the potential consequences of an
appeal against the refusal of this application or failure to determine the case will be
provided to Members prior the meeting.

Other Considerations
Consideration of crime and disorder, equality and diversity and Human Rights form
part of the overall consideration of the application within the report attached at

Appendix 1. Sustainability is a fundamental consideration within the planning
process and therefore, again this is considered fully within the report at Appendix 1.

Page 6



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Horsham
District
Council

PLANNING COMMITTEE
REPORT

TO: Planning Committee North
BY: Head of Development
DATE: 28" April 2017

Outline planning application with all matters reserved except access for a
mixed use strategic development to include housing (up to 2,750

DEVELOPMENT: dwellings), business park (up to 46,450 m2), retail, community centre,
leisure facilities, education facilities, public open space, landscaping and
related infrastructure

SITE: Land North of Horsham Horsham West Sussex
WARD: Holbrook West, Rusper and Colgate, Holbrook East
APPLICATION: DC/16/1677

APPLICANT: Mr Derek Lloyd, Liberty Property Trust

REASON FOR INCLUSION ON THE AGENDA: More than 8 letters of representation contrary
to the Officers’ recommendation have been
received

RECOMMENDATION: To delegate the application for approval to the Director of Planning,
Economic Development and Property, in consultation with the Chair and
Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee (North) subject to a Legal
Agreement to secure the details as set out in the attached Heads of
Terms and appropriate conditions. Both the Legal Agreement and
planning conditions may be added to, removed or varied.

1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
To consider the planning application.
DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICATION

1.1 This application seeks outline planning permission, with all matters reserved except for
access, for the creation of a mixed use strategic development to include housing, a
business park, retail, community facilities, leisure facilities, education facilities, public open
space, landscaping and related infrastructure.

1.2 The application site is generally in accordance with the strategic site allocated for a mixed
use development in the adopted Horsham District Planning Framework (November 2015)
as set out in Policy SD1.

1.3 The development proposed includes:

e Upto 2750 homes, with a mix of house types and tenures,

Page 7
Contact Officer: Helen Lowe Tel: 01403 215187



1.4

15

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

46,450 sgm business park;

Two primary schools;

Site for and contributions to a new secondary school

Provision for special educational needs;

‘Early years * provision;

Local centres and community facilities;

Retail provision of 4,900 sgm sales floorspace together with other appropriate local
shopping facilities,

Multi use community centre;

Land safeguarded for a parkway railway station on the Crawley/Horsham line and
associated uses including car parking;

Open space including a nature park, sport and recreation facilities and allotments;
Landscape buffers;

A cemetery;

Commercial leisure facilities of up to 5,100 sgm;

Local transport infrastructure to include delivery of and /or contributions towards highway
improvements, comprising:

Closure of Langhurstwood Road with associated left in/left out junction onto the A264
and re-alignment of Langhurstwood Road to the East with a new signalised
roundabout on the A264;

Upgrade and enlargement of the Rusper Road roundabout to a signalised roundabout;
A new left in/left out junction from the A264 into the development east of Rusper
Road;

A new roundabout on Rusper Road;

A new roundabout on Langhurstwood Road;

A new cross road junction on Old Holbrook to facilitate the crossing of it by the
development’s spine road;

A new emergency access on Wimland Road including access for pedestrians and
cyclists;

Priority access for buses only to/from Pondtail Drave;

New pedestrian and cycle crossing points on the A264; and

A number of off-site highway improvements.

Parameter plans, statements and drawings, as amended by submission of further
information and documents include those set out below:

Design and Access Statement

Addendum to the Statement of Community Involvement

Housing Statement and Viability Assessment

Open Space Statement

Retail Impact Assessment

Draft Section 106 Heads of Terms

DWG 2153A-01L ‘Red Line’ on OS base

DWG 2153A-04P Comparative red line with Land North Of Horsham Concept
Masterplan Map contained in Appendix 2 of the adopted Horsham District Planning
Framework

DWG2153A Land Use Parameter Plan

Page 8



1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

e DWG 2153A-101M Density Parameter Plan

e DWG 2153A-102N Building Heights Parameter Plan

e DWG 215A-103P Movement & Access Parameter Plan
e DWG2153A-105M Green Infrastructure Parameter Plan
o DWG 2153A-150S lllustrative Masterplan

In addition the application as submitted and amended falls to be determined under
Regulation 10(b) of the Town and Country planning (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 2011 Schedule 2 which requires an EIA to be submitted. The applicants have
submitted an EIA.

The application was amended, as stated above, on 6™ March 2017 following its initial
submission in August 2016. The revised scheme comprises revisions to the red line to omit
from the development site private dwellings situated on the eastern side of the site which
fall outside the control of the applicant, and to reflect existing ownership boundaries and
highway land associated with the application. Other revisions to the red line include the
exclusion of Ancient Woodland not proposed for development in the North West of the site
near Morris’s farm; other drawings which feature the ‘red line’ were also revised to ensure
consistency.

Revised ecology reports were submitted as part of these additional details, utilising further

survey information for invertebrates, breeding birds territory mapping, ecological mitigation
and management plan, together with information and justification relating to the illustrative

layout showing internal roads within the development running through two areas of ancient
woodland, in the eastern part of the site adjacent to Bush Lane, and in the west adjacent to
Morris Farm.

In addition the amended details contains additional information within the transport
assessment requested by the Highway Authority to assist their consideration of the
application. Finally additional information has been submitted relating to climate change
and an emissions assessment technical note.

Based on the indicative mix of proposed units at this stage, the development would provide
the following in terms of residential units:

Market Housing

e 39 No. 1 bed apartments
e 97 No. 2 bed apartments
e 230 No. 2 bed houses

e 731 No. 3 bed houses

e 731 No. 4 bed houses

e 97 No. 5 bed houses

Housing for Local Needs

e 169 No. 1 bed apartments
e 251 No. 2 bed apartments
e 239 No. 2 bed houses

e 8 No. 3 bed apartments

e 100 No. 3 bed houses

e 51 No. 4 bed houses

e 7 No. 5 bed houses

Page 9



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

1.11 The application proposes a total of 2,750 dwellings, of which 825 are defined by the
applicants as housing for local need (30%), with market housing comprising some 1,925
dwellings (70%).

1.12 The application also includes contributions towards upgrading existing parts of the road
network outside the application site. These are:

e Great Daux roundabout — additional circulatory lane added,;

e Moorhead roundabout — signalisation and additional circulatory lanes and additional
lanes on approaches;

¢ Bewbush Manor roundabout — additional lanes on approaches and additional
circulatory lanes;

e Hop Oast roundabout — additional lanes on approaches;

¢ Roffey Corner signalised crossroads — signal staging amendments;

¢ Rusper Road/Lemmington Way roundabout — flare length increases and pedestrian
refuge islands;

¢ Rusper Road/Crawley Road roundabout — flare length increases;

¢ Kings Road/Harwood junction — signal timing adjustments;

e M23 Junction 11 — alterations to left filter lane from A23 northbound off-slip to
signalised lane and flare length increase on A264 approach.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE

1.13 The application site comprises some 249.6 hectares of land situated north of the A264
between Langhurstwood Road and Wimland Road. The site is adjacent to the northern
boundary of Horsham with the edge of the suburban area of Crawley lying some two miles
to the north east.

1.14 The site comprises a number of fields in arable and pasture use, as well as several small
copses and woodland, including three areas designated as ancient woodland comprising
six separate land parcels, one situated towards the south east of the site adjoining Bush
Lane, known as Bush Copse and a further area adjoining Morris’ farm in the north west
(Morris Wood).

1.15 A further area of ancient woodland is excluded from the site edged red and is situated to
the southwest of Morris’ Farm complex (Holbrook Plantation).

1.16 The majority of the site (155.4 Ha) is Class 3b Agricultural Land, which is not the highest
value agricultural land. This land typically comprises topsoil of predominantly medium or
heavy silty clay loam, the subsoil comprising silty clay with instances of heavy silt clay
loam. Approximately 9.1 Ha of the site is Class 3a Agricultural Land which is of higher
value and is located to the south east of the site, distributed in various land parcels.

1.17 The remainder of the site is in non-agricultural use, comprising woodland, watercourses,
domestic curtilages, highway land and employment sites.

1.18 The majority of the site slopes from north to south, and to the north a ridge of high ground
containing mature woodland forms a strong northern boundary. The site is also contained
within clearly defined boundaries on its eastern and southern borders, by roads, mature
hedgerows and trees. The A264 forms a well-defined boundary to the south. The site is
lower in the middle than at the edges and is well screened with mature trees.

1.19 Watercourses known as Chennells Brook and Horseheads Gill runs east to southwest
through the eastern area of the site which flows into the River Arun to the west of Horsham.

Page 10



1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

2.1

2.2

2.3

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

The site contains two designated heritage assets, a Scheduled Monument, Homestead
Moat, 200m west of Graylands Copse and a Grade Il listed building (The Moated House).
There are also two historic parkscapes within the site boundary, Greylands and Holbrook
Park.

Adjacent to the site are other heritage assets including a number of Grade Il Listed
Buildings, historic parkscape and two Scheduled Monuments.

The site contains four Sites of Archaeological Importance (SAl)/Archaeologically Sensitive
Areas (ASA)/Archaeological Notification Areas (ANA) which are all local designations:

o A rectangular area within the fields west of ‘The Castle’ scheduled monument
associated with a pre-historic findspot;

o Area around the Moated site west of Graylands Copse;

. Area around The Moated House;

o An alleged moat at Bush Lane.

Vehicular access to the site is currently via Wimlands Road, the Rusper Road roundabout
on the A264, and from the A264 onto Old Holbrook and Langhurstwood Road.

There are also two Public Rights of Way (PROW) that cross the A264 in the vicinity of the
site as well as other routes through the site namely a bridleway at Bush Lane running east
to west through the site (which continues as a footpath to Old Holbrook Road), a footpath
to the west of the site north of the A264/Langhurstwood Road junction running north and
the Horsham and Crawley cycle route running through the site and across the A264 at
Rusper Road.

INTRODUCTION

STATUTORY BACKGROUND

The Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

The following Policies are considered to be the main policies relevant to the assessment of
this application:

National Planning Policy Framework (2012) (NPPF)

. Achieving sustainable development

. Section 4: Promoting sustainable transport

. Section 6: Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

. Section 7: Requiring good design

. Section 8: Promoting healthy communities

o Section 10: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
° Section 11: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

. Section 12: conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Page 11



24

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework (2012)
Horsham District Planning Framework (2015) (HDPF)

e Policy 1 - Strategic Policy: Sustainable Development

e Policy 2 - Strategic Policy: Strategic Development

e Policy 4 - Strategic Policy: Settlement Expansion

o Policy 7 - Strategic Policy: Economic Growth

e Policy 12 - Strategic Policy: Vitality and Viability of Existing Retail Centres

e Policy 15 - Strategic Policy: Housing Provision

o Policy 16 - Strategic Policy: Meeting Local Housing Needs

o Policy SD1 - Strategic Policy: Land North Of Horsham

e Policy SD2 - Employment and Business Opportunities

e Policy SD3 - Local Centre

e Policy SD4 - Housing Needs

o Policy SD5 - Open Space, Sport and Recreation

o Policy SD6 - Landscape Buffer, Landscape Character, Biodiversity and Green
Infrastructure

e Policy SD7 - Design

e Policy SD8 - Education

o Policy SD9 - Transport Infrastructure

e Policy 24 - Strategic Policy: Environmental Protection

e Policy 25 - Strategic Policy: The Natural Environment and Landscape Character

o Policy 27 - Strategic Policy: Settlement Coalescence

e Policy 31 - Green Infrastructure and Biodiversity

e Policy 32 - Strategic Policy: The Quality of New Development

o Policy 33 - Development Principles

o Policy 34 - Cultural and Heritage Assets

e Policy 35 - Strategic Policy: Climate Change

o Policy 36 - Strategic Policy: Appropriate Energy Use

e Policy 37 - Sustainable Construction

e Policy 38 - Strategic Policy: Flooding

e Policy 39 - Strategic Policy: Infrastructure Provision

e Policy 40 - Sustainable Transport

e Policy 43 - Community Facilities, Leisure and Recreation

e Appendix 2 : Site Plans, Land North of Horsham

RELEVANT NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

Within the application site, Rusper Parish has been designated as a Neighbourhood Plan
area and North Horsham Parish have recently applied for designation, which is currently

out for consultation.
PLANNING HISTORY AND RELEVANT APPLICATIONS

There are a number of domestic and commercial applications relating to the existing

buildings within the site. The scale of these applications renders them not relevant to this

planning application.

Page 12



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

A five year woodland management strategy (precautionary TPO) was served during the
pre-application process of the application on areas within the designated ancient
woodlands (Ref DC/15/2617) dated 23/2/16.

OUTCOME OF CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

3.1 HDC Air Quality e

3.2 HDC .
Archaeology
[ ]
[}
[ ]
[}
[ ]
[ J
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ )
[ ]
[ )
[ ]
[ ]
[ )
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
3.3 HDC .

To be reported in Addendum or verbally at Committee

The Archaeology DBA is a competent and professional document
in line with the necessary industry standards.

Notwithstanding this, lack of reference to non-intrusive fieldwork
other than a recommendation for further mitigation.

Following communication with the report author, a geophysical
survey and fieldwalking were undertaken.

Lack of correlation between the two therefore, further work
necessary.

Conclusions and recommendations within the DBA for further
works are reasonable and are supported.

Preservation of significant remains in situ may be required.
Public dissemination of this the information gathered should be
included in the mitigation proposals.

A strong case must be made for removal of historic hedgerows.
The final layout will be heavily influenced by the archaeological
evaluation therefore early commissioning of archaeological works
is recommended.

Concur with comments made by Historic England on Scheduled
Monuments and Historic Landscape Character.

Further geophysical surveys and fieldwalking should be carried
out to enhance understanding of the site. The results will guide
test pit and trench arrays for archaeological field evaluation.
Applicant engagement with Historic England is necessary to
address their concerns.

Buffers around designated assets during construction should be
agreed with the LPA.

The historic landscape character should be protected by the
retention of ancient woodland and historic hedges. Unavoidable
removal must be mitigated by archaeological survey work.

A Conservation Management Plan for the scheduled moated site
must be prepared.

Further consideration to the setting of designated heritage assets
necessary.

A public information strategy relating to archaeological and
cultural heritage should be developed including interpretation and
potential inclusion in the new education facility.

Supplementary response received relating to an objection to the
proposal made by CPRE made on archaeological matters.
Concur with the CPRE recommendation that LIDAR should be
used for archaeological remote sensing, the assessment
regarding potential for Romano-British activity and the opinion
about the absence of the number of relevant sites from the
Baseline data.

No overall objection to the proposal.

Page 13



Community and
Culture

3.4 HDC
Conservation

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

The proposed provision of leisure, open space and community
facilities appears to accord with HDPF policies and the concept
Master Plan and is therefore broadly acceptable at this stage,
subject to appropriate controls being imposed to ensure timely
delivery and suitable siting and specifications. These will need to
be considered at the detailed design stage.

There is concern that the proposed NEAPs and open access ball
courts are to be sited close to residential properties. Sufficient
space will need to be provided at the detailed stage to ensure
that the necessary buffer areas for these facilities can be
incorporated.

The applicants indicate the provision of a BMX track as part of
the youth activity facilities, however, this should be substituted for
a mountain bike trail. Such a facility would support the objectives
of the WSCC Walking and Cycling Strategy 2016-2026 and
follows consultations with the WSCC Cycle Training Officer and a
local amenity group.

The proposed quantum of development within the setting of
scheduled monuments, listed buildings and within the historic
landscape would change the rural character of the surrounding
area.

The surrounding countryside is characterised by its open field-
scape, hedgerows, ancient woodland, historic parklands and
sporadically sited vernacular buildings.

Heritage assets within and adjoining the application site include
the following Grade Il listed buildings: Holbrook Park, Hollywick
Farmhouse, The Moat House, Hawkebourne Farmhouse, Brook
House and the barn to Brook House, and King’s Farmhouse.
Three scheduled monuments lie within or immediately adjacent to
the application site boundary: the Castle Moated Site, the Moated
Site west of Graylands Copse and the Motte and Bailey Castle at
Chennells Brook Farm.

The provision of a conservation management plan for the
Graylands Copse scheduled monument is welcomed, as are the
interpretation panels for the scheduled monuments, in
accordance with paragraph 137 of the NPPF.

It is considered that the proposed development would cause ‘less
than substantial harm’ to the setting of the heritage assets (NPPF
paragraph 134); but this ‘should be weighed against the public
benefits of the proposal.’

As it is an outline planning application, details such as the scale,
design, form and orientation of the proposed buildings are not
available. Therefore, the relationship between the proposed new
build and the setting of the heritage assets cannot be assessed.
Consequently, an informed judgement cannot be made regarding
the level of harm to the heritage assets or the amount of
mitigation measures required.

A detailed survey is required to be submitted at the Reserved
Matters stage of the heritage assets and their settings and the
contribution the settings makes to the significance of the assets;
together with the significant views within and out of the site and
the inter-visibility between the site and the heritage assets.

The Reserved Matters application(s) should also include the
provision of landscape buffers to mitigate the visual impact of the
proposed development on the heritage assets. Areas of open

Page 14



3.5 HDC Drainage

3.6 HDC Ecologist

3.7

HDC Housing

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

landscape should be maintained to preserve the open rural
environment in which the heritage assets are sited.

No objection

Until detailed design information has been submitted at the
Reserved Matters stage, suitable drainage conditions should be
applied that also include securing the implementation and
maintenance of the Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)
features to ensure they remain effective for the lifetime of the
development.

An options appraisal to show routes considered for the eastern
and western links through the ancient woodland has now been
submitted.

Following a site visit on 8" March 2017 it has been determined
that the western link through ancient woodland follows an existing
road through the woods and will only require limited widening,
some of which would include areas of Japanese Knotweed to be
treated and removed. This road link should be constructed using
no-dig methods and lighting should be avoided. If a footpath is
required, positioning this adjacent to the road is likely to have
least impact upon the woodland.

The proposed eastern route through Bush Copse would result in
885 sgm of plantation on ancient woodland site and 135 sgm of
ancient semi-natural woodland. The options appraisal does not
appear to illustrate that there are no acceptable alternatives to
this route and as such the impacts to the ancient woodland are
not outweighed.

The proposed development would impact upon the European
Protected Species of great crested newts, bats and dormice and
therefore, in order for the development to be acceptable, and able
to obtain a European Protected Species licence from Natural
England, the three tests of Regulation 53 of the Habitats
Regulations, will need to be met.

Additional information has been submitted relating to Barbastrelle
bats. This shows that there is sufficient flexibility in the
masterplan to provide suitable buffers, appropriate lighting and
dark corridors. These will ensure the continued functionality of the
site for this species.

Further bat activity survey information relating to the use of the
site is required. This is being undertaken and these results will
need to inform any appropriate mitigation as required.
Recommends conditions

This site is key to delivering homes to those in housing need and
on the Horsham District Council's Housing Register.

The level of affordable housing provision proposed falls short of
the 35% policy requirement. However, it is acknowledged that the
applicant has submitted viability information to justify this position.
Given the independent review of the applicant’s viability situation
and the difficulties for registered providers of securing funding
arrangements, it is accepted that the proposal accords with Policy
16.

The application includes 825 units of local needs housing, of
which 350 would be affordable rented units and 145 shared
ownership units.

Page 15



3.8

3.9

3.10

HDC o
Landscape
Architect

HDC Public
Health and
Licensing o

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

The remaining units would be discount marker units, private
rented units and custom/self-build units. These do not assist in
removing people from the Housing Register.

The Housing White Paper is consulting on widening the definition
of affordable housing to include a similar range of tenures and it
is accepted that these forms of tenure would provide a range of
accommodation to suit the population of the District, but not those
in greatest housing need.

The applicant is encouraged to reach agreement with an
affordable housing provider as soon as possible, in order that
funding arrangements can be secured.

The principle of development has been established through the
strategic allocation, and harm to the landscape character and
visual amenity is inevitable and expected.

The applicant has made efforts to provide a landscape led
approach to the masterplan through retention of most green
infrastructure and wildlife corridors.

However, further alternative routes to the eastern link need to be
considered given the ancient woodland status.

The Green Infrastructure parameter plan does not show two
sections of Historic Hedgerow (HH155 and HH150), this should
be amended to show their retention.

There is some concern that green links and tree avenues are not
represented within the parameter plans. Also, the Highways
Authority may raise issue with attenuation ponds sited within
roundabouts.

Concern that the density to the Village Green and building
Heights adjacent to the Moathouse, would impact upon heritage
assets.

Implementation of the strategic landscape buffer and key open
spaces needs to be considered. The landscape buffer should be
delivered early to mitigate construction works, including for road
infrastructure. The design of large open spaces should be
considered as one rather than being broken into sections.
Detailed planting plans showing the attenuation pond and
including semi-mature tree and hedgerow planting will be
required to mitigate the impacts of footways and the bridge.
Details of planting and landscaping works for the roundabouts
should be provided.

The landscape principles and mitigation measures outlined in the
LVIA are considered appropriate and reserved matters should
carry these forward.

Recommends conditions

Initial concerns and queries with regard to land contamination,
noise and air quality were raised with the applicant.

These have been largely addressed through the additional
information submitted.

No overall objections subject to conditions.

OUTSIDE AGENCIES

British Horse .
Society

Wimland Road and Bush Lane Bridleway (1585) are well used as
part of circular routes for riding and exercising horses.
A new east — west, multi use route with bridleway status would

Page 16



3.11 Clinical
Commissioning
Group

3.12 Crawley
Borough
Council

3.13 Environment
Agency

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

enhance PROW facilities for walkers, cyclists and equestrians.

A new Primary Care Centre is required to serve new residents.
A comprehensive mix of NHS services from one building does
appear suitable, necessary and cost effective.

A building to shell and core of at least 1,500 to 2,000 sgm.
Alternatively S106 should be used to secure a contribution of
£1,698,210 on a pro rata basis (equating to an average of £658
per dwelling house and £397 per flat / apartment). Current West
Sussex average occupancy rates have been used to calculate
this sum.

New and existing residents require access to medical services.

Support the principle of the allocated site being progressed.
Maximising the delivery and densities of development is essential
to ensuring the district (and wider HMA) meets its housing
delivery targets.

The topography of the land together with the existing hedgerows
and trees and blocks of woodland surrounding the site will
contain views within the landscape.

Existing natural features together with enhancements should be
utilised to provide defensible boundaries around the site. This will
avoid urbanisation and potential settlement coalescence.
Defensible landscape boundaries will be particularly important
along the north and eastern site boundaries.

Opportunities should be taken to create links from existing urban
areas.

Traffic modelling must take account of growth across the wider
HMA.

The use of rural roads should be discouraged.

The importance of Rusper Road in serving existing farms,
hamlets and dwellings is downplayed. Measures to prevent this
road being used as a ‘rat run’ should be clarified.

The provision of a secondary school is supported to
accommodate education needs within CBC.

The preferred location for a new railway station is Kilnwood Vale.
The proposed location is poorly placed to serve future residents
which would place pressure on existing roads. CBC would object
to a new railway station at the site if it would preclude the delivery
of a new station at Kilnwood Vale.

No objection in principle

The Peter Brett Technical Note (December 2016) shows
appropriate analysis of climate change and blockage scenarios.
Applicant should check the development does not compromise
any area identified as compensation to address surface water
run-off as part of the A264 works.

Site poses a low risk of water pollution to controlled waters.
Recommendation that the Council’s Environmental Health
department is consulted re advice on land contamination.
Appropriate conditions should be applied to manage risk to
human health and controlled waters from any contamination on
the site.

Recommendation that the developer should: (1) Follow the risk
management framework in CLR11; (2)refer to EA Guiding
Principles for land contamination; (3) refer to the contaminated

Page 17



3.14 Gatwick Airport

3.15 Gatwick
Diamond

3.16 High Weald
AONB

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

land pages on GOV.UK.

No objection subject to conditions
Confirmation in the revised ‘Energy Strategy’ that wind turbines
and large installation of solar panels are not proposed (only those
on domestic roofs that will not cause issues for the airport). The
previous renewables condition has been removed accordingly.
Details of the proposed energy centre are not yet available. LGW
wish to be consulted on these when available.
The development could conflict with aerodrome safeguarding
criteria unless the following conditions are imposed. LGW wiill
object unless these conditions are applied.

- Submission of a landscaping scheme (soft and water

landscaping works)

- Submission of SUDS details
LGW have consulted their bird-strike consultants who have a
concern with the number of water bodies indicated (around 30
water bodies, flanked by open green space). This is potentially
hazardous to aviation (particularly the presence of large of
flocking waterfowl). It is possible to design a SUDS scheme to
achieve require drainage, and to increase biodiversity without
increasing the bird-strike risk.
Cranes required during construction should adhere to the British
Standard Code of Practice for safe use of cranes in close
proximity to aerodromes. LGW will require 4 weeks' notice for
this.

Strong support for the development which will help provide
employment space, supply housing and provide high quality
education facilities.

The business park is most welcome to address the pressing need
for top quality employment space.

Site is well located for a strategic development subject to
necessary infrastructure being provided.

A new railway station would enhance the positive economic and
sustainability impact of the development.

Early provision of education and community infrastructure is
welcomed. A firm commitment from HDC and WSCC to work with
central government in respect is sought.

The development is outside but within the setting of the AONB
and is therefore, likely to affect it.

Consideration should be given to protecting dark skies, providing
appropriate landscaping, utilising local materials and using colour
to blend the new development with the local landscape.
Excessive use of tree screening would in itself harm the
landscape and locally sourced landscaping should be used to
ensure the development is attractive.

A commitment to make full use of timber from responsibly
managed local woodlands, installation of wood fuel heating
systems and wood storage would contribute towards landscape
management and support local employment.

Wish to work with the developer/s and the HDC to ensure the
business park and railway station are developed in colours to
help to integrate the development with the surrounding
countryside.

Page 18



3.17 Highways
England

3.18 Historic
England

3.19 Horsham
District Cycling
Forum

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Condition relating to lighting within the development
recommended.

No objection subject to conditions

HE are satisfied that the proposed development at North
Horsham can be achieved (subject to conditions) without
detriment to the Strategic Road Network (SRN).

The agreed highways mitigation scheme at J11 of the M23 (Peas
Pottage) is linked to an agreed mitigation scheme associated with
the recently approved Mid-Sussex development (Land East of
Brighton Road). HE state that the highways mitigation works
associated with the North Horsham development should either
coincide or precede the improvement works for the Land East of
Brighton Road development.

As timings are unknown, the condition suggested is ‘scheme
implementation prior to any part of the development being
brought into use'.

If necessary, HE will work with the planning authority and
applicant if there is significant delay between the two
developments coming forward.

HE suggest wording for a condition and an informative.

No overall objection

The revised chapter 13 (Archaeology and Cultural Heritage)
satisfactorily addresses HE'’s previous comments.

HE note that geophysical and field-walking surveys have been
carried out, and a survey of ancient woodland is proposed. It is
recommended that the results of archaeological work should be
used to inform the development’s design.

HE defer to the Council’s local archaeological advisors regarding
assessment and mitigation of impacts on undesignated
archaeological assets.

No evidence has been seen that the assessment of setting-
related effects on designated heritage assets has considered the
attributes of the development at specific locations (i.e. the
mass/height of new buildings), so HE is not confident that the
magnitude of impacts on heritage significance will be negligible.
Landscape buffers will help to mitigate this impact to a degree.
HE welcomes the proposal to prepare a conservation
management plan for the Graylands Copse scheduled monument
and interpretative materials for all three scheduled monuments.
This provision should be confirmed through a voluntary
undertaking by the applicant or a condition of permission.

Considers that the information covering cycling is lacking in
detail, ambiguous and often contradictory.

There is a lack of commitment by the developer to ensure cycling
provision is well accommodated.

With the site not being CIL liable, full details of the cycling
infrastructure should be provided upfront. If this cannot be
demonstrated at this stage, then the overall viability of the
scheme should be questioned.

The site will be severed from Horsham by the A264, causing a
critical problem for cyclists and pedestrians. Underpasses are
required.

There are a lack of cycle routes connecting the development to

Page 19



3.20 Mole Valley
District Council

3.21 Natural
England

3.22 Network Rail

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Horsham.

The cycle routes within the development are incomplete and
inadequate.

Cycle parking within the development needs to be improved to
encourage cycle use over car use.

The Interim Advice Note (ref IAN/195/16) has now been adopted
and should be used to assess cycling infrastructure.

Maintain stance that underpasses remain a successful and safe
way of cross the A264, without restriction to major road junctions.

No objection.

Comments from WSCC Highways regarding mitigation against
impacts on the A24 should be adhered to.

Surrey CC should be consulted regarding their comments on the
A24 at Dorking / Leatherhead.

Surrey Downs and West Sussex CCG'’s should be consulted to
ensure the needs of primary healthcare are met.

No objection in relation to flooding subject to compliance with
point 12 of Policy SD1.

No objection. The proposed development is unlikely to affect any
statutorily protected nature conservation sites.

The proposed development is outside but within the setting of the
High Weald AONB. Paragraph 115 of the NPPF gives the highest
status of protection for the ‘landscape and scenic beauty’ of
AONBSs. Paragraph 116 sets out criteria to determine whether the
development should exceptionally be permitted within the
designated landscape.

The proposed development includes areas of priority habitat as
listed in Section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural
Communities (NERC) Act, 2006. The NPPF says that ‘when
determining planning applications, local planning authorities
should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity’.

The proposed development has the potential to adversely affect
ancient woodland. Natural England refers to its Standing Advice
on ancient woodland.

Natural England has not assessed the proposed development for
impacts on protected species. Natural England has published
Standing Advice on protected species which should be applied to
the proposed development.

HDC should consider securing measures to enhance the
biodiversity of the site from the applicant, in accordance with
paragraph 118 of the NPPF.

There may be an opportunity, with this planning application, to
enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the
surrounding natural and built environment; use natural resources
more sustainably; and bring benefits for the local community,
through green space provision and access to and contact with
nature.

No objection.

It is noted that the proposals include a new Parkway Station
between the existing Littlehaven and Faygate stations.
Specific guidance on construction works and the finished
development relative to railways must be adhered to.

Page 20



3.23 Southern Water

3.24 Sport England

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

No objection.

Exact position of public water mains, trunk mains, sewers and
decommissioned mains should be established before layout is
approved.

No excavation, mounding or tree planting should be carried out
within 3m or 4m of public mains (dependant on type) without
Southern Water consent.

All existing infrastructure should be protected during construction
works.

No new soakaways within 5m of a public water distribution mains,
trunk mains or sewers.

There are deed of easement for water mains and
decommissioned mains within the site.

Southern Water approval is required for mains and sewer
diversions on the site.

Additional local infrastructure is needed to accommodate the
development.

Adequate Wastewater facilities are necessary to serve the
development and should be secured by condition.

Any SUDS scheme should be offered for adoption to secure
operation throughout its lifetime.

HDC Drainage or Building Control staff should comment on the
proposed means of surface water drainage for the site. This
should comply with Part H3 of the Building Regulations.

No new soakaways, swales, ponds, watercourses or any other
surface water retaining or conveying features should be located
within 5m of the a public gravity sewers, rising mains or water
mains.

Conditions relating to the implementation of a drainage strategy,
waste water facilities, surface water sewerage disposal and
proposed water infrastructure are recommended.

Informatives relating to Southern Water approval of works
recommended.

Consultation has taken place with other main NGBs regarding the
proposed sports hub and associated outdoor pitches.

-  ENGLAND HOCKEY: encourage the provision of a fill
sized AGP sand-dressed pitch with floodlighting and
changing room facilities. Horsham has 3x hockey clubs,
none are asset-owning, and all can demonstrate growth.

- THE FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION: There is no 3G pitch
provision in Horsham. Using the FA mapping analysis
there is a need for the equivalent for 6x full-size 3G
pitches in the area. Therefore, a full-size 3G pitch is
recommended as part of the NH development. The FA
welcomes the inclusion of a dedicated sports hub, and the
commitment to meet Sport England and NGB design
standards.

-  THE ENGLISH CRICKET BOARD: There is potential
demand for a cricket facility in the area. A fine-turf or non-
turf pitch playing area (compliant with technical
specification) would be required.

- THE LAWN TENNIS ACCOCIATION: There is a good
level of demand for tennis, but more community
accessible facilities are required. Suggest that an addition

Page 21




3.25 Surrey County
Council

3.26 Sussex Police
& Crime
Commissioner

3.27 Sussex Wildlife
Trust

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

4x courts would help to provide a good level of community
access. Floodlights would be an advantage and would
allow year-round participation.
For Sport England to support the application, the comments from
the NGBs above should be taken into account. This detail should
be established at Outline stage.

Main concern is traffic impact on highways in Surrey — particularly
A24 and A281.

Liaison has occurred between the developer and the CC, and
agreement has been reached that impact on Surrey is not
significant.

Initial concerns have now been addressed.

Surrey CC has no objection to the application.

Response follows initial comments on 23" December.

Additional population generated by the development will place
additional demand on existing policing in the area.

A £5 (3.4%) increase in the Council Tax precept to Police has
been approved for 2016/17 budget.

Police are required to deliver £35 million in savings over 4 years.
To maintain current levels of policing, developer contributions
towards capital infrastructure will be required.

A contribution of £403,880 is sought to fund the cost of additional
policing of the area as a result of the new development.

In their response of 22 March 2017, Sussex Police raise no
further concern or comment regarding the new information
submitted by the applicant.

Further comments received 12" April 2017 reiterating the
additional resourcing requirements needed to serve the proposed
development (namely 5 No. police officers).

Following discussions regarding the overall viability of the
proposal, the request for a contribution to create a new
neighbourhood policing centre has been removed and the
Sussex Police will work with the developer and partners to utilise
a multi-functional community building.

A revised contribution of £117,690 is therefore requested.

Recognition that the site is allocated.

Concerned the proposal does not comply with HDPF Policies 25,
31,33 and 35.

All Ecology surveys should comply with BS42020.

The total amount of species rich hedgerow to be removed should
be clarified.

Bush Copse (Ancient Woodland) will be harmfully impacted as a
result of the proposed road crossing it.

The provision of additional bat survey work is encouraging.

Site supports a wide range of bat species including Barbastelle’s.
It is important the impact on all of these species is fully
understood.

Light pollution from the Sports Hub and Bush Copse should be
prevented.

Concern that the impact on all protected species has not been
properly considered.

Should the applications progress, the biodiversity gains
suggested for the area should be further developed to include

Page 22



3.28 Woodland Trust

3.29 WSCC
Education

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

long term management and funding.
Remind HDC of their duty under the NERC Act 2006 to have
regard to the purpose of conserving biodiversity.

Raise objection due to loss and damage to Bush Copse,
Furzefield Copse, Hurst Wood, Tenacre Gill, Castle Copse,
Seagrass Copse and Ancient Semi-Natural Woodland on the site.
Contrary to NPPF para 118.

The woodland should not be considered in isolation of the wider
ecological network and landscape types in accordance with
NPPF para 120.

Loss of Ancient Woodland cannot be compensated for; the
impacts of development are numerous.

Direct loss of Bush Copse from an access road resulting in
irreplaceable loss of habitat, creation of isolated habitat and
incremental future loss of additional woodland.

Noise, air and light impacts on retained woodland from
development.

Potential negative impact of proposed cemetery on Woodland
from phosphates and risk of visitors planting non-native, invasive
species with no satisfactory buffer.

Potential negative impact on Furzefield Copse from traffic
movements.

SuDS attenuation ponds should be free from potential pollutants.
Concern regarding Ancient Woodland being used as open space.
Where Ancient Woodland overhangs public areas, branches and
trees could be indiscriminately lopped or felled.

Potential for future fly tipping from residential development
adjoining woodland.

Potential changes to hydrology including increased and
decreased ground and surface water and introduction of pollution
/ contamination.

Concern regarding overall cumulative impact.

Natural England’s Standing Advice on Mitigate Measures should
be followed.

Buffers between Woodland and housing should be 15m
minimum, increased to 50m in some areas and be made of at
least 50% native tree cover to allow semi-natural habitat to
develop. Buffers should be monitored for effectiveness with
additional buffers included as necessary including temporary
fencing to prevent encroachment where necessary.

Current projections show that an increase in capacity at both
primary and secondary level would be required in the academic
year 2018/19.

An increase in primary school pupil population in the District has
led to an increasing demand for school places and this trend is
predicted to continue for the foreseeable future.

It is agreed that the development will provide 2 primary schools,
including early years facilities. The development is predicted to
generate a need for 3FE, however, this should be monitored and
if further children arise from the development, then a fourth FE
should be provided by the developer. This should be secured
through a legal agreement.

There are currently 3 secondary schools in Horsham providing a
cumulative total of 27.6 forms of entry (FE) (828 places in each

Page 23



3.30 WSCC
Highways

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

year group).

The proposed development will produce a further nearly 3 forms
of entry by the end of the plan period.

A 6.91 hectare site within the North Horsham development would
be required to accommodate a secondary school, as all schools
are full and projected to be oversubscribed.

The application proposes that land would be allocated for a 6FE
school with an adjacent additional 2 hectares for a further 2FE
expansion.

It is agreed that the development is likely to generate a need for
43% of a 6FE secondary school. The developer should be
required to either provide a 6FE secondary school with a
contribution equivalent to 57% from WSCC, or to make a
contribution equivalent to 43% to WSCC or the Education
Funding Agency, dependant upon delivery mechanism. This
should be secured through a legal agreement.

A contribution of ~£1.9M towards expanding sixth form provision
at The College of Richard Collyers is proposed and agreed in
principle. There is sufficient space and playing fields for
expansion here.

Land is to be provided for a Special Educational Needs facility.
WSCC would seek that this is available at the same timescales
as the secondary and primary schools and provided at an
institutional land rate.

The Local Highway Authority acknowledges that the principle of
development has been established through the adoption of the
HDPF.

Matters relating to the layout of on-site carriageways, footways

and parking areas will be subject to review when reserved

matters applications are submitted.

The current outline planning application does not seek permission

for a railway station; only to safeguard land to provide a station

and car park at a later stage.

The site is to take its primary vehicle access from three junctions

onto the A264:

1. A new signalised gyratory in the vicinity of the existing left
in/left out junction of the A264/Langhurstwood Road (referred
to as the Western Site Access). This will result in the existing
A264/Langhurstwood Road junction being permanently
closed and Lanbghurstwood Road diverted through the
proposed development. A bus only route is proposed onto
Pondtail Drive from the southern arm of the gyratory.

2. The remodelling to enlarge the existing Rusper Road
Roundabout (referred to as the Central Site Access) to create
a signalised gyratory.

3. A signalised left in, left out junction (referred to as the Eastern
Site Access), which will be located on and affect the A264
eastbound carriageway only.

Compact roundabouts are to be constructed on the interfaces of

the development with Rusper Road and on Langhurstwood Road.

The Rusper Road Roundabout will incorporate the existing

Rusper Road on the northern and southern arms, with the

development then served from the eastern and western arms. At

Langhurstwood Road the roundabout will incorporate

Langhurstwood Road, Mercer Road and the proposed

Page 24



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

development.

An emergency access is proposed onto Wimlands Road, which

will also facilitate access for pedestrians and cyclists.

The following highway design aspects need to be addressed at

this stage:

- A formal departure from standard is required for the forward
visibility to the traffic signals on the Rusper Road northbound
entry onto the roundabout at the Central A264 junction.

- A formal departure from standard is required for the junction
inter-visibility zone at the bus only access arm of the A264
Western Roundabout.

- The over-runnable area should be removed from the
proposed compact roundabout on Langhurstwood Road, due
to the high number of east to north movements. These areas
are difficult to maintain.

- The indicative masterplan is showing open drainage features
for both the Central and Western A264 junctions. The Local
Highway Authority does not accept open drainage features on
roundabouts. Below ground attenuation tanks are
recommended.

- The proposed traffic calming measures on Rusper Road on
the approaches to the proposed Rusper Road Roundabout
will need to be the subject of a separate statutory consultation
process, before they could be agreed. The installation of the
proposed Pegasus signalised crossing on Rusper Road also
needs to be the subject of a separate public advertising
process.

- The traffic calming measures and Pegasus signalised
crossing provide pedestrian links across Rusper Road. The
provision of the pedestrian links should not be approved now,
but be the subject of a condition requiring the submission of
details in conjunction with the adjoining reserved matters
phases of development, so as to ensure that these connect
with east-west walking and cycling routes in the site.

- The proposed development site crosses Old Holbrook, which
is a rural, single track lane with only informal passing places.
Policy SD1(4) prohibits improvement to Old Holbrook and
vehicular access into the development from this route. Old
Holbrook allows for vehicular access for a number of existing
properties, therefore, any improvement should enable access
for these properties.

- A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) will be needed to provide a
legally enforceable means of preventing vehicles from turning
from the development onto Old Holbrook. The TRO would be
subject to a separate consultation process to the current
planning application.

- A strategy will be necessary to monitor traffic flows along Old
Holbrook and an obligation upon the applicant to install further
measures to deter the use of this site by development traffic.
This should be linked to the appropriate phasing of the
development connected with the construction of the Old
Holbrook crossroad with the A264.

- The majority of highway drawings have been revised since
the Stage One Road Safety Audit was initially undertaken.
The revised drawings should be submitted to the Auditor to
ensure they have no further comments.

- A number of Traffic Regulation Orders will be required, which

Page 25



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

includes Old Holbrook (referred to above), a prohibition of
driving following the closure of the existing Langhurstwood
Road junction, and to restrict access to buses only at the bus
gate on Pondtail Drive. A consultation process is also
required for the installation of traffic management measures,
traffic signals and signalised crossing points. The need for
highway lighting will be determined as part of the detailed
design.
The Local Highway Authority has undertaken a multi-stage
process to determine the potential impact of the proposed
development upon the highway network (highway capacity):
Trip Generation and Mode Choice

- Potential trip generation from the uses proposed have been
derived through the TRICS database of surveys of completed
developments. The TRICS trip rates have been presented as
person trip rates, i.e. trips generated by the proposed uses by
all modes of transport.

- For all trips from the residential uses originating or departing
off-site the mode by which these are undertaken have been
determined using Census Travel to Work data, taken from the
existing residential areas within Horsham to the south of the
A264.

- Travel to Work Census data is also used to determine mode
choice for the employment trips, based on existing
employment areas within Horsham.

- For the secondary school, the method of travel as recorded in
the Millais School travel plan has been used, amended
slightly to proportion an additional number of cycle based
trips.

Trip Distribution

- For the residential and employment uses, Census Travel to
Work data has been applied to determine origins and
destinations of trips to and from the site.

- For the proposed retail use, the submitted Retail Impact
Assessment has been used to determine where the store is
anticipated to draw trade from.

Assignment to Routes

- Atraffic model has been used to assign vehicle trips to routes
on the network to their potential destinations. Trips to and
from the site are assigned by the model to the network using
the fastest possible route.

Internalisation

- The Local Highway Authority accepts that a number of trips
would be retained within the site rather than having to visit
locations beyond the development. These trips have been
deducted from those trips taking place beyond the site.
Internal trips are set out as person trips; no mode of travel is
identified.

Junction Modelling Scenarios and Study Area

- The impact of the development on the local road network has
been considered in a future year (2031), which assumes that
the North Horsham development will be complete and fully
built-out. Two future year scenarios have been undertaken;
one with and one without the proposed development at North
Horsham. A comparison can then be made between the two
scenarios to identify the specific impact arising from the
proposed development.

Page 26



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

- Given the uncertainty relating to the delivery of the railway
station at North Horsham, the with-development scenario
does not directly assume that this will be provided.

Traffic Growth and Committed Developments

- In order to generate the data for the 2031 assessment, a
growth rate has been applied to the data recorded in 2014.
The growth rate has been derived from TEMPRO, which uses
data from the National Traffic Model (the NTM) to forecast
potential traffic growth. The TEMPRO growth rate has been
adjusted based upon the housing and employment growth
planned within the adopted HDPF. The NTM uses planning
data and will include other permitted developments (i.e.
committed developments) in Horsham District.

- For the 2031 future year assessments, it is important to note
that the junction improvements proposed accommodate both
traffic generated by the proposed North Horsham
development, traffic growth associated with the HDPF, and
that associated with other committed developments.

- The NPPF says that ‘development should only be prevented
or refused on transport grounds where the residual
cumulative impacts of development are severe’. The impact of
the development therefore should be viewed against the
situation without the North Horsham development. This is
particularly so where the junction is forecast to operate over
capacity without the proposed development.

Junction Capacity Assessments

- The impact of the additional development traffic has been
assessed in the future year scenario at a number of junctions.
This includes those new and improved junctions proposed as
part of the current planning application. The assessments
have been undertaken using industry accepted modelling
techniques.

Impact on wider Network

- The following comments are made specifically for the 2031
future year with and without the proposed development at
North Horsham for the network peak hours (0800-0900 and
170-1800). Comments are made only in connection with
those roads and junctions maintained by WSCC.

Future year modelling shows that the existing Central

A264/Rusper Road Roundabout is not fit to accommodate the

North Horsham development. An improvement on highway

capacity grounds is therefore critical to enable the proposed

development. The use of traffic signals (i.e. signalisation) is
considered necessary to accommodate the development and
increase capacity, giving priority to traffic on the A264. With the
proposed development traffic and the improvement, queues and
delays on all arms are forecast to be significantly reduced with
the scheme as proposed.

The Highway Authority is developing the detailed design of the

A24/A264 Great Daux Roundabout independently of the current

planning application (DC/16/1677). The re-design accommodates

the traffic generated by the East of Horsham (DC/09/2138) and

South of Broadbridge Heath (DC/09/2101) as well as the current

application. The re-design includes an additional entry arm and

circulatory lane, together with the installation of traffic signals
agreed as part of the former two planning permissions.

The applicant is proposing to signalise the A264 Moorhead

Page 27



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Roundabout and to construct additional traffic islands on the
B2195 to accommodate the North Horsham traffic. This should
reduce the dominance of traffic on the A264 and assist traffic
exiting the B2195.

The Highway Authority is minded to accept a monitoring type
arrangement for the A264 Faygate Roundabout, which would
require the development to contribute towards an improvement
scheme or deliver an improvement if certain thresholds are met.
This arrangement depends on a statutory consultation into the
imposition of a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO); therefore a
flexible approach needs to be taken to this roundabout.

The Highway Authority is recommending a proportionate
contribution for the A264 Bewbush Manor Roundabout, based
upon the cost of amending the indicative mitigation scheme
submitted with the Kilnwood Vale development so as to
accommodate the North Horsham development.

It is proposed to signalise the A24 Robin Hood Roundabout,
which will be delivered by the Local Highway Authority.

The A24 Hop Oast Roundabout will require works involving the
creation of additional lanes on both the A24 arms and the
Worthing Road (B2237) arm, to accommodate the North
Horsham development and improve the overall operation of the
junction.

The traffic signal controlled junction on Roffey Corner could
accommodate the additional development traffic with no adverse
impact.

Increasing the flare on the arms of the Rusper Road/Crawley
Road Roundabout and the flare on the north arm of the Rusper
Road/Lemmington Way Roundabout, where capacity issues are
anticipated, will mitigate the impact of the additional development
traffic. The overall operation of both junctions would not be
affected by the additional development traffic.

Altering the signal timings to the pedestrian crossing at the Kings
Road/Harwood Road Roundabout will mitigate the impact of the
additional development traffic and the overall operation of the
junction is forecast to be improved.

The introduction of traffic signals will link junctions and give
priority to traffic on the A264, which will minimise delays and
increase the capacity of these junctions.

A scheme of traffic monitoring is recommended incorporating
Langhurstwood Road, Old Holbrook and Rusper Road to the
north of the development, to monitor traffic flows. Should adverse
issues be identified as a direct result of development traffic using
these, the developer should implement an appropriate scheme of
works to resolve any issues.

The LPA may wish to consider the amenity issues of the potential
increase in vehicle movements on Rusper Road (south of the
A264) to and from Horsham town centre.

The planning application (WSCC/16/062/NH) for a new energy
from waste plant on the Warnham and Wealden Brickworks site
would generate no more vehicle movements than have already
been approved for the permitted waste development at the
brickworks site. It would have no greater impact upon the North
Horsham development than that scheme already approved.

The delivery of the phases of the North Horsham development
should be linked to the delivery of the proposed at-grade

Page 28



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

crossings (including cycle crossings) at the A264 Western and

A264 Central roundabouts and the new bridge to the east of

Rusper Road; so as to overcome the significant barrier formed by

the A264 to non-motorised road users travelling to or from the

North Horsham development. This is in the same way that

Phases 1 and 3 of the North Horsham development are

dependent upon the construction of the signalised junctions on

the A264 at Rusper Road and Langhurstwood Road.

The applicant should undertake to monitor car parking around

Littlehaven railway station and agree to fund additional traffic

regulation orders (TROs) should the additional parking demands

generate highway safety issues.

A short length of footway should be provided on Mercer Road

between the North Horsham development and Warnham railway

station.

Due to the uncertainty relating to the delivery of the railway

station within the North Horsham development, consideration

needs to be given to the potential for increased usage of

Warnham, Littlehaven and Horsham stations.

The Transport Assessment includes details of a potential bus

loop starting and finishing at the proposed A264 Western

roundabout, which will include a bus gate on the Pondtail Drive

arm, enabling buses only to enter and exit into the existing

residential areas of North Horsham. The LPA may wish to

consider the amenity impacts associated with buses using this

route.

Details of the passenger transport infrastructure, including bus

shelters and real time information, should be included as part of

reserved matters applications.

The precise nature of cycle routes (on or off carriageway,

surfacing, etc.) including that forming part of the Horsham to

Crawley route within the development will need to be determined

as part of reserved matters applications.

Engineering measures for the adoptable highway crossing areas

of ancient woodland will need to be agreed with the Local

Highway Authority as part of any further highway adoption

agreement.

The diverted Langhurstwood Road must be designed to take into

account HGV traffic and protect the amenity of future residents.

Construction management plans covering the relevant phase of

development will be required, to manage construction traffic

accessing the site(s).

The following matters need to be included in a S106 Agreement:

- The potential trigger points for off-site highway works should
be prior to the occupation of a certain number of dwellings
and/or square metres of business floor-space. Some flexibility
would be required in case the delivery of dwellings overtakes
that for the business units, or vice versa.

- The delivery of improvements to be delivered by applicant for:

A264 Moorhead Roundabout

A24 Hop Oast Roundabout

Rusper Road/Lemmington Road Roundabout

Roffey Corner traffic signals

Crawley Road Roundabout

Pondtail Drive

Surfacing/lighting improvements to the underpass below

Page 29

@~poooTy



3.31 WSCC Rights
of Way Officer

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

the A264 and Riverside Walk to the south of the A264 and
to use all best endeavours to secure the creation of
continuous route to Bartholomew Way, including the
diversion of public right of way 1586.

- Contributions towards improvements to be delivered by the

Local Highway Authority for:

a. A24/A264 Great Daux Roundabout

b. A264 Bewbush Manor Roundabout

c. A Traffic Regulation Order to enable the reduction of the
speed limit on the A264 between Great Daux and
Moorhead Roundabout.

- Separate schemes of monitoring covering:

a. The increase in traffic using the lanes to the north of the
development (this is to include Langhurstwood Road, Old
Holbrook and Rusper Road).

b. Traffic growth on Tower Road and Faygate Lane, and the
impact on the operation of Faygate Roundabout.

c. Pedestrian crossing demands at Old Holbrook (to
commence in conjunction with Phase 3).

d. Parking demands in an around Littlehaven railway station.

e. The implementation of the phase specific travel plan.

- Bus service provision. The extension/new bus service would
need to be funded entirely by the applicant.
Six highway conditions are proposed to be imposed if planning
permission is granted, so that certain infrastructure is in place
prior to the first occupation of certain land uses or development
phases. The wording of the conditions needs to link the
respective land uses to the specific item of infrastructure, or in
certain instances link two items of infrastructure together (i.e. the
realignment of Langhurstwood Road could not take place until
both the new A264 Western junction and the new roundabout on
Langhurstwood Road are in place).
It is considered that the proposed development complies with the
relevant sections of HDPF Policies SD1: ‘Land North of Horsham’
and SD9: ‘Transport Infrastructure’.

Network of PROW'’s within and adjacent to site. The applicant
needs to consider Stopping Up and diversion through the Town
and Country Planning Act.

New PROW'’s could be created through the site and be offered
for adoption.

A continuous (minimum) 3m wide east / west hon-motorised user
link should be provided through the site that is physically
separate from the road network. This should be landscaped and
unenclosed.

The surface of any new east / west route should facilitate year
round access and the specification should be agreed by WSCC
ahead of works commencing.

Route 1575 to Langhurstwood Road will require the applicant to
provide a route of consistent status.

Future access for motorised and non-motorised users beyond the
site to the north requires consideration. Motorised access to and
from Northlands Road is discouraged.

Value in retaining Wimland Road’s character as a quiet lane.
Hurst Hill could be retained for vehicular access with potential
non-motorised access nearby.

Page 30



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

e Grade separated crossings of the A264 should be provided.

e Footpath 1586 currently crosses the A264 at grade. An additional
tunnel is recommended providing a more direct link between the
development and Horsham.

o Existing PROW'’s (1421 and 1573) should be improved through
S106 / CIL to mitigate impacts of additional footfall from the
development. Footpaths 2946 and 1569 and Bridleway 1590
should also be enhanced.

e Contributions should be sought towards a Horsham — Crawley
cycle route and towards Bridleway 1550.

e Acycle link from Bridleway 1590 along the railway to Faygate
would be ideal.

o Clarification of the impact of a potential new railway station on
Faygate is sought.

PARISH AND NEIGHBOURHOOD COUNCILS

3.32 Colgate Parish e Comments of 25 August 2016 — objection to application. The PC
Council note the following concerns:

- Faygate train station should stay open. Station at
Kilnwood Vale to progress as planned.

- Question the need for the business units.

- Inadequate access points to/from the development.

- A comprehensive cycle way should be included.

- Adequate health care provision to be provided.

- $106 monies to provide a crossing at the Faygate
roundabout.

e Further comment on 13 September 2016 — objection on grounds
of lack of affordable housing, poor access to site from Dorking
side, insufficient width of roads for industrial traffic.

¢ No additional comments in response of 15 March 2017.

3.33 Denne e Comments of 25 August 2016 — objection to the application.
Neighbourhoo - Does not comply with the principle of development in
d Councll HDPF Policy SD1.

- Fails to meet the 35% affordable housing target.

- Fails to comply with NPPF with regard to sustainable
transport solutions. No guarantee of a railway station.

- No confirmed high speed broadband.

- Further comments to follow.

e Comments of 13 March 2017 — objection to application.

- Failure to comply with principle in SD1.

- Not sustainable in the long term.

- Reserved matters applications will not be in accordance
with the site masterplan.

- Insufficient infrastructure or public transport, schools,
health care, community centre, police station, sewerage,
water supply etc.

- Fails to meet affordable housing targets.

- No guarantee of a new railway station.

- The link roads through the site will result in loss of
habitats and biodiversity.

- Reduced lighting across the site will be a safety concern.

- Concern regarding rat running through the site.

- Water and sewerage capacity is insufficient.

- The development will increase flooding risk in existing

Page 31



3.34 Forest
Neighbourhoo
d Council

3.35 North
Horsham

Parish Council

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

parts of Horsham.

- No onsite police station proposed.

- Traffic impact has not been addressed properly.

- Concern regarding Biffa waste site and associated HGV
movements along Langhurstwood Road.

- Request to speak at the Committee Meeting.

Raise objection.

Development on the green strategic gap with Crawley is
unwelcome.

Additional offices are not needed as there are vacant premises in
Horsham.

An underpass beneath the A264 should be provided; the
proposed bridge is inaccessible for cyclists.

Safe crossing the Horsham Riverside Walk north of the A264
should be provided.

Insufficient detail regarding the Site Wife Framework Travel Plan
to demonstrate how walking and cycling will be accommodated.
Concern regarding impact on ancient woodland and hedgerows.
Strong objection to re-routing access to the waste recycling plant
due to detriment to quality of residents lives.

Affordable housing must be secured.

The absence of any CIL payments raises the question of how
additional infrastructure will be funded.

If the development takes place, it should be done sympathetically
to the environment and be aesthetically pleasing.

Strong consideration should be given to re-routing the A264 north
of the site and provision of a natural boundary to the
development.

The impact of additional traffic on rural routes is a concern.
Additional access points on to the A264 should be required to
ensure joining vehicles do not impede traffic flow.

Strong concern that a new road will erode Bush Copse.

As the existing line of trees to the south of the A264 will be
breached, additional buffering should be considered.

The outcome of the surveys undertaken is queried and a
response from Highways England regarding the proposed road
system is welcomed.

The proposed new roundabout on the A264 at Langhurstwood
Road is not supported. This would lead to congestion along that
road and the A24.

There is potential for a pedestrian and cyclist bridge over the
A264.

Northlands Road to Old Holbrook junction should become and
access for pedestrians.

Rusper Road is not suitable as a main access for the new
development. Only pedestrians and cyclists should be permitted
to cross the A264 Rusper Road.

The rampart of the Motte and Bailey at Lemmington Way is
archaeologically sensitive and should be preserved.

Junction between Rusper Road roundabout and the Moorhead
roundabout is a more suitable access point to the development
giving direct access to proposed facilities.

Moorhead roundabout is the most suitable route for traffic into
Horsham with improvements to increase potential capacity.

Page 32



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Concern regarding traffic turning from Earles Meadow from the
Moorhead roundabout.

Grade separated accesses for pedestrians and cyclists will
facilitate access.

A footbridge from Earles Meadow to Crawley Road would assist
crossing of the A264.

Improvements to the underpass close to the railway line are
necessary to ensure this is used safely.

Suitability of Wimlands Road as an emergency route is queried.
Insufficient parking will lead to parking and blockages on the main
arterial roads. Recommends there are no parking courts. Street
lighting should be low level and unobtrusive. Provision for refuse
collection should be considered.

Housing along the access road should mitigate noise and
vibration from heavy traffic movements. Landscaping could be
used to provide separation.

Potential to improve connectivity from North Horsham to
Warnham Station.

Identified railway station site should include a Park and Ride.
Query over whether a new station at North Horsham is
necessary.

Littlehaven Station would need improvement to accommodate
additional demand.

Good public transport is necessary. Buses should be routed
along Rusper Road to connect existing railway stations.

The Phasing of the development should be clarified and secured
to ensure employment land, affordable housing and other
infrastructure are delivered.

SUDS, contamination and impact on the water table require
careful consideration.

Existing and proposed green spaces should be preserved
including future responsibility for maintenance.

Impact on viability of existing sports facilities should be
considered and both HDC and Sport England should be satisfied
the proposed provision on site fulfils need.

Concern regarding impact on Ancient Woodland and bats.
Ancient Monuments on and near the site should be preserved.
Sussex vernacular should be reflected in the design, good
housing mix is required and care provision along with retirement
accommodation should be considered. Lifetime homes should be
provided.

The distribution of affordable homes appears to be a reasonable
match to the SHMA.

Construction workers should not disrupt existing residents.

The impact of the business facilities on existing facilities in
Horsham is a concern and new jobs should match the skills
market.

Clarification regarding the proposed education facilities is
required.

Lack of commitment to health facilities is a concern.

Community centre should complement existing facilities in
Horsham.

General concerns regarding Gatwick Airport, additional housing
in the future, development deliverability and the format of public
consultation.

Page 33



3.36  Rusper Parish
Council

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Additional comments received 13" April 2017:

A report into cycle and pedestrian crossings of the A264 was
commissioned by the Parish Council and undertaken by Phil
Jones Associates. This makes the following findings:

- The character of the area of North Horsham would be
fundamentally changed by the development, but the highway
proposals do not reflect this. The Parish Council considers
that this results in a ‘severe residual impact’ as referred to in
the NPPF. There are concerns over cumulative effects of the
developments at Broadbridge Heath, Southwater and
Kilnwood Vale. The traffic modelling is not sufficiently robust.

- An urban boulevard would better reflect the change of
environment and enhance the quality of the development. A
reduction in the speed limit of the A264 should be
considered.

- Rectilinear junctions that can accommodate ‘walk with traffic’
surface crossings should be considered at the Great Daux
and Moorhead roundabouts.

- There is concern that the Rusper Road/A264 roundabout
works will impact upon the Motte and Bailey.

- Additional non-motor crossings of the A264 should be
considered. The proposed bridge at the Rusper Road/A264
roundabout would be improved the widened to 5m with
cantilevered side fencing.

- The proposed bus route doesn’t appear to connect the centre
of the site (station and foodstore).

- A comprehensive plan to promote cycling between Horsham
and Crawley would be beneficial.

There remains a lack of clarity over phasing and infrastructure

delivery and phasing. The land for a station car park should be

provided as a park and ride facility in the first instance.

The Parish Council recommends the use of natural physical

restraints and low noise road surfaces to reduce noise pollution.

Any trees removed, should be replaced with a similar native

species on site.

There remains concern over impacts on ancient woodland and, in

particular, the fragmentation of Bush Copse.

The application does not provide for retirement housing, nursing

homes or life time homes to meet the needs of Horsham'’s

population.

The under-provision of affordable housing is unacceptable.

Objection to the planning application.

Negative impact of extra traffic in the Parish.

Scale of development will change the rural character.

The development should not add to the existing traffic problems.
The Rusper Road roundabout should be changes to a crossroads
and traffic lights added which do not allow turning to country
roads to the north.

Page 34



3.37 Warnham

3.38

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

e Traffic calming measures should be extended to Rusper.

Details of the proposed traffic calming within the site are not

sufficient at present to know if it will be effective.

The entire development should be 20mph zone.

No construction vehicles to be driven through the Parish.

Facilities should be available to residents of Rusper.

New bus routes should tie in with Rusper and Faygate.

Affordable Housing priority should be for Rusper’s existing

residents.

e Footpath (passing Moathouse Farm and Old Holbrook) to be
upgraded to a cycle path/ bridleway.

Objection to the planning application.
Parish Council e Insufficient consideration in the TA to traffic impact, in particular
the roads and lanes within Warnham Parish.

¢ Increase in traffic will have negative impact on health and well-
being.

e Traffic calming measures have been discussed, but an increase
in traffic means an allocation of funds should be offered to the PC
to implement revised schemes.

e The traffic analysis undertaken by the developer is overly casual,
and is limited in scope.

e Proposed roads are not wide enough for 2—way traffic.

¢ Improvements to the A24 need to be included as part of the
proposed development.

e Accident analysis on the A24 is not sufficient.

e Crossing points on the A24 have been reviewed by the PC. In
recognition that the development will worsen the conditions for
pedestrians the PC request the developer investigates options for
crossing improvements and allocate funds for implementing these
schemes.

PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

The application as originally submitted in August 2016 attracted 81 objections (58
households) plus a further two where there was no address given. In addition there were
also some 22 comments from 15 households neither objecting nor offering support.

In summary the objections dealt with the following matters:

Highways:
e Additional pressure on the surrounding road network during construction and when

built

Increased traffic noise and air pollution levels as a result of more traffic on the roads

Safety concerns relating to construction traffic

Safety concerns relating to additional traffic on the roads

Inadequate cycle, pedestrian and equestrian routes into and out of the development

Inadequate consideration of where access points to the development have been

proposed

¢ Inadequate modelling of the potential highways impact inter alia objections from Earles
Meadow residents association

e Concerns that highways improvements proposed cannot be secured

Page 35



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Parkway Railway Station:

The proposal for a new railway station is not realistic and is not in line with Network
Rail's Policy

Not providing Parkway Railway Station would have a negative impact on the
capacity of surrounding stations to cope

The proposed station discourages sustainable transport options by providing 600
car parking spaces

The potential for the removal or reduction of train services from neighbouring
stations if Parkway Station is built

Bus Route:

Safety concerns relating to the ability of Pondtail Drive to accommodate a bus route
Concerns relating to the frequency with which the buses would pass through
Pondtail Drive

Concerns that the character of Pondtail Drive will be altered from a residential road
to an urbanised area

The potential for parking restrictions on Pondtail Drive

Concerns that Pondtail Drive cannot be properly managed to restrict usage to buses
only

The impact of the proposed bus route on the amenity of existing residents

Infrastructure and services:

Lack of infrastructure proposed to support the new development — schools, medical

services, public transport and emergency services

The over stretching of existing services to accommodate the development
Concerns that council tax will be raised to provide the services needed for the
development

Educational facilities proposed will not meet existing and future demand

Concerns relating to the amendment of school catchment areas

Proposed school is not appropriately located and should be provided elsewhere in the

district

Objections that the school is a proposed Free School

Concerns that the school will not be delivered in time

Concerns that appropriate funding for the school will not be provided by the developer
Inadequate access to the allotments and cemetery

Environment and health

Loss of countryside

Loss of woodland

Loss of ancient woodland

Inadequate protection for trees with preservation orders
Inadequate landscape buffer around the site

Harm to wildlife and destruction of habitat

Increased noise and air pollution

Visual impact of the development
The Environmental Statement does not properly consider the environmental impact of
the development

Concerns relating to the protection of existing watercourses on the site

Concerns relating to flood risk

Concerns relating to existing land contamination on site and the potential to cause
future harm

Negative impact on heritage asset — Motte and Bailey

The landfill adjacent to the site will be a health hazard for prospective residents

Page 36



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

The location of the cemetery near Graylands may prove detrimental to future
operations of SMEs and future development at this site

There is concern over potential pollution arising from the cemetery to the adjacent
business premises and occupiers

Character and amenity:

Overdevelopment of Horsham

Unnecessary development

Adding to urban sprawl

Inappropriate scale of development

Concerns relating to the closing of the Horsham / Crawley gap

The loss of Horsham’s character and identity — rural and / or market town

Loss of privacy for existing properties

Loss of privacy and amenity for existing residents adjacent to the development
The impact of the Gatwick flight path on prospective residents

The development is separated from the rest of Horsham

Economic

Loss of agricultural holding land

Business and employment opportunities in Horsham town centre will be lost to the
development of a business park

There will not be enough demand for business units and change of use will be used to
allow even more housing to be provided

The business park should be replaced with more open and green space with sports
and leisure facilities and a hotel

Jobs created will not be long term or for local people

Housing:

Concerns that suitable affordable housing will not be provided for those who are most
in need

Concerns that development will meet the needs of those living further afield rather than
local need

Only 30% social housing is proposed not 35% which is HDC’s requirement and is what
should be delivered

Concerns that 5% of affordable homes will only be delivered if the overall development
is successful

Affordable housing is not true affordable housing

Lack of provision for self-build homes

Lack of variation in design of the development

Other

Lack of trust in council and developer to deliver what will be secured in the S106
Councillors are against the proposal so why would it proceed

Concerns that land and planning permission will be sold on to another developer who
is less experienced

Viability figures are not available so the public cannot challenge them

Concerns that the development is not viable

Concerns that the developer is only interested in making a profit at the expense of the
guality of life for local people who live in the area

The site has been selected for political reasons not for objective planning reasons
The proposed development does not meet policy requirements

Landowners shown in the plans have not agreed to sell their land to the developer
Inadequate community consultation

Concerns relating to the length of time that the development will take and the impact
this will have for local people

Page 37



3.39

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

o The cumulative impact of the proposal for the Britannia Crest Incinerator
o Belief that more appropriate sites are available than the proposed site
o The east edge of the development is beyond that originally designated in the HDPF

Representations received as a result of submission of further environmental information in
March 2017

Some 14 No. objections from fourteen households with one submission of comment neither
supporting nor objecting from a single household and two comments from third parties
where no address given submitted.

In summary these further objections raise the following issues:

Highways

o Highway safety concerns

o Increased pressure on local road network including minor roads surrounding the
area

o Infrastructure for the business park needs to be provided before infrastructure for
residential development

o The provision of a new station would negatively impact on existing stations in the
area

o Lack of infrastructure for cycling, bridge link a deterrent to walking and cycling

o Unclear cycle links connecting the development to Horsham

. The location of the proposed link road (route 6) has not been properly considered
and the developer has not properly considered the alternative routes

. The proposed western link road will have a negative environmental impact upon
protected habitats and species

. Increased pressure on parking at Littlehaven Station
Concern and objection to the diversion of Langhurstwood Road

. The Kilnwood Vale developers are actively promoting the positioning of a railway

station within their site and the traffic impacts of no station at North Horsham should
be considered

o Concern that the level of traffic movements along the A264 have been
underrepresented
. There are concerns over the implications of the development on the Kilnwood Vale

roundabout and the proposed improvements at Sullivan Drive

Bus Route:

o Pondtail Drive is an inappropriate road for the proposed bus route

o Change to character of Pondtail Drive

o Increased noise impact and pollution on Pondtail Drive

o Lack of enforceable restrictions for the proposed bus route on Pondtail Drive

Environment:

o Negative impact on protected trees
o Concerns relating to resulting surface water runoff and flood risk
Other:

The development is separated for the rest of Horsham

Loss of amenity for existing residents who live adjacent to the site
Loss of character and appearance of Old Holbrook

Insufficient consultation

Insufficient provision of affordable housing for local people
Developer is profit driven

Page 38



4.1

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

e Lack of adequate health care facilities being provided which will create additional
pressure on existing services

¢ Housing for local need does not conform to HDPF policy requirement

e Detrimental visual impact of Phase 3 housing on existing dwellings in Langhurstwood
Road

e The deliverability of the commercial and retail offer would be reduced without a station

HOW THE PROPOSED COURSE OF ACTION WILL PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS

Article 8 (Right to respect of a Private and Family Life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol
(Protection of Property) of the Human Rights Act 1998 are relevant to this application,
Consideration of Human rights forms part of the planning assessment below.

HOW THE PROPOSAL WILL HELP TO REDUCE CRIME AND DISORDER

It is not considered that the development would be likely to have any significant impact on
crime and disorder.

PLANNING ASSESSMENTS
The key issues for consideration in relation to this outline proposal are:

e The principle of the development

e Transport Issues

e Impact upon the character, appearance and landscape of the surrounding area and
biodiversity issues

Impact on nearby heritage assets and their setting

Leisure, open space and community facilities

Environmental issues (air quality, contamination, noise & drainage)

Legal obligations

These issues are examined below in the context of compliance with relevant, up to date
policies of the Development Plan.

Principle of the development

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out that there is a presumption in
favour of sustainable development and that this should run through both plan making and
decision taking (paragraph 14). In terms of determination of planning applications this
means the approval of development that accords with the Development Plan without delay,
unless the policies within a given development plan can be considered to be out of date,
most normally because the plan does not incorporate at least a 5 year land supply or does
not reflect a more recent change to national policy.

The District currently has an up to date Development Plan, the Horsham District Planning
Framework (HDPF) was adopted by the Council in November 2015. The District currently
has a housing land supply of some 5.4 years (equivalent to a 109% supply) and therefore
the policies within the HDPF relating to housing provision are to be considered up to date.
Therefore, as established in the NPPF and at paragraph 38(6) of the 2004 Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act, development that accords with the Development Plan should be
approved without delay unless material considerations, or specific guidance within the
NPPF, indicate otherwise.

Page 39



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

The application site is a key strategic commitment within the adopted Plan and was
specifically considered and found to be sound by the Inspector. Paragraph 69 of his final
report concludes that the Land North of Horsham ‘allocation offers the opportunity to
provide necessary housing, business development and community facilities at a
sustainable location. Overall, the housing and employment benefits of the proposed
allocation would significantly outweigh the disadvantages of the environmental impacts,
which in my view would not be unacceptably severe.’

Land North of Horsham forms one of the HDPFs strategic allocation, as set out in Policy 2.
Policy SD1 then sets outs the key principles of the allocation, with further Policies SD2 to
SD9 giving further specific details of the Council’s development policies for the North of
Horsham site, as follows:

SD2 Employment and Business Opportunities

SD3 Local Centre

SD4 Housing Needs

SD5 Open Space, Sport and Recreation

SD6 Landscape Buffer, Landscape Character, Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure
SD7 Design

SD8 Education

SD9 Transport Infrastructure

The submitted application, whilst having a red line boundary that is not identical with the
boundary as shown on the Land North of Horsham Concept Master Plan (which forms part
of the HDPF) is broadly consistent with it and the disposition of land uses within that area
to deliver a comprehensive mixed use development that meets the requirements of the
allocation.

Policy SD1 sets some 13 general principles of development for the site against which the
submitted proposals should be considered, this section identifies these and provides
consideration as to whether the proposed development meets these requirements.

e The development should form a high quality, sustainable, mixed use community which
reflects the communities’ needs. Through the planning, design, phasing and
infrastructure provided the development should ensure that the future community has
its own identity and character, but have strong, sustainable connections to Horsham.

The scheme as submitted provides a mixed use scheme in compliance with this principle.
The details of its sustainability are discussed elsewhere in this report however, it is relevant
to note that it is broadly compliant with an allocation that was tested against the NPPF by
an Inspector during the Examination of the HDPF. The design, phasing and infrastructure
delivery are matters that are recommended later in this report to be dealt with by planning
conditions, and a Section 106 agreement together with the provision of sustainable
connections to Horsham.

e The development shall be locally distinctive and unique through its architecture, urban
and landscape design, where residents can become involved in their community and
share the benefits of a high quality of life.

The submitted design and access statement and parameter plans provide the details of
proposed densities, building heights, green infrastructure, movement and access giving the
Council considerable and effective powers to guide and control subsequent applications for
approval of reserved matters to accord with those principles established at this outline
stage.

Page 40



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

A planning condition is also recommended that prior to the first submission of a reserved
matters application for a particular phase or part thereof, an ‘area or phase master plan’
shall be submitted to and be approved by the Council, in order to ensure broad compliance
with Policies 32, 33 and SD7of the HDPF. It is envisaged that such master plans will
expand upon the broad based parameter plans and character areas set out within the
design and access statement to ensure that the overarching vision and proposals for the
development remain policy compliant and, importantly, are followed through in detailed
layout and design.

The submission of such phase or sub-phase master plans would also enable the high
guality development proposed by the applicants to be ensured. The applicant’s
submissions include the use of high quality materials and finishes within the development,
which have been reflected within the overall costings for the site. It is therefore necessary
to require that such an appropriate finish and environment is achieved on site, which is to
be secured by condition, as this will ensure compliance with Policies 32 and 33 of the
HDPF.

e The development shall have a legible layout that facilities all modes of sustainable
travel, both within the development area and to provide linkages to the existing urban
area of Horsham, thus reducing the dependency on the car by providing suitable
access to local facilities and services.

The master plan submitted as part of the application is in material conformity to the master
plan for the site within the HDPF. The public transport provisions within the site are to be
secured through the Section 106 agreement, and will reflect the requirements of Policy and
an appropriate mechanism for delivery.

e The impact of the new development on the existing transport network shall be
minimised — development will require new pedestrian and cycle crossing points of the
A264; bus links and an internal network of bus routes; closure of Langhurstwood Road
left in/left out junction onto the A264 and re-alignment of Langhurstwood Road to the
east with a new roundabout junction on the A264; improvements to the Rusper Road
roundabout; a new secondary junction into the development east of Rusper Road;
improvements to the Great Daux roundabout. Old Holbrook is to be retained as a
country lane and not as a vehicular access into the new mixed use community.

The submitted Transport Assessment, master plan and the further modelling submitted
within the most recent additional information has been carefully considered by West
Sussex County Council, as Local Highway Authority, and Highways England, as per their
individual consultation responses summarised above, and form the basis for recommended
planning conditions and appropriate clauses within the Section 106 agreement. A detailed
consideration of the Local Highway Authority and Highways England responses is set out
below in consideration of the application’s compliance with HDPF Policies 39, 40 and 41.

¢ A business park shall be provided in order to enable the opportunity of working locally,
to reflect the needs of the economy.

The application includes a business park of a size and in conformity and location to
principle 5 of Policy SD1 and Policies 7 and SD2 of the HDPF. The application includes a
business park towards the eastern end of the site to provide 46,450 sgm of Use Class B1
floorspace. This location is in accordance with the HDPF Master plan and was considered
by the HDPF Examination Inspector to ‘have great potential to meet a need for modern
space close to the area of highest demand, near Gatwick Airport.’

Use Class B1 incorporates offices, research and development facilities and light industrial
uses. It is proposed that the business park would offer high quality modern spaces across a
range of unit sizes in order to cater for a broad range of market sectors, from start-ups to

Page 41



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

larger commercial operations. The applicants have calculated as part of their submitted
Environmental Statement that the business park could, when fully occupied, provide work
space for some 3,446 employees.

The Council's Economic Development department recognises the need for and strongly
supports the proposed employment site. The new business park is also supported by
Gatwick Diamond, a business-led partnership seeking to promote the area’s strengths and
drive the local economy. Gatwick Diamond comment that the development would help to
address the shortage of high quality employment space, which will aid in retaining and
attracting high value-adding business activity and related jobs. They also state that there is
a pressing need for top-quality employment space in this area.

The development and broad form of the proposed business park would therefore provide
considerable employment opportunities and significantly enhance the commercial
floorspace offer within Horsham District and the wider Gatwick Diamond area. The detailed
design, phasing and delivery of the business park will be controlled through conditions and
the Section 106 legal agreement to ensure that sufficient provision is made early within the
development. The proposal is therefore in accordance with Policies SD1, SD2 and 7 of the
HDPF.

¢ Land to be safeguarded for a parkway railway station and associated uses, adjacent to
the business park, to provide a sustainable form of travel to the wider area.

The application site includes land which is to be safeguarded for a new railway station and
associated parking and connectivity facility to conform with Policy SD9. The new railway
station site and associated parking area will be safeguarded by a clause in the s106 to
preserve the area for that use for an appropriate length of time. The railway station and
associated parking is not a requirement in terms of highway capacity or overall
sustainability for the business park or the residential development to come forward, as
confirmed by the applicants Transport Assessment and WSCC's consultation response. It
also should be noted that the provision of a railway station is not within the power of the
Council or the applicant, as it lies within the control of the Department for Transport in
consultation with Network Rail and the rail operator. It is also noteworthy that the HDPF
Examination Inspector found at paragraph 60 of his report that;

“the location is sustainable at present but would be improved by the provision of a new
station towards the eastern end of the allocated area. While noting the arguments about
the deliverability of another station in close proximity to the previously planned station at
Kilnwood Vale development, the wording of the Plan is suitably flexible in that the
necessary land is safeguarded pending further consultation with the Department for
Transport and Network Rail. The proposal cannot be considered unsound in this respect”

e A Local Centre will be provided which comprises a mix of uses to reflect the needs of
the land at North Horsham allocation area; including shops, health care and community
facilities.

In conformity with this principle of Policy SD1 a Local Centre together with food store retail
floorspace (4,900 sg m) to serve the development and the population more generally of
North Horsham is proposed on the applicants Masterplan. The supporting retail study,
demonstrates that the effect of the new shopping provision will cause no material harm to
the vitality and viability of Horsham Town Centre as a whole. The Council’s retail study
identifies a qualitative deficiency in convenience provision in the North Horsham area,
finding that there is currently capacity for additional convenience floorspace. In this
particular context it should be noted that the level of retail floorspace proposed is supported
by the HDPF Examination Inspector at paragraph 62 of his report. The provision and
potential impact of retail floorspace are considered below.

Page 42



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

The Master Plan includes within the local centre a healthcare facility site as required by
Horsham and Mid Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group. The safeguarding of this site,
along with either the provision of a healthcare facility or contribution towards one, will be
ensured through appropriate clauses within the S106 agreement. The detailed design and
specification of this facility would also be required to be submitted for consideration,
through the legal agreement. Similarly, the provision, size, specification and delivery of the
community centre will also be set out in clauses of the S106 agreement.

¢ Homes with a mix of housing sizes, types and tenures to meet local needs shall be
provided.

This policy is further expanded at Policy SD4 and Policies 15 and 16 of the HDPF. The mix
of housing types, tenures and sizes to meet local needs are proposed as set out above in
the description of development section, and in more detail below. It should be noted that
the percentage of housing for local needs falls below the requirement as set out in Policy
16 of the HDPF, which is discussed further below.

e Two primary schools and a site for a secondary school shall be provided together with
provision for Special Education Needs places for 2-19 year olds.

The application shows compliance with the HDPF Masterplan and Policies SD1 and SD8 in
terms of the location of the education facilities on the site and is therefore Policy compliant
in that respect. The application includes the following proposals:

1. A proportional financial contribution towards post 16 education facilities off site. To
be allocated to The College of Richard Collyer;

2. A proportional contribution towards land and capital cost of a six form entry
secondary school, phased in line with development need, or the provision of such a
facility with a proportionate contribution from West Sussex County Council;

3. Land and capital cost to build a two form entry primary school on the education
campus site, and a one form entry primary school on the western side of the site as,
in line with the development need. The provision of additional land for a fourth form
of entry, should this be required,;

4. Land and capital cost to accommodate 65 early years places within the two primary
school buildings;

5. Provision of land for a Special Educational Needs school, at an appropriate phase
in the development.

Policy SD8 requires the developer to make land available for the education facilities and to
meet the capital cost of construction of the primary schools, early years and special
educational needs provision. The delivery of facilities is required to be phased to ensure
early delivery of an appropriate amount of early years, primary and secondary provision.
West Sussex County Council, as the Local Education Authority, are satisfied that the
applicants proposals are acceptable and that subject to the incorporation of appropriate
obligations in the s106 agreement the scheme is compliant with Policy SD8 of the HDPF-.
The form of the proposed education facilities is discussed further below.

Since the receipt of the consultation response from West Sussex County Council, a
government announcement regarding new free schools was released on 12™ April 2017.
This announcement states that a bid for a new free school to the north of Horsham has
been approved. If funding for a free school at the Land North of Horsham site becomes
available through the Department for Education as a result of this approval, then the
developer will be required to either make a proportionate contribution towards the
construction of this facility (which would be to the Education Funding Agency rather than
WSCC), or reallocate this contribution towards other appropriate community benefits.
These options and possibilities will be controlled through the legal agreement.

Page 43



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

e Open space and sport and recreation facilities shall be provided to meet the needs of
the new community and the wider area and to provide for a balance of development
and landscaped open space.

This site specific principle is further added to by Policy 43 of the HDPF which supports new
community facilities. The supporting text to Policy SD5 requires that there is a provision of
some 3.2 Ha of playing pitches for the development and that a wide range of activities
should be able to be accommodated. This 3.2 Ha figure was derived for some 2500
dwellings but the application will need to deliver some 3.52 Ha for 2750 homes. The
applicant’s submitted Masterplan divides the open space into two functional types:

1. Formal Open space — sports pitches, multi-use games areas (MUGAS), allotments, kick
about areas, skate park and children’s play areas;

2. Informal open space — such as natural and semi natural open space, parks, amenity
space and green corridors

The proposed form and quantum of open space and leisure facilities are considered further
below.

e A strong ‘Landscape Buffer’ shall be provided to the open countryside to provide a
robust and long term, defensible boundary to the development and to avoid perception
of coalescence and to maintain separation between Horsham and Crawley.

The submitted masterplan is broadly compliant with the concept master plan, a constituent
part of the HDPF, together with the applicant's parameter plans illustrating lower density or
no development (cemetery) towards the northern edge of the site, which ensures
compliance with the Development Plan Policy SD1 and this specific principle. It is also
relevant in the context of compliance with Policies SD1, and in particular, SD6 to note that
the applicant’s master plan complies with all of the six sub criteria within that latter policy.
Planning conditions are to be imposed ensuring that designated landscape buffers will be
retained.

Policy 30 of the HDPF requires that major development proposals adjoining protected
areas such as the High Weald AONB are required to demonstrate that there will be no
adverse impacts. The applicants have submitted a Landscape Visual Impact Assessment
(LVIA) as part of the submission. This, along with the overall consideration of landscape
impacts is considered below.

e The development shall take a sequential approach across the site to ensure the most
vulnerable uses are placed in the lowest flood risk zone. This approach will ensure the
most effective risk management measure is applied to the site as a whole. The
development will also make the most of opportunities to manage and reduce flood risk
overall.

The Council's Drainage Engineer and the Environment Agency are satisfied, subject to the
imposition of recommended planning conditions, that the application is in accordance with
this requirement. Drainage and flooding issues are discussed in more detail below.

e The development shall be delivered and laid out in accordance with the concept
Masterplan Map.

The submitted application masterplan is in accordance with this, both in the disposition of
built land uses, safeguarded areas of green space and access arrangements.

Notwithstanding the submitted phasing plan, which covers only the residential parcels, the
applicant will be required, through an appropriate condition, to submit an overall phasing
plan for the site. This plan will cover the entirety of the application site and indicate which

Page 44



6.8

6.9

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

phase and/or sub-phase each area of the business park, open space, community facilities
or landscaping are to be associated with. Requiring this submission will ensure that the
delivery of open spaces and the business park are brought forward at an appropriate time
to serve the needs of the development, its future residents and the economic growth of the
District. Subject to a phasing plan condition, the application is considered compliant with
this aspect of Policy SD1 and delivery of the scheme will be tied to the submitted master
plan.

Form and mix of proposed development

The overall mix and form of dwellings proposed as part of the development is set out
above. The submission includes a range of ‘housing for local need’ as per the requirements
of Policy 16 of the HDPF. This policy seeks to deliver a range of housing types, sizes and
tenures in order to meet the needs of the District's communities, as evidenced by the most
recent Strategic Housing Market Assessment. Policy 16 expects that, on sites providing 15
or more dwellings, that 35% of these should be affordable. However, this policy also
advises that the Council will assess each scheme’s viability in seeking this affordable
housing provision. This approach follows that of the Planning Practice Guidance, which
states that a site will only be ‘viable if the value generated by its development exceeds the
costs of developing it and also provides sufficient incentive for the land to come forward
and the development to be undertaken.’

As established above, the applicant proposes a total of 30% of housing for local needs,
with 18% constituting affordable housing of the form anticipated through the supporting text
to Policy 16 (i.e. affordable rented units and shared ownership units). The remaining 12%,
to make up the overall 30%, would be formed of a mix of private rented units, discount
market units and custom/self-build units. These types of unit reflect the wider affordable
housing definition currently being consulted on through the Housing White Paper. The
breakdown of this is shown in the table below:

Housing for Local Needs (size and tenure) Number
Affordable Rented units 350
- 1 bed apartments 41
- 2 bed apartments 91
- 2 bed houses 189
- 3 bed houses 29
Shared Ownership units 145
- 1 bed apartments 36
- 2 bed apartments 53
- 2 bed houses 35
- 3 bed houses 18
- 4 bed houses 3
Discount Market units 100
- 1 bed apartments 2
- 2 bed apartments 5
- 2 bed houses 12
- 3 bed houses 38
- 4 bed houses 38
- 5 bed houses 5
Private Rented units 200

Page 45



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

- 1 bed apartments 90
- 2 bed apartments 102
- 3 bed apartments 8
Custom/Self-Build units 30
- 2 bed houses 3
- 3 bed houses 15
- 4 bed houses 10
- 5bed houses 2
Total Housing for Local Needs 825

The applicant has submitted a viability appraisal for the proposed development in support
of the reduced level of affordable housing provision. This appraisal has been independently
reviewed, queried and assessed by the Council’s appointed specialists. The result being
that whilst the advisors highlight some areas of disagreement, as set out in their report on
the applicants submitted viability, they acknowledge that the level of viability of housing for
local needs on sites of this size and duration is an inexact science. It is also apparent that
the applicant’s appraisal accounts for a high quality development form and this will
therefore need to be ensured in order for the appraisal to represent an accurate
interpretation of development costs. This, along with the delivery of the affordable units, will
be ensured through conditions and the s106 agreement, which will also contain
mechanisms to review the development as it progresses such that the applicant’s viability
can be tested at appropriate intervals and any underspend on the provision of
infrastructure or additional receipts for land sales or increased rental receipts on the
business space on the development can be appropriately diverted into additional housing
for local needs.

The affordable rented units and shared ownership homes will assist in meeting a clear
need within the District for people who are unable to access housing through the open
market. However, it is also recognised that the definition of affordable housing within the
NPPF is intended to be amended (likely later this year following the Housing White Paper)
to include a number of additional forms of housing tenure. The proposed provision of
discount market units, private rented units and custom/self-build units will also assist to
meet the needs of a proportion of the local population. The Council has a current register
for those seeking a custom/self-build plot (totalling 145 No. at the time of writing, of which
87 No. are current residents of the District). The provision of 30 No. custom/self-build units
within the development will therefore address part of this requirement.

There is also known to be a level of demand for private rented units for those who don’t
wish to purchase, such as the growing professional transient population. The provision of
these forms of tenure are therefore considered to be appropriate and whilst not falling
within the current definition of affordable housing, would assist in meeting the housing
needs of the local population. The overall outcome of the viability assessment indicates
that the total level and mix of affordable/local needs housing is not unreasonable given the
scale of development, the very considerable infrastructure costs, provision of the business
park and the promoted level of quality for the development. The Council's Head of Housing
Services is in agreement that whilst a greater proportion of affordable rented and shared
ownership units would be preferable, the proposal amounts to a reasonable position given
the viability of the development and the current funding difficulties of Registered Providers.

The proposed mix of market housing units (set out above) does not completely accord with
the needs assessment of market housing mix undertaken for Horsham District Council and
Crawley Borough Council. Paragraph 7.15 and Policy SD4 of the HDPF requires a

range/mix of housing sizes, types and tenures. Policy SD4 recognises that flexibility will be

Page 46



6.14

6.15

6.16

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

required as the mix is likely to differ between phases and sub phases. The HDPF does not
require a particular mix of market housing, however the subsequent report (the Chilmark
Consulting ‘Market Housing Mix’ report November 2016) confirms the need across the
District for a higher proportion of smaller 1 and 2 bedroom units rather than larger 4 and 5
bedroom units. It is acknowledged that this assessment is broadly based and it is the
applicant’s view that the market mix proposed in the application is based on specialist
advice appropriate for the application site and relevant experience elsewhere, which lends
itself to family housing, a form of development for which there is considerable demand. The
applicants also draw attention to the growth in the use of permitted development rights to
permit the re-use of office buildings in locations such as the town centre of Horsham to
provide smaller homes, well located to transport, services and entertainment. In the period
2011 to 2016 the applicants have calculated that within Horsham town centre some 537
homes have been permitted of which some 95% were either studio, one or two bedroomed
flats.

The applicant’s response therefore asserts that the provision of larger family housing is
more appropriate to this ‘edge of settlement’ site than smaller units. It is acknowledged that
the Market Housing Mix report separates market need into only two categories, namely
Horsham Town and Rural Areas/Smaller Towns. The location of the application site to the
northern edge of Horsham does not easily fall within either category, with both areas
displaying specific characteristics which would be unlikely to be replicated on a new large
scale development to the edge of an existing town. It is Officer’s view on this matter, having
regard to the status, form and date of the evidence base, the longevity of the application
site and the flexibility built into an outline application by use of planning conditions, coupled
with the emergence of smaller housing units within the town centre, that strict adherence
with the broad evidence based market housing mix is not necessarily appropriate in this
instance and circumstances.

In terms of density of development, the submitted parameter plan indicates that the highest
levels of residential density (up to 60 dwellings per hectare (dph)) would be located around
the local centre and to the north of the A264, with the lowest density areas (up to 20 dph)
set around the periphery of the site. The densities across the residential parcels would vary
between the aforementioned highest and lowest, however, it should be noted that the
densities shown on the parameter plan relate only to the residential parcels and not reflect
the considerable areas of open space and landscaping both within and around the
development. Whilst the highest density would be somewhat greater than those existing
properties to the northern edge of Horsham (~35dph around the Ropeland Way/Meadow
Farm Lane area), this is not considered inappropriate given the nature of the development
proposed and the requirement to make efficient use of the land available. Furthermore, the
existing dwellings to the northern edge of Horsham would not be seen in context with the
proposed development, due to the A264 and landscape buffers, and as such it is not
considered that the form and density of the proposal is unacceptable. For comparison, the
Land West of Worthing Road, Southwater development shows a density of up to 59dph.

The proposed maximum building heights of the development is indicated on the submitted
parameter plans. This shows that across the residential parcels, development is proposed
to be restricted to a maximum of 15m in height (3-4 storeys max), but with the majority of
the areas to be restricted to 12m in height (2.5 storeys) or 10m in height (2 storeys). The
proposed educational facilities would also be limited to 12m, the local centre and retalil
elements to 15m and the business park limited to 16m. Whilst a sub-phase comprising all 4
storey dwellings could appear excessive, it should be noted that the parameter plan only
sets the limitations and phases and sub-phases would be likely to be brought forward with
a range of building sizes and styles in order to create an attractive and varied development.
The scale of the proposed commercial and business units is considered to be appropriate
given the nature of these uses and the potential need to accommodate specific internal
arrangements. It is considered therefore that the parameters established here in respect of

Page 47



6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

building heights is not inappropriate and the full details of scale and associated context will
be controlled through reserved matters applications.

As identified within Policy 15 of the HDPF, where the development renders the provision of
35% of dwellings as affordable housing unviable, this level can be reviewed. In addition,
the PPG advises that planning obligations, and in particular affordable housing obligations
(as these are often the largest single item) should not be sought without regard to individual
scheme viability. Therefore, given the independently assessed level of viability across the
proposed development, calculated on the basis of a 30% provision of housing for local
needs (18% affordable rented and shared ownership), it is considered that the proposed
affordable housing offer is, on balance, acceptable and accords with both the NPPF, the
advice of the PPG and Policies SD4 and 16 of the HDPF.

Transport issues

The NPPF at section 4, together with Policy 39 of the HDPF requires that the release of
land for development will be dependent on there being sufficient capacity in the existing
local infrastructure to meet the additional requirements arising from new development or
that suitable necessary improvements can be provided to serve the development to
safeguard new and existing local residents, to be brought forward at the relevant phase of
the development, and secured by condition or legal agreement.

Policy 40 goes on to confirm a commitment to providing sustainable transport connections
within new developments, and promotes an integrated transport network favouring non-car
modes of transport.

Policy SD9 relates specifically to the application site, and confirms that the development
should include the following:

¢ New and safer pedestrian and cycle crossing points of the A264;

e Access for buses to ensure the site is linked with existing residential areas of North
Horsham;

e A comprehensive internal network of roads to accommodate bus routes across the
site;

e Safeguarded land for a new railway station and associated parking;

The closure and realignment of Langhurstwood Road to the east, together with new

roundabout junction to the A264;

An upgraded Rusper Road roundabout;

A new secondary junction to the east of Rusper Road;

Improvements to both the Great Daux and Moorhead roundabouts; and

Other measures to specifically mitigate the impact of the development on the strategic

and local road networks, including outside the District.

This policy goes on to require the submission of a comprehensive Transport Assessment
as well as a Travel Plan Strategy discouraging through traffic along the rural roads.

Highway works

Access is being fully considered as part of this application, and as such this includes the
connections to the strategic road network within the application site area; these are:

e A new roundabout where the re-aligned Langhurstwood Road meets the A264. This
will be a signalised, multi modal junction, including a prioritised bus link into the
development from the south and a footbridge providing pedestrian and cycle links into
the development.

Page 48



6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

e A new 4 arm roundabout where the newly aligned Langhurstwood Road meets the
existing at its junction with Mercer Road.

e An upgraded roundabout where the Rusper Road meets the A264. This is to be
signalised and will include a footbridge providing pedestrian and cycle links into the
development.

e A new signalised left in/left out junction to be located on the A264, approximately
midway between the improved Rusper Road and the existing Moorhead roundabouts.

e An access for emergency vehicles only (also to provide non-vehicular links into the
site) on Wimland Road (just north of where this meets Chennells Brook).

As such, all of the above road improvements are being considered for full permission at this
stage and any Reserved Matters submissions will be required to be in complete conformity
with these layouts.

In addition to the above, the proposal also sets out the approximate location of the primary
and secondary roads which will be located within the development. These are identified on
the Parameter Plan: Movement and Access.

One of the proposed primary roads is to cross Rusper Road, approximately mid-way along
this road, and it is proposed to install a 4 arm roundabout for which full permission is how
sought, where these roads will meet. This same road will then link through the development
to the west, and will cross Old Holbrook, where improvements are planned to limit this to an
east/west crossing only, and features are to be installed to restrict turning north or south
onto Old Holbrook, and likewise east/west through the development from Old Holbrook.

The Movement and Access Parameter Plan details the route of the main primary road
throughout the site. In essence this begins at the new Langhurstwood/Mercer Road
roundabout, with a link down to the new Langhurstwood/A264 roundabout, travelling east
through the site, crossing Old Holbrook and further east to the new Rusper Road
roundabout, where it also travels north/south along the existing Rusper Road to the A264
to the south and out of the development to the north. The primary road then continues to
the east creating a loop through the eastern extremity of the site, and the business park,
linking to the new left in/left out junction on the A264.

It is worth noting that the eastern link of the primary access also shows a north/south
connection between two roundabouts, this is not forming part of this approval as it has not
been adequately justified, to the satisfaction of Officers, that it is essential, and its route
intersects a portion of ancient woodland, and as such a condition forms part of this
recommendation detailing that permission is not given for this link.

This parameter plan also includes details of the secondary roads, which link the parcels of
land to be developed to the primary road network, as described above.

Details of the proposed new bridleways, cycle and pedestrian routes through the site are
also shown in order to demonstrate the level of connectivity across, and through the site.
There will be more localised pathways and routes to come forward in addition to these
strategic routes shown, the detail of which will be provided at the Reserved Matters stage
of each phase.

Any further Reserved Matters submissions for each phase and/or sub-phase, will need to
include road layouts through the site, both primary and secondary, that are in general
conformity with those set out on the submitted parameter plan.

Policy SD1 of the HDPF requires the development to be constructed in general conformity
with the concept Masterplan, which is included in the HDPF at Appendix 2.

Page 49



6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

6.37

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

The Movement and Access Parameter Plan includes the required features, including the
new junctions and crossings of the A264, and the vehicular and pedestrian accesses are all
in conformity with the concept Masterplan.

There are also a number of off-site highways works that are proposed to mitigate the
anticipated impact of the development. These works include the following:

e Great Daux Roundabout (A24/A264) — a financial contribution to allow for the inclusion
of an additional entry arm and circulatory lane on the roundabout)

¢ Bewbush Manor Roundabout (A264) — a financial contribution to allow for traffic
mitigation measures to be implemented, potentially signalising of the roundabout, to be
monitored as per the requirements for the Kilnwood Vale development, who will jointly
contribute to these improvement works.

¢ Robin Hood Roundabout (A24) — a financial contribution to allow for traffic mitigation
measures to be implemented, potentially signalising of the roundabout, to be monitored
as per the requirements for the West of Horsham development, who will jointly
contribute to these improvement works.

e Traffic Regulation Order (A264 between Great Daux and Moorhead) — to enable the
reduction of the speed limit to be agreed once the works to the A264 have been
completed.

o Moorhead Roundabout (A264) — signalising of the roundabout, as well as additional
traffic islands along the B2195 to prevent queuing in the right turning lane

¢ Hop Oast Roundabout (A24) — creation of additional lanes on both A24 arms and the
B2237 Worthing Road arm

e Rusper Road/Lemmington Road Roundabout — increasing the flare on the Rusper
Road north arm

¢ Roffey Corner Traffic Signals — the Highways Authority are amending these traffic
signals to use intelligent signals (auto adjusting to reflect traffic levels) which should
improve traffic flow. However this is to be monitored to ensure that no additional works
are required, and if so, these will be agreed with the Highways Authority and provided
by the applicant through a Section 278 agreement

e Faygate Roundabout (A264) — Improvements to be made to this, likely to increase the
flares on the approaches, but full details to be secured following monitoring of the
situation to ensure no undue impact on more localised traffic using Tower Road and
Faygate Lane

e Crawley Road Roundabout (adjacent Horsham Volkswagen) — increasing the flare on
the approaches to the roundabout

e Underpass under the A264 (adjacent to the Horsham/Crawley railway line) and
Riverside Walk — surfacing and lighting improvements

e A23/M23 Junction 11 — improvements to increase the flare of the approaches to the
motorway

As such the submitted scheme meets the highways requirements set out by HDPF Policies
SD1 and SD9 and the concept Masterplan.

The application has been supported by the required Highways documents, including a
comprehensive Transport Assessment (TA), including associated Safety Audits and an
overarching Travel Plan.

Following initial comments by West Sussex County Council Highways, and as a result of
amendments to the scheme, the Highways documents have been amended to reflect these
changes and to respond to initial comments raised.

The TA includes full details of the proposed trip generation arising from the development

(together with all existing and committed developments), in association with national
TRICS database standards, and the routing of these additional trips detailing how they

Page 50



6.38

6.39

6.40

6.41

6.42

6.43

6.44

6.45

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

would impact on the local highway network. WSCC Highways have fully reviewed this
document, and it is concluded that, with the full package of highway works proposed, that
the impact on the highway would be acceptable. All of the measures set out above shall be
appropriately secured through the permission, either relevant planning conditions or the
legal agreement.

The is, therefore, no objection to the proposed development from WSCC Highways, the
Local Highway Authority, acknowledging that the proposed mitigation measures secured
will ensure that the local highway network can sufficiently accommodate the predicted
increase in traffic arising from the development.

There is an acknowledgement that throughout the road network existing traffic means that
it is operating with high levels. However, the development is not required to fix or remedy
existing highways issues, only issues that arise as a result of the development proposed.
However the mitigation works proposed will improve the existing situation, allowing for
quicker journey times than experienced at present.

In addition to the above, additional monitoring works are to be required and these are also
secured as part of this recommendation. These include the following:

e Traffic levels using the rural lanes to the north of the development, if increases are
found, appropriate mitigation measure will be required.

e Pedestrian crossing demands at Old Holbrook (commencing in Phase 3) and if
required, implementation of pedestrian crossing improvements.

¢ Parking demands around Littlehaven Railway Station, if increases are found, the
applicant shall secure measures to mitigate any highway safety issues, for example
the implementation of a Traffic Regulation Order.

Public Transport

The scheme includes land to be safeguarded for the provision of a new railway station
within the development. A railway station itself is not being secured, as the applicant
cannot secure the delivery of this, which rests with the Department for Transport, in
association with Network Rail and the train service provider. The applicant is keen to
secure such a facility, with associated parking, and as such the application allows for this to
be delivered, with the land for this facility and associated car parking, to be safeguarded for
20 years.

In order to promote sustainable development, to integrate effectively with the main urban
centre of Horsham to the south and to meet policy requirements, it is also important to
secure a bus service into and out of the site.

In the early phases of the development, it is unlikely, due to limited passenger numbers,
that such a service would be viable to be operated by the local bus service providers.
However, it is important that such a service is implemented from an appropriate point
during the development to allow for the earlier occupiers of the site to travel sustainably.

As such, a contribution is secured, which forms part of the s106 agreement, to subsidise
the provision of a bus service in the initial periods, prior to it becoming commercially viable
in its own right.

Pedestrian, cycle and other accessibility
The application site is crossed by a number of existing Public Rights of Way (PRoW),

footpaths and bridleways. These are shown on the Movement and Access Parameter Plan,
and are to be retained and extended.

Page 51



6.46

6.47

6.48

6.49

6.50

6.51

6.52

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

In addition to these, the development would also create new footpaths and designated
cycle routes throughout the development, which are to be linked to the existing routes
surrounding the development, including across the A264 (as detailed above) to provide
links into Horsham itself and also link into the existing Horsham to Crawley cycle routes.

These proposed alterations and enhancements are considered to be acceptable and no
objections have been raised by WSCC in their capacity as the Local Highway Authority or
in respect of PRoW, on these matters.

Parking

This application is in outline form, and as such details for the car parking provision for each
of the individual units are not provided at this stage, as these details would form part of any
Reserved Matters submission.

It is considered that the proposed layout of the development is acceptable in terms of
vehicular, pedestrian and cycle access and connectivity. It is also considered that the
proposed off-site highway, cycle and connectivity improvement works would adequately
address any impacts arising from the movements generated by the development and that
the development would be appropriately integrated into the local transport network and
would therefore be considered sustainable in this regard.

Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that ‘development should only be prevented or refused
on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe”
WSCC Highways have not raised any objection to the proposed development in terms of
any impact upon highway capacity or safety issues. It is therefore considered that the
proposal would accord with the requirements of the NPPF and with Policies 39, 40, SD1
and SD9 of the HDPF.

Impact upon the character, appearance and landscape of the surrounding area and
biodiversity issues

Policy SD6 of the HDPF requires a strong landscape buffer to be provided between the
development and the open countryside, not only to create a defensible boundary to the
development, but also to avoid any perception of coalescence and maintain separation to
Crawley. The HDPF Examination Inspector, at paragraph 64 of his report, notes:

‘The proposed development area on largely flat land below the wooded ridgeline to the
north would create a defensible boundary, would not result in the loss of landscape of
particularly high value... By and large the site is visually separate from the High Weald
AONB to the south west... from my inspection of the surroundings, | consider the setting of
the AONB would be protected. The distance between the new development and the
western edge of Crawley would be reduced from about 3.5km to 3km but would be
sufficient for the separate identities of both towns to be retained.’

The site lies within the National Character Area Profile No. 121 ‘Low Weald’ area and
predominantly within the locally designated ‘Area K2 — Faygate and Warnham Vale’
character area of the Horsham District Landscape Character Assessment (2003). The
immediate surroundings to the site fall within ‘Area 12 — Warnham and Rusper Wooded
Ridges’, ‘Area L1 — St Leonards Forest’, ‘Area P1 — Upper Arun Valley’, and ‘Horsham and
Broadbridge Heath Settlement Area’. A number of the key characteristics of the Area K2
are relevant to the application site, including flat to gently undulating clay vale; medium to
large scale field pattern of arable farmland; isolated patches of woodland; dominance of
major road and rail communication routes; visual intrusion in parts from retail and industrial
areas, housing and sand and gravel workings. Area K2 is assessed as having a moderate

Page 52



6.53

6.54

6.55

6.56

6.57

6.58

6.59

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

sensitivity to change, reflective of its mostly moderate intervisibility and only moderate
intrinsic landscape quality.

As highlighted by the Council’s Landscape Architect in their response, the creation of a
large scale development in any location would be likely to give rise to harmful landscape
impacts to some degree. As identified above by the HDPF Inspector and characteristics of
the Area K2 categorisation, the generally low lying topography and gently undulating form
of the landscape together with the expanses of woodland both within and adjacent to the
site, serve to curtail middle and longer distance views of the site and provide a degree of
enclosure.

Despite the large scale of the development proposed, the visual effects would be contained
within a relatively limited area, with the vast majority of public views being from within the
site itself. The assessment of surrounding areas provided by the applicant suggests that
the proposal would have limited direct effects on these surrounding character areas or
designation, with this restricted to small localised enclosed areas within the immediate
vicinity of the site. The proposal includes the provision of landscape buffers, of up to 30m in
width, around the edges of the site. These buffers would ensure an appropriate transition to
the surrounding areas and provide screening of considerable parts of the site from the
wider area. The landscape buffer areas will also provide open spaces, play areas,
sustainable drainage features and earth mounding. The applicant’s submitted Landscape
and Visual Impact Assessment has been reviewed by the Council's Landscape Architect,
who considers that the overall approach and conclusions of this document are acceptable.

The development can be appropriately controlled through conditions to ensure that
sufficient landscape buffers and mitigation measures are incorporated into the
development. The development would not therefore result in any significantly adverse
impacts upon the High Weald AONB or other surrounding landscapes and would be
compliant with Policies SD6, 25 and 30 of the HDPF.

The Examination Inspector in his consideration of the HDPF found, at paragraph 65, that:

‘There is no evidence of sensitive ecological habitat or protected species across the open
farmland which comprises the majority of the site; other existing habitats along hedgerows
and watercourses are safeguarded by the master plan and could be fully protected at the
detailed design stage. Substantial areas of open space would be retained alongside Old
Holbrook and a nature park, incorporating Bush Copse ancient woodland, would be
created in low lying land liable to flood'.

The application contains significant survey material and the Environmental Statement
considers that the impact of development would not produce significant effects, including
during construction. The applicant’'s assessment, mirroring the HDPF Examination
Inspector’s views, considers that the completion of the development will result in a number
of ecological benefits. The applicants consider alterations to existing habitats, and effects
on Ancient Woodland, will be minimised, and the woodland streams, the Sites of
Conservation Interest and water bodies will be protected by means of landscape buffers as
shown on the applicants Master plan and commented upon, referring to a broadly
consistent HDPF concept Masterplan, by the HDPF Examination Inspector.

The creation of a nature park as well as an ecological network of green space throughout
the site will ensure that wildlife can continue to utilise and move through these features.

A planning condition forms part of this recommendation to ensure compliance with the
HDPF policy in these respects. The individual future applications for approval of reserved
matters will need to be informed by the individual area master plans that are to be required
by planning condition and will need to be compliant with any outline permission conditions
relating to ecology, and provisions secured within the s106.

Page 53



6.60

6.61

6.62

6.63

6.64

6.65

6.66

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

HDC'’s Consultant Ecologist has commented in some detail on the submissions and
revisions. It is noted that some further on-going bat activity surveys are required as they
previously could not be completed due to the seasonality of the survey period. These
surveys are being completed during April and May this year, and will be submitted and fully
considered prior to a final determination of the application. The outcome of the further
survey work will also need to be incorporated into the applicant’s ‘Outline Ecological
Mitigation and Management Plan’ and recommended planning conditions may need to
subsequently be updated to reflect any additional information provided at that stage.

As part of on-going discussions with the applicants the two areas on the site where the
master plan shows internal roads cutting through existing ancient woodland have been the
subject of further study by the applicants, producing an options appraisal in respect of each
proposed road link (hereafter referred to as the eastern and western links). The document
includes the applicants consideration of potential alternative routes, and the justification for
using the routes originally proposed.

Turning first to the western link through ancient woodland (Morris’ Wood) situated towards
the north west of the site. This route follows an existing concrete track leading between two
separate sections of designated ancient woodland through to two large commercial storage
units. The existing track would only require limited widening to enable the provision of the
western link, which at the point between the two sections of ancient woodland would be
restricted to single file traffic with adjacent footway.

The creation of this western link would require the removal of a small number of trees
which currently lie immediately adjacent to the existing track, but would also include a piece
of land which is currently affected by Japanese Knotweed, an invasive species which will
need to be dug out and removed. This removal would, in itself, constitute a significant
environmental benefit.

It is considered that given the short length of the link that would be required, the existing
separation of the ancient woodland into two parcels, the very limited impact upon existing
vegetation to either side of the current track, and the beneficial removal of an invasive
species the proposed western link is on balance acceptable. The road can be designed to
utilise low impact construction methods, which can be ensured through the detailed design
at reserved matters stage. The applicants have produced a plan illustrating that such an
approach is achievable.

The proposed eastern link cutting through Bush Copse, the other area of ancient woodland
affected, would result in the loss of some 885sgm of plantation on ancient woodland and
some 135sgm of ancient semi natural woodland (ASNW). Having considered the applicants
justification for this route, based on efficiency and the alternative routings considered, it is
not considered that it has been appropriately and adequately demonstrated that there are
no acceptable alternatives to the creation of this link route through a stretch of ancient
woodland.

It is considered that in this particular area the proposals on the submitted master plan and
parameter plans are not acceptable as they would fail to protect and preserve the ancient
woodland and adjacent habitats, and it has not been shown that there is any overriding
public benefit that would warrant this level of impact. Unlike the western link, this area
comprises an intact expanse of designated ancient woodland and there are no indications
of environmental improvements that would be delivered should this link be created.
Therefore, whilst shown on the submitted plans, this eastern link is not considered
acceptable and a planning condition is subsequently recommended to ensure that any
permission granted does not include this feature. This view is consistent with the responses
on this matter by Natural England and by the Woodland Trust.

Page 54



6.67

6.68

6.69

6.70

6.71

6.72

6.73

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

From a consideration of consultation responses and the applicants submitted material
under the auspices of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 it is
clear that protected species, great crested newts, bats and dormice will be impacted to a
degree. The submitted information shows that there is the potential for the site to support
Barbastrelle bats, a very rare UK Biodiversity Action Plan species. Following discussions
with the Council's consultant Ecologist further information relating to this species has been
submitted by the applicant. The information confirms that whilst Barbastrelles were
identified during bat surveys, no roosts have been found on the application site. The
Ecologist is of the view that the submitted Masterplan provides a sufficient level of flexibility
to ensure that appropriate buffers, lighting controls and dark corridors can be secured at
the detailed Reserved Matters stage to ensure that the population of this species is
maintained at a favourable conservation status.

However the tests that planning permission should be withheld are not met, namely:

a) That the development is likely to result in a breach of the EU directive that underpins
the UK regulation.

b) That a licence from Natural England is unlikely to be granted to allow development to
proceed.

There is no reason to assume that such a licence would be withheld, as the following tests
are passed:

1. The development must be for an overriding public interest — in this case the
satisfaction of Development Plan policy.

2. The development has no satisfactory alternative location — the HDPF Examination
Inspector’s consideration of the site and its subsequent designation in a Development
Plan satisfies this test.

3. That the development will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of
the species concerned — based on the information provided, it is considered that this
criteria can be appropriately met.

It is considered that the three tests above are passed subject to appropriate conditions that
are as recommended by the Council’'s consultant Ecologist and that the development is
therefore acceptable and is compliant with HDPF Policy 31.

Impact on nearby heritage assets and their setting

The NPPF confirms (at paragraph 132) that great weight should be given to the
conservation of heritage assets (including listed buildings and scheduled monuments), as
required by the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, and that the
more important the asset the greater the weight should be.

Paragraph 134 of the NPPF then goes on to confirm that “where a development proposal
will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset,
this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing
its optimum viable use”.

Policy 34 of the HDPF recognises that heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource, and
as such the Council will sustain and enhance the historic environment through positive
management of development. It goes on to require appropriate archaeological
investigation, recording and reporting as appropriate to the scale of the associated impact.

The applicants have submitted a full Heritage Statement to accompany the application, and
this concludes that the site:

e Has potential for archaeological deposits

Page 55



6.74

6.75

6.76

6.77

6.78

6.79

6.80

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

e Contains a number of historic hedgerows
e Contains, or lies adjacent to designated heritage assets including scheduled
monuments and listed buildings.

As such a range of measures, to be secured by condition, to mitigate any impact arising will
be necessary.

Listed Buildings
There are 8 listed buildings that would be impacted by the development, these are:

Brook House (Grade II)

Holbrook Park (Grade II)

Holbrook Park House (Grade II)

Hollywick Farmhouse (Grade II)

The Moated House (Grade II)

Hawksbourne Farmhouse (Grade II)

King’'s Farmhouse (Grade II)

Barn to the south-west of Brook House (Grade II)

The potential impact on the setting of these Listed Buildings, as their rural context will be
partly lost, is reduced due to previous and existing development in the vicinity and
alterations to the historic landscape and character of the area within which they are
located. The settings of these assets have therefore lost much of their original and historic
heritage significance.

The original setting of Brook House, its Barn and King’s Farmhouse has been changed
considerably. The application site will be separated from these buildings by a strip of
farmland and a wide landscape buffer with tree planting.

Holbrook Park and Holbrook Park House’s setting is limited to the designed landscape in
which they are located, this is inward looking and their setting will remain unaffected by the
development. In the case of Hollywick Farmhouse, the rural setting will be replaced by
residential development immediately beyond the curtilage. However this former farmhouse
has been degraded by its development as a well-appointed dwelling set in landscaped
grounds with modern additions such as a swimming pool.

The Moated House’s enclosure will be preserved as will its open environs to the south and
north. Although this asset lies in the centre of an open landscape, this is a modern
landscape replacing a more intimate field pattern. The existing modern agricultural
buildings do not add to the setting, reducing the historic character of the asset.

Hawkesbourne Farmhouse is now a dwelling separated from its former farmstead setting,
the immediate setting of this asset will be protected in a buffer zone with views southward
into the open playing fields of the school campus.

It is also noted that the detail of the development, at this stage, is high level, being in
outline form only. The more detailed consideration of any potential impacts upon the setting
of these listed buildings will be undertaken at Reserved Matters stage where the precise
relationship will then be known between the listed buildings and the built form of the
proposed development. Whilst the detail of the relationship between heritage assets and
the development is not finalised at this stage, the Heritage Statement and submitted details
indicate that appropriate and acceptable levels of buffers, screening and separation can be
achieved to ensure that any harm to these assets is less than substantial. Whilst less than
substantial harm to a designated asset must be given great weight in the consideration of a
proposal, the strategic importance and public benefits of delivering development on this

Page 56



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

allocated site attract very significant weight. It is considered that the proposed development
of up to 2,750 homes, a business park and associated uses on this site outweighs the
limited, less than substantial harm to the setting of heritage assets that would arise, and
can be satisfactorily controlled and minimised through Reserved Matters applications.

Page 57



6.81

6.82

6.83

6.84

6.85

6.86

6.87

6.88

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Scheduled Monuments

There are three Scheduled Monuments either within, of adjacent to, the application site
boundary. These are:

e The Castle Moated Site (just outside the northeast site boundary)

e The Motte and Bailey Castle (just outside the southern site boundary, adjacent to the
Rusper Road/A264 roundabout)

¢ Moated Site to the West of Graylands Copse (within the western extremity of the
application site)

The Castle Moated Site to the east is located outside the application site itself. The
Parameter Plan: Land Use confirms that there is to be a significant landscape buffer on the
inside of the development boundary, together with other green infrastructure immediately to
the west of the monument. In addition, an open play area is located beyond this which
allows for a significant piece of open space to ensure that there would be no harmful
impact on the setting of this Scheduled Monument.

The Motte and Bailey Castle is located outside the application site, just south of the Rusper
Road/A264 roundabout. This roundabout is to be significantly enhanced and enlarged as
part of the scope of the application. These works are all located to the north of the existing
A264 and existing roundabout, thus will be located further from the Scheduled Monument.
There is to be a footbridge over the roundabout for pedestrian and cycle use, and this has
been designed and located as to ensure no harmful impact on the monument also. As
such, there would be no harmful impact on the setting of this Scheduled Monument.

The Moated Site to the West of Graylands Copse is the only Scheduled Monument that is
located within the application site. This is situated to the western site boundary, alongside
the existing Langhurstwood Road. The Parameter Plan: Land Use confirms that a large
portion of land surrounding this will be dedicated to green infrastructure, with the proposed
cemetery located to the north. As there will be no built form surrounding this, it is
considered that there would be no undue impact arising from the development.

Historic Parkscapes
There are two historic parkscapes within the application site, these are:

e Graylands
e Holbrook Park

The impact on these parkscapes will radically alter their appearance, as part of these will
be given over to developable area. This is as per the concept Masterplan which forms part
of the site allocation as designated in the HDPF, and the Parameter Plan: Land Use is in
conformity with that. As such this alteration to the character was set in principle at that
stage.

It is acknowledged that in making the site allocation, consideration was given to this impact,
and this position remains unchanged now. The parkscape of both of the above areas does
not survive as any readable historic feature or interest and as such the development of
these is considered to be acceptable.

Archaeology

The application site contains 4 areas of archaeological importance. These are:

¢ Arectangular area within existing fields to the west of The Castle
e The wider area around the west of Graylands Copse

Page 58



6.89

6.90

6.91

6.92

6.93

6.94

6.95

6.96

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

e The area around The Moated House
e An alleged moat at Bush Lane

The application has been supported by a desk based archaeological assessment. This
indicated that there is potential for buried archaeological deposits to be present within the
site. This may include:

e Early prehistoric date artefacts, Mesolithic and Palaeolithic in relation to former river
terrace gravel deposits

e Later prehistoric and Romano-British deposits across the site

¢ Medieval and post-medieval deposits in proximity to known areas of historic settlement

As such, and in order to meet the requirements of the NPPF and the HDPF, conditions
form part of this recommendation to require a programme of test pitting and trial trenching
to provide further information on unidentified archaeological deposits, to be undertaken
prior to each sub-phase commencing.

The proposal will have an impact on some of the designated heritage assets that lie within
the site. This is inevitable for a development of this scale. Much of this impact was
assessed and considered in detail during the course of the Examination in Public
associated with the site allocation as part of the HDPF-.

This application is in outline form only, and thus the main impact arises from how the site
could be laid out, particularly in relation to the larger designated assets. In these cases the
layout has confirmed that there would be no undue harm, commensurate to the scale of the
public improvements arising from the development.

The more detailed impact, for example in relation to existing listed buildings, will be
considered at Reserved Matters stages within each sub-phase submission, where the full
detail of the relationship will be known, and thus can be fully considered.

As such the proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of its relationship with the
designated historic assets and is in full accordance with the NPPF and the HDPF.

Leisure, Open Space and Community Facilities

In addition to the principle established in Policy SD1, Policy SD5 of the HDPF seeks to
provide high quality formal and informal open space that is comprehensively designed and
varied in scale and form to complement the development as a whole. Furthermore, Policies
SD6 and 31 of the HDPF set out to maintain or enhance green Infrastructure.

The proposed development would include the following in terms of open space, green
infrastructure and leisure facilities:

- Formal sports pitches;

- Sports changing facilities;

- Multi-use games areas (MUGAS);

- Skate park;

- Youth activity facility;

- 3 No. Neighbourhood equipped areas of play (NEAPS);
- Landscaped local area of play (LLAP);
- Open access ball courts;

- Teen adventure play;

- Green corridors with trim trails;

- Informal pitches;

Page 59



6.97

6.98

6.99

6.100

6.101

6.102

6.103

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

- Parks;

- Natural green space;
- Allotments;

- Cemetery.

The overall level, provision and variety of sports, open space and leisure facilities accords
with the requirements established through the HDPF Masterplan and are supported by the
Council’s Community and Culture department.

The Council’s Sport, Open Space and Recreation Assessment (February 2014) indicates
that a total provision of 22.52 hectares should be provided, based upon 2750 dwellings and
an anticipated population of 6600 people. The application proposes a total of 45.28
hectares of space, with the requirement for each category being met or over-provided for.
Sport England have confirmed that the detailed design of the development should meet the
requirements of the national governing bodies for tennis, cricket, hockey and football in
order to most appropriately meet the needs of local amenity groups and an expanding
population. Sport England do not raise an objection to the proposal and appropriate
specifications and timings for delivery of the sports facilities will be secured through the
legal agreement.

Policy SD3 relates to the local centre to be provided within the site. This policy seeks to
control the form and scale of the local centre, which would be situated around the Rusper
Road junctions, to ensure that retail elements do not adversely impact upon footfall to
Horsham town centre, and to ensure appropriate facilities to serve the new community.
Policy 43 seeks to encourage new and improved community facilities or services,
particularly where these meet identified local needs.

The first criteria of Policy SD3 states that retail provision of no more than 6,000 sgm of
sales floorspace, together with other appropriate local shopping facilities will be included,
subject to it being demonstrated that there would not be a significant adverse impact on
Horsham town centre. The NPPF seeks to locate ‘town centre uses’ to existing centres,
edge of centre locations and then out of centre locations, through a sequential approach.
However, the NPPF also goes on to state, at paragraph 26, that an impact assessment for
larger scale retail uses should be required when an application seeks retail uses outside of
a town centre and not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan (Officer emphasis).

The application proposes a total of 6,400 sgm of retail floorspace (Use Class Al). Of this,
4,900 sgm is shown as food retail floorspace (anticipated to be broken into two stores of
3,400 sgm and 1,500 sgm) plus 1,500 sgm of local retail units. This level of larger scale
and local level shopping facilities accords with Policy SD3, provided that it is demonstrated
that there would not be any significantly adverse impact upon Horsham town centre.

The applicant has submitted a Retail Statement to consider the potential impact of the
proposed retail provision. The Retail Statement refers to the Council’s Horsham Retail
Needs Study (HRNS) of June 2010, which concludes that there is a capacity for up to
11,604 sgm of additional convenience goods floorspace across the District up to 2026, not
accounting for population growth arising from strategic growth areas, including the
application site. The Retail Statement also contends that there is a food retail deficiency to
the north of Horsham, with three small convenience stores (all under 1,000 sgm) and no
facilities suitable for a main food shop. In addition the submitted Statement indicates that
the proposed retail provision at Land North of Horsham would be likely to lead to an
estimated 3.5% impact on Horsham town centre in 2021, reducing to 3.1% by 2026.

Given that the provision of retail (i.e. a town centre use) floorspace is allowed for within

Policy SD3 of the HDPF, there is no requirement for the proposal to meet the sequential
test for town centre uses located outside of town centres, as set out in the NPPF. However,

Page 60



6.104

6.105

6.106

6.107

6.108

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Policy SD3 does require a demonstration that the up to 6,000 sgm of retail floorspace, plus
local shopping facilities, would not significantly impact upon Horsham town centre. The
proposed level of facilities (at 4,900 sgm for food retail and 1,500 sqm for local shops)
meets the requirement of Policy SD3 and the detail contained within the Retail Statement
shows that there are existing convenience goods deficiencies in the District and that the
total provisions proposed would not lead to a significantly detrimental impact on the town
centre. It is therefore considered that the proposed retail aspects of the local centre are
appropriate and acceptable.

The local centre is also indicated to provide 300 sgm of floorspace for professional and
financial services (Use Class A2) and 400 sgm for restaurants (Use Class A3). Horsham
and Mid Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG) have commented that they
either wish to be provided with a site and building for healthcare facilities of up to 2,000
sgm, or an equivalent financial contribution to provide or improve healthcare facilities within
the locality. The applicant has set aside the appropriate space for such a facility adjacent to
the local centre and the provision of either the building or contributions will be secured
through the legal agreement, in consultation with the CCG. The proposal therefore accords
with the second criteria of Policy SD3.

A multi-use community centre is also proposed. The details of space to be provided here
and its proposed uses would be controlled through the legal agreement, however, it is
noted that the Sussex Police & Crime Commissioner seeks to utilise some space at such a
facility for neighbourhood level policing. It is also considered that this facility could be
utilised by a number of local community and amenity groups. Whilst the specific details for
this facility will come forward at the detailed design stage, it is considered that its broad
location, overall form and specification can be appropriately controlled through the legal
agreement to ensure compliance with the third aspect of Policy SD3 and the requirements
of Policy 43 of the HDPF.

Policy SD8 requires an appropriate provision of educational facilities to serve the
development to be provided. This includes early years provision, primary schools, a
secondary school and expansion land, sixth form education and special educational needs
(SEN) facilities. The policy goes on to state that the ‘the developer will be expected to
make land available for the facilities and meet the capital cost of construction of the primary
school, early year's and Special Educational Needs provision.’ The application proposes
the provision of early years facilities, a 2FE primary school and 43% of a 6FE secondary
school across a campus site towards the centre of the development, with additional
expansion land adjoining this. Land and a contribution for a second 1FE primary school,
with additional early years provision, within the later western part of the site is also
proposed. A financial contribution of around £1.9M is proposed towards Sixth Form
education, which would be allocated to The College of Richard Collyer.

Although Policy SD8 requires the provision of a SEN school for up to 60 children to be
provided, further discussions with West Sussex County Council, as Local Education
Authority, during the consideration of this application, have established that a proportionate
contribution towards SEN provision is appropriate. This results from an agreed assessment
that the Land North of Horsham development would not, in itself, generate a need for a 60
place SEN school. The contribution will be used towards on-site provision within the larger
campus site.

The recent government announcement that the Horsham area has been approved for a
new free school, may alter the funding arrangements for secondary education provision
across the site. At this stage the full details of this funding is unknown and therefore a
range of measures to ensure that the above facilities are appropriately provided for as a
result of the development will be secured through the legal agreement. Should funding for
a free school be available from government, the developer would be required to make the
contribution to the Education Funding Agency rather than the County Council. Similarly, if

Page 61



6.109

6.110

6.111

6.112

6.113

6.114

6.115

6.116

6.117

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

funding from the developer is not required to the same extent, due to government funding
arrangements, then an equivalent contribution will be required towards other community
benefits, including affordable housing provision, across the development. Each of these
possible funding arrangements will be accounted for and secured through the legal
agreement.

The level of educational provision proposed is considered to be appropriate to meet the
needs that are anticipated to arise from the proposed development and would accord with
the principles of Policies SD1 and SD8.

Environmental Issues

The NPPF states, at paragraph 109, that the planning system should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment by preventing both new and existing
development from contributing to, or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being
adversely affected by unacceptable levels of sail, air, water or noise pollution or land
instability; and by remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated
and unstable land, where appropriate. This is reiterated in Policy 24 of the HDPF, which
confirms that developments will be expected to minimise exposure to, and the emission of,
pollutants including, noise, odour, air and light pollution.

The NPPF goes on to state, at paragraphs 121 and 122, that planning decisions should
ensure that the site is suitable for its new use, taking account of ground conditions and land
stability and any proposals for mitigation. Following any remediation, the site should (as a
minimum) not be capable of being determined as contaminated land under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 and adequate site investigation information, prepared
by a competent person, should be presented. In determining proposals, Local Planning
Authorities ‘should focus on whether the development itself is an acceptable use of the
land, and the impact of the use, rather than the control of processes or emissions
themselves where these are subject to approval under pollution control regimes.’

The application site largely compromises of open fields, which have historically been used
as farmland or pasture. There are defined uses peppered throughout the development for
residential or small scale commercial uses.

Contamination

The application has been supported by a preliminary risk assessment to deal with any
potential contamination issues arising from the site.

The Council's Environmental Health Officer has advised that the site has not been
designated as having any defined contaminated land and raises no objection to the
development on these grounds, due to the submission of additional information by the
applicant.

The information submitted to support the application is considered to be at an appropriate
level and to have been carried out by competent persons and therefore it is considered that
the potential for contamination across the site has been duly investigated at this outline
stage.

Further investigations and remediation strategies, where they may be necessary, are
controlled by satisfactorily worded conditions, requiring further information to be provided
prior to the commencement of each relevant sub-phase.

Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would accord with the
requirements of the NPPF and Policy 24 of the HDPF.

Page 62



6.118

6.119

6.120

6.121

6.122

6.123

6.124

6.125

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Noise, air quality and odour

The application has been supported by information on these matters as part of the
comprehensive Environmental Statement.

In terms of air quality and odour, it is acknowledged that due to the increase in traffic, the
proposed development will have an impact on these matters. This is to be addressed
through the provision of on-site mitigation measures, which are to be worked up and
agreed at the relevant sub-phase of the development. This will ensure that the impact is
addressed on site where possible. It is also noted that it is not possible to mitigate all of the
impact and as such, and in accordance with the Council’'s ‘Planning Advice Document: Air
Quiality & Emissions Reduction Guidance’ that a financial contribution is also secured to
monitor and, if necessary, mitigate the impact of the scheme outside of the site boundaries.

The layout of the proposed development means that residential parcels of land are not
located adjacent to existing roads, and that there are landscape buffers between these.
That said, as part of the Reserved Matters submissions additional mitigation measures to
protect against noise would be considered at that stage, when the precise relationship
between the proposed built form of the development and any noise sources are known.

In terms of noise and vibration, air quality, dust and odour arising from the construction and
implementation phases of the development, these impacts are well known and are likely to
relate to site levelling, clearance, excavation, construction, road laying, and the associated
traffic arising from such activities.

In order to mitigate these impacts, and ensure there is no harm caused to existing, and
proposed (when the development is part complete) residents, conditions will require the
submission of an overarching Construction Environmental Management Plan for the
development as a whole and then details of how each phase and/or sub-phase will be
constructed in accordance with this plan. This will ensure the impact is considered at each
level, and will be different depending upon the phase and level of development that has
already taken place.

Drainage

The majority of the site, and all of the residential parcels, lie within Flood Zone 1, which is
land with the lowest probability of flooding. An area categorised as Flood Zone 2 and 3 lies
within the eastern part of the site, around Chennells Brook. This area includes the area of
Bush Copse ancient woodland and the proposed open land of the sports hub.

No built development is proposed within Flood Zone 3. Residential development is
considered to be appropriate development within Flood Zone 1, as established in the
Technical Guidance to the NPPF. The applicant has submitted a Flood Risk Assessment
(FRA) as part of the Environmental Statement and supplemented this with a further
Technical Note, submitted in March 2017. The Technical Note seeks to address initial
concerns raised by the Environment Agency regarding allowances for climate change and
culvert blockages.

Policy 38 of the HDPF requires that development proposals follow a sequential approach to
flood risk management, giving priority to development sites with the lowest risk of flooding
and making required development safe without increasing flood risk elsewhere. Similarly,
the NPPF states, at paragraph 103, that local planning authorities should ensure that flood
risk is not increased elsewhere. The HDPF Examination Inspector notes, in his final report
at paragraph 66, that ‘the allocated area is large enough to provide for the suggested
amount of development without recourse to those areas liable to flood, which could be kept
as open space and small nature reserves'.

Page 63



6.126

6.127

6.128

6.129

6.130

6.131

6.132

6.133

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

The most recently submitted Technical Note from the applicant shows that all built
development would be contained within Flood Zone 1, including use of an updated climate
change allowance of 45% (previously reviewed at 30%). The Environment Agency has now
advised that they raise no objection to the principle of the development and are satisfied
with the conclusions of the Technical Note in relation to climate change allowances and
allowances for blockage scenarios. The proposed development would not increase run-off
rates over existing greenfield rates and would not therefore lead to any increase in flood
risk elsewhere.

The applicant’s submitted Drainage Strategy indicates that the development will utilise a
Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) to manage both on and off-site flood risk through
design and topography. The SuDS will incorporate a number of attenuation measures,
including basins and ponds, to ensure that surface water from the site is both attenuated to
be released an appropriate speed and filtered to assist water quality. In relation to foul
sewerage, the applicant proposes the use of pumping stations where necessary to lower
peak flows.

The Council's Drainage Engineer raises no overall objections to the proposed development
and recommends that an appropriate SuDS, and its on-going maintenance, can be
ensured through a specific condition on any approval. Southern Water do not object to the
development, but advise that existing infrastructure, including water supply, does not have
sufficient capacity to cater for the needs of the development. The developer will be required
to ensure sufficient capacity for both supply and sewerage under the Water Industry Act
1991, outside of the planning process.

It is considered that the proposed development can be appropriately controlled, through
conditions and the legal agreement, to ensure that the site is adequately drained, that the
implemented SuDS are sensitively landscaped and satisfactorily maintained, and that there
is no increase in flood risk, on the site or elsewhere. It is therefore considered that the
proposed development is in accordance with both the NPPF and Policy 38 of the HDPF.

It is considered that the potential for noise and air pollution can be satisfactorily mitigated
by a Construction Environmental Management Plan (by condition) as well as a financial
contribution to air quality mitigation arising from the development itself. The impact on
individual occupiers will be considered in the details design stages for the reserved matters
submission of each sub-phase which will ensure that their amenity is adequately protected.
In addition, the applicant has demonstrated that there would be no undue flood risk
implications on site, and that sufficient on-site mitigation can be provided without having an
impact on flooding outside of the site.

Therefore the proposal accords with the requirements of the NPPF and Policies 24 and 38
of the HDPF.

Legal Obligations

In order to ensure that there are sufficient facilities, services and infrastructure capacity to
serve the proposed development and to ensure that all necessary works are delivered
there is a requirement to enter into a legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). This requirement is implicit in compliance with
Policy SD1 of the HDPF.

The legal agreement at the time of this report’s production is being discussed and drafted
by the applicant’s legal advisors and the Council and will, in brief, seek to secure the
following:

e Overall on site provision of 30% of housing for local needs, together with minimum and
maximum percentage of units within each residential sub phase.

Page 64



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Periodic review of development viability to identify potential underspends to be devoted

to increasing the percentage of affordable housing.

Contribution towards off-site sixth form education provision.

Contribution (land and capital cost) towards a 6FE secondary school and land further

future expansion.

Land and capital cost to build a 2FE primary school on combined campus site and a

1FE primary school to the western side of site.

Land and capital cost to accommodate 65 early years places within the primary

schools.

Provision of land and contribution towards SEN school places.

Details of management companies, their responsibilities, funding and ‘step in’

arrangements.

Library contribution as agreed with WSCC

Improvements by the applicant to the A264 Moorhead Roundabout (in accordance with

latest drawing).

Improvements by the applicant to A24 Hop Oast Roundabout (in accordance with

latest drawing).

Changes by the applicant to Rusper Road/Lemmington Road Roundabout (in

accordance with latest drawing).

Upgrades to Roffey Corner traffic signals if deemed necessary following monitoring

effect of development.

Changes to Crawley Road Roundabout (adjacent Horsham Volkswagen) (in

accordance with latest drawing).

Changes to Pondtail Drive/Pondtail Road (in accordance with latest drawing).

Surfacing /lighting improvements to the underpass below the A264 and the Riverside

Walk to the south of the A264, and to use reasonable endeavours to secure the

creation of a continuous route to Bartholomew Way.

Wimland Road emergency access to be provided to a standard and specification to be

agreed by the Local Highway Authority (LHA).

Contributions by the applicant to allow the LHA to improve the following:

1. A24/A264 Great Daux Roundabout.

2. A264 Bewbush Manor Roundabout.

3.  Traffic Regulation Order to enable the reduction of the speed limit along the
A264 between Great Daux and Moorhead Roundabouts.

Monitoring, at the applicants expense, any increase in traffic using the rural lanes to

the north of the development, to include Langhurstwood Road, Old Holbrook and

Rusper Road. In the event that monitoring indicates any significant increase in traffic

movements, the applicant shall provide suitable proportionate measures to resolve

development related impacts.

Monitoring of traffic growth on Tower Road and Faygate Lane, including the operation

of Faygate Roundabout. In the event that monitoring indicates it necessary and in

agreement with the LHA the applicant shall either implement works shown on the latest

drawing or make a contribution towards a highway improvement scheme to the

equivalent cost of those works.

Monitoring of pedestrian crossing demands at Old Holbrook (to commence annually

from the first occupation of the 100" dwelling within Phase 3). Subject to the results of

the monitoring the LHA will then determine whether pedestrian crossing improvements

are needed at Old Holbrook.

Monitoring of parking demands in and around the vicinity of Littlehaven Station. In the

event that monitoring indicates increased demand for parking the applicant shall

contribute towards the cost of reasonably proportionate and relevant measures to

mitigate any resultant highway safety issue arising from the development.

The provision by the applicants of a bus service via an appropriate subsidy or by an

alternative means to provide a minimum service during hours to be agreed of two

services per hour to serve each and every phase of the development following the

Page 65



6.134

6.135

6.136

6.137

6.138

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

occupation of an agreed level of residential development and or employment
floorspace.

e The implementation of phase specific public travel plans prior to submission of any
application for approval of reserved matters for any part of that phase of development,
to include the business park and the schools to be established on site.

e Contribution to monitor and if necessary mitigate the effect of development on air
quality,

e Delivery of phases of the business park linked to occupation of residential dwellings.

e The provision, at the applicant’'s expense, either by contribution or by physical
construction of a medical centre being at least 2000 sq metres gross internal area, to
an agreed specification.

e The provision, at the applicant’s expense, of a community centre/hall to a minimum
size and specification.

e The provision of an appropriate number and quantum, in accordance with the
approved parameter plans, of informal and formal play spaces (to include NEAPs, a
LLAP, MUGAs, open-access ball courts).

e The provision of sports pitches to a specification to be agreed with the Council within
the sports hub as shown the approved master plan and parameter plans.

e The provision of a sports changing room and pavilion to an agreed specification at the
sports hub. Provision of land for allotments adjacent to Wimlands Road and near
Langhurstwood Road as defined on the adopted master plan to an agreed
specification.

e Provision of youth activity areas to a specification to be agreed to provide facilities for a
skate park and mountain bike trail.

e Provision of and specification and management details of nature conservation areas as
depicted on the approved master plan and parameter plans.

e Payment to the Council of a contribution towards providing off site indoor sports
facilities.

o Safeguarding of land from alternative development for a railway station and associated
parking as depicted on agreed drawing.

e Safeguarding of land for the planned Cemetery from alternative development, unless
consistent with and of a temporary nature as depicted on the approved master plan.

e Provision of a contribution towards local policing infrastructure to ensure sufficient
policing at a neighbourhood level.

A list of Heads of Terms is attached to this report at Appendix 1.
Summary and conclusion

It is acknowledged that a significant number of representations have been received in
relation to this proposed development. These have been reviewed and considered in detalil
and where relevant to material planning considerations they have been reflected within the
detail of this report.

The allocation of the site for a mixed use development to accommodate at least 2,500
homes, a business park, leisure and community facilities and associated infrastructure and
the strategic importance of this site in delivering the identified 5 year supply of housing land
to meet the objectively assessed needs for the District, means that the principle of
development on this site is acceptable.

It is considered that the overall quantum of development, residential, commercial and
community uses, will also fit within the confines of the site, as has been demonstrated
through the submitted information and parameter plans.

The mix of dwelling sizes, forms and densities indicated at this outline stage, would be
appropriate with regard to the housing needs of the District. Furthermore, whilst the

Page 66



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

provision of affordable housing would be lower than the target level set out in Policy 15 of
the HDPF, this policy allows for an assessment of the development’s viability in order to
determine the appropriate level of provision. The viability of the scheme has been
independently assessed and it is considered that the 30% level of housing for local needs,
is both reasonable and appropriate, particularly given the government’s intention to
broaden the scope of the affordable housing definition.

6.139 Whilst it is acknowledged that the development would alter the character of the application
site, including historic parkscapes and, to a degree, the setting of heritage assets, the site
is well contained within the wider landscape and makes considerable land available to
provide effective screening and buffer areas to the surrounding areas, including to the rural
edge to the north of the site.

6.140 In addition, although the development, in this outline form, has been assessed as having a
‘less than substantial’ impact upon the setting of nearby heritage assets, it is considered
that the great weight to be applied to this impact is outweighed by the significant benefit of
delivering both residential and commercial development, for which there is a clear and
evidenced need across the District. Furthermore, the relationship between the built form of
the development and the nearby heritage assets will be assessed in full detail at the
Reserved Matters stage, when specifics of location, orientation, design, screening and
separation can all be controlled. In these respects it is considered that the development
would accord with the NPPF and Policy 34 of the HDPF.

6.141 The proposed development provides an appropriate level of leisure and recreational
facilities and a welcome overprovision of informal open and amenity space throughout the
development. In addition, the applicant states that the form of the development shall be of
a high quality and this can be ensured through the requirement for character areas and
masterplanning through conditions and at the Reserved Matters stage.

6.142 Significant on and off-site highway works are to be delivered to ensure appropriate capacity
on the local highway network to serve the development, together with the provision of or
contributions towards educational infrastructure to meet the needs of the predicted
additional population that will arise from the development. These aspects, along with those
above, will be secured through conditions or the s106 legal agreement to ensure
compliance with the NPPF and Policies SD1, SD5, SD6, SD8 and SD9 of the HDPF.

6.143 As the application is outline in form at this stage it is accepted that the development can be
satisfactorily controlled through either appropriate conditions or the consideration of
detailed design matters at forthcoming Reserved Matters stages, to ensure that there are
no adverse impacts upon local ecology, drainage and environmental considerations.

6.144 The site is identified within the HDPF as an allocation for a mixed use development
comprises at least 2,500 homes. The proposal would therefore be in accordance with the
adopted Development Plan and can be considered sustainable development, as required
by the NPPF.

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To delegate the application for approval to the Director of Planning, Economic
Development and Property, in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Planning
Committee (North) subject to a Legal Agreement to secure the details as set out in the
attached Heads of Terms and appropriate conditions. Both the Legal Agreement and
planning conditions may be added to, removed or varied.

Suggested conditions:

Page 67



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Approved Plans and Documents Condition
Time Limit

Details relating to the layout, scale, appearance, means of access and landscaping
associated therewith (hereafter called the Reserved Matters) for each phase of the
development (or part thereof) shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority before that phase of the development (or part thereof) is commenced.

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to
comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Applications for the approval of reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning
Authority before the expiration of 12years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to
comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of 3 years
from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of 2 years from the date of
approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later.

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to
comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Strategy and Design

No development shall commence until a Phasing Plan covering the entirety of the site and
detailing the timing, and sub-phasing, of the works to be carried out in each Phase of
development on the site has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved Phasing Plan and timing unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to control the development in detail in the interests
of amenity and visual impact and in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District
Planning Framework (2015).

A) No development shall commence until a Site Wide Design Strategy has been
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The Site Wide
Design Strategy shall demonstrate how the development will comply with the design
principles set out in the Design and Access Statement (prepared by Liberty, March
2017), including details of individual character areas, placemaking objectives, indicative
layout, mix, materials and finishes.

B) Each Reserved Matters application shall be accompanied by a design document
which demonstrates how the Reserved Matters application is in compliance with the
approved Site Wide Design Strategy (hereafter called the Compliance Design
Documents).

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to control the development in detail in the
interests of amenity and visual impact and in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham
District Planning Framework (2015).

Construction Requirements

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Site Wide
Design Strategy and Compliance Design Documents.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to control the development in detail in the
interests of amenity and visual impact and in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham
District Planning Framework (2015).

Page 68



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

8. A) No development shall commence until an overarching Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) for the entire site has been submitted to and approved, in
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. This overarching CEMP shall demonstrate general
compliance with the list below.

B) Each Reserved Matters application shall be accompanied by a detailed CEMP which
shall demonstrate compliance with the approved overarching CEMP document with
specific details of all elements listed below.

C) Prior to the commencement of each construction access a detailed CEMP relating to
that specific access shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. This detailed CEMP shall demonstrate compliance with the approved
overarching CEMP document with specific details of all elements listed below:
(a) the phased programme of demolition and construction works;
(b) the anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used during
construction,
(c) the method of access during construction
(d) the routing of vehicles during construction
(e) the provision made for the parking of vehicles by contractors, site operatives
and visitors,
(f) the loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste,
(g) the storage of plant and materials used in construction of the development,
(h) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding,
(i) the location of any site huts/cabins/offices,
(i) the provision of road sweepers, wheel washing facilities and the type, details of
operation and location of other works required to mitigate the impact of construction
upon the public highway (including the provision of temporary Traffic Regulation
Orders),
(k) details of public engagement both prior to and during construction works,
including a named person to be appointed by the applicant to deal with complaints
who shall be available on site and contact details made known to all relevant
parties,
() measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, to include
where relevant sheeting of loads, covering and dampening down stockpiles and
restriction of vehicle speeds on haul roads. A dust management plan should form
part of the CEMP which includes routine dust monitoring at the site boundary with
actions to be taken when conducting dust generating activities if weather conditions
are adverse,
(m) measures to control the emission of noise during construction,
(n) details of all proposed external lighting to be used during construction and
measures used to limit the disturbance of any lighting required. Lighting shall be
used only for security and safety,
(o) appropriate storage of fuel and chemicals, in bunded tanks or suitably paved
areas,
(p) measures to reduce air pollution during construction including turning off vehicle
engines when not in use, plant servicing and transport reduction,
(q) waste management including prohibiting burning of construction waste,
(r) measures to prevent the discharge of water or other substances to ground or
surface waters without the prior written approval of the Environment Agency,
(s) measures to be taken in the event of emergency spillages.

The Construction Environmental Management Plan documents shall demonstrate how the
construction site management, including the above criteria, will be implemented in
accordance with the agreed Phasing Plan unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority.

Page 69



10.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Thereafter the approved CEMP documents shall be implemented and adhered to
throughout the entire construction period.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental in order to consider the potential impacts on the
amenity of the surrounding environment and residents during construction and in
accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No development shall commence nor any plant, machinery or equipment brought onto the
site within any sub-phase until an Ecological Construction Management Plan (ECMP),
comprising a schedule of management measures and accompanying plans for that sub-
phase has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.
The ECMP shall be prepared in accordance with the approved Ecological Mitigation and
Management Plan (EMMP) prepared by Bioscan (December 2016) and include a plan
showing in detail existing hedgerows and trees. Thereafter the approved ECMP shall be
implemented and adhered to throughout the entire construction period unless any
alternative is agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The ECMP shall provide
details of the following:

(a) full details of wildlife buffers and protective fencing to be erected around all
retained hedgerows and planted areas. The buffer areas shall be undisturbed at all
times during the construction period and the fencing shall be retained until all
equipment, machinery, surplus materials and soil have been removed from the site,
(b) specifications of protective and construction fencing to ensure suitability for
wildlife,

(c) ecological and environmental safeguards for any works required within the
buffer areas or to existing trees, hedges or vegetation, including details of timing of
works and any requirements for additional surveying or an ecological watching brief
on site during works,

(d) protection of all retained trees and hedges in accordance with BS5837:2012,

(e) details of how any lighting required for construction purposes will be designed
and installed to minimise disturbance to wildlife,

(f) management of the development area prior to works commencing to minimise
disturbance to wildlife,

(g) mitigation measures to be carried relating to each sett, roost, hedgerow and
reptile habitat,

(h) measures to mitigate the potential impact on local ecology including those set
out in chapter 12 of the Environmental Statement prepared by Liberty Property
Trust March 2017.

The Ecological Construction Management Plan shall demonstrate how the site will be
managed in accordance with the criteria set out above and shall be implemented in
accordance with the agreed Phasing Plan. All fencing and other protection measures shall
be maintained as agreed until all equipment, machinery, surplus materials and soil have
been removed from the site unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to safeguard the ecology and biodiversity of the
area in accordance with Policy SD6 and Policy 31 of the Horsham District Planning
Framework (2015).

Ecology

No development within each Phase, including any plant, machinery or equipment being
brought onto site, shall be commenced until details setting out how the conclusions and
recommendations set out in the approved Ecological Mitigation and Management Plan
(EMMP) contained in the Environmental Statement prepared by Bioscan December 2016
have been submitted to and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.
Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
The EMMP shall provide details of the following:

Page 70



11.

12.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

(a) full details of wildlife buffers and protective fencing to be erected around all
identified retained hedgerows and planted areas. The buffers and fencing shall
be retained at all time during development until all equipment, machinery,
surplus materials and soil has been removed from the site;

(b) ecological and environmental safeguards for any works required within the
buffer areas or to existing trees, hedges or vegetation, including details of timing
of works and any requirements for additional surveying or an ecological watching
brief on site during works,

(c) protection of all retained trees and hedges in accordance with BS5837:2012;
(d) details of how any lighting required during development will be installed to
minimise disturbance to wildlife;

(e) management of the development area prior to works commencing to
minimise disturbance to wildlife;

(f) mitigation measures to be carried relating to each sett, roost, hedgerow and
reptile habitat.

The EMMP shall demonstrate how the site will be managed in accordance with the
criteria set out above and shall be implemented in accordance with the agreed Phasing
Plan. All fencing and other protection measures shall be maintained as agreed until all
equipment, machinery, surplus materials and soil have been removed from the site
unless otherwise agreed in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to safeguard the ecology and biodiversity of the
area in accordance with Policy SD6 and Policy 31 of the Horsham District Planning
Framework (2015).

A) No development shall be commenced until an overarching Landscape and Ecological
Management Plan (LEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority. The LEMP shall establish the principals of how different areas of
open space will be managed and maintained within the site.

B) Prior to the commencement of each sub-phase a detailed LEMP shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall demonstrate
compliance with the approved overarching LEMP and shall include the following:

a. A description of ecological and landscape components within that Phase;

b. Details of how each component will be managed and maintained;

c. Details of maintenance operations including timing and frequency of when those
measures will be carried out;

d. Details of the parties / organisation who will manage and maintain the site, to
include a plan delineating the areas that they will be responsible for;

e. Measures setting out how the LEMP will comply with the EMMP included at
condition 12 above.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
LEMPs, including timing and phasing arrangements, unless otherwise agreed in writing,
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to safeguard the ecology and biodiversity of the
area in accordance with Policy SD6 and Policy 31 of the Horsham District Planning
Framework (2015).

No development within any sub-phase shall be commenced until up to date ecology survey
reports have been submitted to and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.
The surveys shall be completed by a suitably qualified ecologist, recognised by a relevant
professional body such as CIEEM and in accordance with current survey guidelines. The
survey reports shall include up to date information regarding the potential of the site to
support protected and notable species and measures to avoid, mitigate and compensate
for any identified impacts.

Page 71



13.

14.

15.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to safeguard the ecology and biodiversity of the
area in accordance with Policy SD6 and Policy 31 of the Horsham District Planning
Framework (2015) and in accordance with the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as
amended), Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended), The
Badger Act 1992, NERC Act 2006 and NPPF.

Any Reserved Matters application submitted for the western link road shall be
accompanied by a detailed ecological mitigation strategy which shall include and consider,
but shall not be limited to, dark corridors, cross sections, fencing and landscaping to guide
wildlife.

Reason: Any Reserved Matters application submitted for the western link road shall be
accompanied by a detailed ecological mitigation strategy which shall include and consider,
but not shall be limited to, dark corridors, cross sections, fencing and landscaping to guide
wildlife

Landscape

No development shall be commenced until a comprehensive Landscape Strategy for the
development has been submitted to and approved in writing, by the Local Planning
Authority. The Landscape Strategy shall set out the overarching landscape design
approach to the site and sustainable landscape construction principles to be followed for all
landscape proposals including details setting out how the approach and principles shall be
implemented on a phase or sub-phase basis. The Landscape Strategy shall include the
following:

a. Landscape design principle for green corridors, open spaces, streets, mews
and lanes, squares and car parking areas;

b. Sustainable design principles and themes for street trees, amenity,
naturalistic and native species, structural planting and wildflower seeding;

C. A site wide soil re-use and conservation strategy in accordance with codes
of landscape best practice;

d. Hard landscape palette for surfacing, fencing, walls, street furniture, lighting
columns/ lanterns;

e. Sustainable sourcing of hard and soft landscape materials;

—h

Approach to be adopted to equipped play areas to include opportunities for
provision of natural play features; and

g. The timing of provision of measures contained within the Landscape
Strategy.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
Landscape Strategy, including timing and phasing arrangements, unless otherwise agreed
in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development and in the interests of visual amenity and
nature conservation in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning
Framework (2015).

Each Reserved Matters application shall be accompanied by a scheme of landscaping
which shall be in accordance with the Landscape Strategy approved pursuant to condition
17 and shall include the following:

a. Location of existing trees, hedges, shrubs and other vegetation;

b. The layout and character of the proposed planting, together with a schedule of
planting species and a planting specification;

c. The layout and type of all hard landscape features, including paving, walls, fences
and street furniture;

d. Details of any earthworks proposed, including details of levels and contours to be
formed and representative cross/long-sections;

Page 72



16.

17.

18.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

e. Details of any water features (such as SuDS) including details of the size and
location of any such feature;
f. Timing of provision of the landscape features set out in a. to d. above.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
and timings unless otherwise agreed in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development and in the interests of visual amenity and
nature conservation, to avoid endangering the safe movement of aircraft and the operation
of Gatwick Airport through the attraction of birds and the increase of bird hazard risk at the
application site and to accord with Policy 33 and 40 of the Horsham District Planning
Framework (2015).

A) Prior to the first occupation (or use) of any part of the development hereby permitted, an
overarching landscape management plan (including long term design objectives,
management responsibilities, a description of landscape components, management
prescriptions and maintenance schedules) for communal landscape areas shall be
submitted to and approved, in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

B) Prior to the commencement of each phase or sub-phase a document shall be submitted
demonstrating how each phase or sub-phase is in compliance with the approved
overarching landscape management plan and shall include details of the landscape
components of that phase or sub-phase and an accompanying plan delineating areas of
responsibility. The landscape areas shall thereafter be managed and maintained in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development and in the interests of visual amenity and
nature conservation in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning
Framework (2015).

Prior to the commencement of each sub-phase details of the general layout and
specification for each area of open space associated with that sub-phase, as shown on the
phasing plan approved pursuant to condition X, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The areas of open space within each sub-phase
shall be implemented in accordance with a timetable approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development and in the interests of visual amenity and
nature conservation in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning
Framework (2015).

Tree Protection

No development shall commence within any phase or sub-phase, including demolition
pursuant to the permission granted, ground clearance, or bringing equipment, machinery or
materials onto the site, until the following preliminaries have been completed in the
sequence set out below:

- A plan shall be submitted to show all trees on the site to be retained as well as those
off-site whose root protection areas ingress into the site, such trees shall be fully
protected by tree protective fencing affixed to the ground in full accordance with section
6 of BS 5837 'Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction —
Recommendations' (2012).

- Once installed, the fencing shall be maintained during the course of the development

works for that phase or sub-phase and until all machinery and surplus materials have
been removed from the site.

Page 73



19.

20.

21.

22.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

- Areas so fenced off shall be treated as zones of prohibited access, and shall not be
used for the storage of materials, equipment or machinery in any circumstances. No
mixing of cement, concrete, or use of other materials or substances shall take place
within any tree protective zone, or close enough to such a zone that seepage or
displacement of those materials and substances could cause them to enter a zone.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure the successful and satisfactory retention

of important trees and hedgerows on the site in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham

District Planning Framework (2015).

No development shall commence within any phase or sub-phase, including demolition
pursuant to the permission granted, ground clearance, or bringing equipment, machinery or
materials onto the site, until a Arboricultural Method Statement relating to that phase or
sub-phase detailing measures to protect and retain trees to be retained on that site and
adjacent to the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. This shall provide for the long-term retention of the trees. The development shall
be implemented strictly in accordance with agreed details.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure the successful and satisfactory retention
of important trees and hedgerows on the site in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham
District Planning Framework (2015).

No trees, hedges or shrubs on the site, other than those the Local Planning Authority has
agreed to be felled as part of this permission, shall be wilfully damaged or uprooted,
felled/removed, topped or lopped without the prior written consent of the Local Planning
Authority until 5 years after completion of the development hereby permitted. Any trees,
hedges or shrubs on the site, whether within the tree protective areas or not, which die or
become damaged during the construction process shall be replaced with trees, hedging
plants or shrubs of a type, size and in positions agreed by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure the successful and satisfactory retention
of important trees and hedgerows on the site in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham
District Planning Framework (2015).

Drainage

A) No development shall be commenced until details of an overarching scheme to
demonstrate safe management of critical storm water storage across the site up to the 1 in
100 year storm event, plus 45% climate change allowance, have been submitted to and
approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the timing of
implementation of the scheme.

B) Each reserved matters application shall be accompanied by a document demonstrating
how it complies with the approved overarching scheme.

The critical storm water storage schemes shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details and timing unless otherwise agreed in writing, by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure that the development is properly drained
and to comply with Policy 38 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No development within a Phase or sub-phase shall be commenced until a foul water
drainage scheme for the phase or sub-phase has been submitted to and approved in
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The foul water drainage scheme shall include
plans and longitudinal sections of the main sewers with supporting calculations and
details of the proposed outfall, including the new wastewater treatment plant where
appropriate. The approved foul water drainage scheme shall be implemented for each
Phase unless otherwise agreed in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. No
development in that Phase shall be occupied until the foul water drainage system has
been carried out in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in

Page 74



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure that the development is properly
drained and to comply with Policy 38 of the Horsham District Planning Framework
(2015).

No development within any sub-phase shall be commenced until details of a surface
water drainage scheme, following the principle of SuDS, for that sub-phase have been
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter
development within that sub-phase shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details unless otherwise agreed in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. No
development in that sub-phase shall be occupied until the surface water drainage
system has been carried out in accordance with the approved details unless otherwise
agreed in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure that the development is properly
drained and to comply with Policy 38 of the Horsham District Planning Framework
(2015).

No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other than with the
express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts
of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to
controlled waters. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approval
details.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure that the development is properly drained
and to comply with Policy 38 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

A) Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby permitted, a SuDS
drainage strategy for the site, which shall include the SuDS basins and their catchment
areas, shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

B) Prior to the occupation of any part of the site within each SuDS catchment area
verification report demonstrating that the SuDS drainage system has been constructed in
accordance with the approved design drawings for that particular catchment area shall be
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a SuDS drainage system has been provided to an acceptable
standard to the reduce risk of flooding, to improve and protect water quality, improve
habitat and amenity, and ensure future maintenance in accordance Policies 35 and 38 of
the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No development within a Phase or sub-phase shall be occupied until details demonstrating
that adequate wastewater treatment facilities have been provided have been submitted to

and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure that the development is properly drained
and to comply with Policy 38 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Contamination

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be permitted
other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be
given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant
unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure that any pollution is dealt with in
accordance with Policies 24 and 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Page 75



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

28. Prior to the commencement of each phase or sub-phase the following components of a
scheme to deal with the risks associated with the contamination of the site shall be
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

29.

30.

(@)

A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:

e All previous uses

e Potential contaminants associated with those uses

¢ A conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors
e Potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site

(b) A site investigation scheme based on (a) to provide information for a detailed

(c)

(d)

assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected including those off
site.

The site investigation results and the details risk assessment (a and b) and,
based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full
details of the remediation measures required and how they are to be
undertaken.

A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in (c) are complete and identifying any
requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance
and arrangements for contingency action.

Any changes to these components require the express consent of the Local Planning

Authori

ty. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure that any pollution is dealt with in
accordance with Policies 24 and 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

A verification report shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning

Authori

ty prior to the first occupation of any dwelling within a phase or sub-phase of the

development. The verification report shall:

1.

2.
3.

Demonstrate the completion of the works set out in the approved remediation
strategy.

Demonstrate the effectiveness of the remediation strategy.

Include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with the
approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have
been met.

The plan for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and
arrangements for contingency action (i.e. a long-term monitoring and maintenance
plan) as identified in the verification plan, and for the reporting of this to the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure that any pollution is dealt with in
accordance with Policies 24 and 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

In the event that unsuspected contamination is found at any time during development, it
must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation
and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of (1)

below,

and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in

accordance with the requirements of (2) below. The development hereby permitted shall
not be occupied unless and until approval is granted for the verification report.

(1)

A site investigation shall be carried out by a competent person to fully and
effectively characterise the nature and extent of any land and/or groundwater
contamination, and its implications. The site investigation shall not be
commenced until:
- A desk-top study has been completed, satisfying the requirements of the
Local Planning Authority.
- The requirements of the Local Planning Authority for site investigations
have been fully established, and

Page 76



31.

32.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

- The extent and methodology have been agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority. Two full copies of a report on the completed site
investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority without
delay upon completion.

(2) A written method statement for the remediation of land and/or groundwater
contamination affecting the site shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority prior to commencement, and all requirements shall be implemented
and completed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority by a competent
person. No deviation shall be made from this scheme without the express
written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. Two full copies of a
verification report confirming the objectives, methods, results and conclusions of
all remediation works shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

(NB: the above requirements shall be carried out in accordance with DEFRA and the
Environment Agency's Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination,
CLR11.)

Reason: As this matter is fundamental to ensure that any pollution is dealt with in
accordance with Policies 24 and 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Highways

No development within any Phase shall commence until details of the following have been
submitted to and approved in writing, by the Local Planning Authority:

a. The principle of the highway hierarchy and internal access arrangements;

b. The principles of pedestrian, cycle and equestrian movements through the site;

c. Construction traffic routes and associated signage; and

d. Access arrangements and visibility splays to individual development parcels and

vision splays to individual buildings.

Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No access to the site shall be implemented other than in accordance with the following
plans and details and unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning
Authority:

- Langhurstwood Road Roundabout (Drawing No. 25216-5506-010D)
- Highway Mitigation scheme East to West Corridor (Drawing No 25216/5506/008B)
- Old Holbrook Crossroads (Drawing No. 25216-5506-007B)
- Western A264/Langhurstwood Road Access (Drawing Nos. 25216-5506-0026 and
25216-5506-100-001F)
- Central A264/Rusper Road Access (Drawing Nos. 25216-5506-0027 and 25216-
5506-100-002C)
- A264 Left-in, Left-out Access (Drawing Nos. 25216-5506-0028 and 25216-5506-100-
010A)
- Rusper Road Roundabout (Drawing Nos. 25216-5506-0029 and 25216-5506-100-
021E)
- Wimland Road Emergency Access (Drawing Nos. 25216-5506-012B)
- A264/Western Site Access, Langhurstwood Road and Pondtail Road Bus Gate
(Drawing No. 25216-5506-100-020)
- Rusper Road Traffic Calming (Drawing No. 25216-5506-100-032)
- Langhurstwood Road Roundabout (Drawing No. 25216-5006-033)
Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Page 77



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Notwithstanding the details shown on drawing no. 2153A-103P (Movement and Access:
Parameter Plan) and other parameter plans, no development will be undertaken to
construct the road dashed blue running north/south through Bush Copse Ancient
Woodland, between the two roundabouts along the primary road.

Reason: To preserve the Ancient Woodland in the historic and ecological environment and
in accordance with Policies 31 and 34 of the Horsham District Planning Framework:
November 2015.

No development shall be occupied until the works at Rusper Road Roundabout and
Central A264 Rusper Road Signalised Roundabout have been constructed in accordance
with the details shown on drawing nos. 25216/5506/100/021E and 2516/5506/100/002C
unless otherwise agreed in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No development within Phase 1 (to be confirmed) shall be occupied until the pedestrian
and cyclists bridge has been completed in accordance with the details shown on drawing
no. 25216/5506/100/037 unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No development within Phase 2 (to be confirmed) shall be occupied until the access works
at the A264 Eastern Signalised junction and Wimlands Road have been completed in
accordance with the details shown on drawing nos. 25216/5506/100/010A and
25216/5506/012B unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

The Wimland Road access shall be used by emergency services, pedestrians and cyclists
and for no other purpose (including construction and construction delivery vehicles) unless
otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No development within Phase 3 (to be confirmed) shall be occupied until the access works
at the A264 Western Signalised Roundabout and Langhurstwood Road Roundabout have
been completed in accordance with the details shown on drawing nos.
25216/5506/100/001F and 25216/5506/100/033 unless otherwise agreed in writing, by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

The vehicular link between Phases 1 and 3 (to be confirmed) shall not be brought into use
until the highway improvement works to the Old Holbrook Crossroads have been
completed in accordance with the details shown on drawing no. 25216/5506/007B unless
otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Each reserved matters application shall be accompanied by plans and a document
demonstrating the number and location of car, motorcycle and cycle parking spaces to
serve that phase or sub-phase. The details shall be in accordance with the parking
strategy set out in the Transport Statement (prepared by Peter Brett and dated July
2016). The car, motorcycle and cycle parking spaces shall be provided in accordance
with the approved details prior to the occupation of each dwelling to which they serve,

Page 78



41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

and permanently retained for those purposes at all times thereafter unless otherwise
agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with
Policy 40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No development within a Phase or sub-phase shall be commenced until details of how
Public Rights of Way to be retained within that Phase or sub-phase shall be improved with
regard to surfacing, drainage and lighting. The details shall include a timetable for the
completion of the improvement works. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details and timetable unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

A) No development shall commence until an overarching Green Travel Plan for the entire
site demonstrating compliance with the principles set out in West Sussex County
Council’'s Draft Travel Plan Policy (or as subsequently revised) and the Framework Travel
Plan accompanying the Transport Assessment submitted in support of this application has
been submitted to and approved, in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This
overarching Green travel plan shall demonstrate general compliance with the list below.

B)Each Reserved Matters application shall be accompanied by a detailed Green Travel
Plan which shall demonstrate compliance with the approved overarching Green Travel Plan
document with specific details of all elements listed below.
The Green Travel Plans shall include:

- objectives and targets for promoting sustainable travel;

- appointment and funding of a Travel Plan Coordinator;

- details of an annual monitoring and review process;

- details of annual reporting to the Local Highway Authority;

- means of funding the Travel Plan; and

- an implementation timetable including the responsible body for each action.
Thereafter the Green Travel Plan shall be implemented in accordance with the measures
contained in the Green Travel Plan including approved monitoring unless otherwise agreed
in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To encourage and promote sustainable transport and in accordance with Policy
40 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No development within residential phase 2 (to be confirmed) shall be occupied until
completion of the highway improvement works on drawing no. 25216/5506/019C unless
otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the M23 and A23 Trunk Road continue to be an effective part of the
national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with Section 10 of the Highways
Act 1980 and to satisfy reasonable road safety requirements.

Heritage

No development within a Phase or sub-phase shall be commenced until a programme of
archaeological work following the principles set out in Chapter 13 of the Environmental
Statement prepared by Liberty Property Trust and dated July 2016 has been secured in
accordance with a Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation which has been
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental as the site is of archaeological significance and it is
important that it is recorded by excavation before it is destroyed by development in
accordance with Policy 34 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

No development within each phase or sub-phase shall be commenced until the
archaeological site investigation and post investigation assessment has been completed in

Page 79



Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation approved
pursuant to condition and that provision for analysis, publication and dissemination of
results and archive deposition has been secured and approved by the Local Planning
Authority in writing.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental as the site is of archaeological significance and it is
important that it is recorded by excavation before it is destroyed by development in
accordance with Policy 34 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

46. No development above slab level shall be carried out to the phase or sub-phase containing
Grayland Copse until a Conservation Management Plan for Grayland Copse Scheduled
Monument and interpretive material for the Scheduled Monument, including a timetable for
the implementation of measures, has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details and timetable unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: As this matter is fundamental as the site is of archaeological significance and it is
important that it is recorded by excavation before it is destroyed by development in
accordance with Policy 34 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

47. No development above slab level shall be carried out to the phase or sub-phase adjacent
to the ‘Castle’ moated site Scheduled Monument (situated 500m ESE of Hawkesbourne
Farm) until a written Heritage Asset Mitigation Strategy for this phase or sub-phase of
development has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in
writing. The strategy shall include details of the intended mitigation of the impact of the
development on the Heritage Asset, including but not limited to:

a. Details of proposed measures for enhancement (improved access) and
interpretation of the Scheduled Monument; and
b.  Atimetable for the implementation of measures.
Reason: As this matter is fundamental as the site is of archaeological significance and it is
important that it is recorded by excavation before it is destroyed by development in
accordance with Policy 34 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

48. No development above slab level shall be carried out to the phase or sub-phase adjacent
the Motte and Bailey Castle Scheduled Monument (situated north of Chennells Brook
Farm) until a written Heritage Asset Mitigation Strategy for this phase or sub-phase of
development has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority in
writing. The strategy shall include details of the intended mitigation of the impact of the
development on the Heritage Asset, including but not limited to:

a. Details of proposed measures for enhancement (improved access) and
interpretation of the Scheduled Monument; and
b.  Atimetable for the implementation of measures.
Reason: As this matter is fundamental as the site is of archaeological significance and it is
important that it is recorded by excavation before it is destroyed by development in
accordance with Policy 34 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Lighting

49. No development within a phase or sub-phase shall be commenced until details of street
lighting, footway or footpath or other lighting serving public areas, including a timetable for
implementation and how the lighting strategy has been designed to minimise disturbance
to ecology on and around the site, including bats, and the North Weald AONB ‘dark skies’
has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter
the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and timetable
unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and in accordance with Policy 33 of
the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Page 80



50.

51.

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

No development of the Sports Hub shall commence until details of the ambient light levels
of surrounding vegetation at night to demonstrate existing baseline light levels have been
submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and in accordance with Policy 33 of
the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

The Sports Hub shall not be brought into use until details of a scheme and measures to
ensure lighting serving the same does not impact harmfully on the ability of the surrounding
vegetation to provide ecological habitat, has been submitted to and approved, in writing, by
the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall include;

a. include provision for further measurements to be carried out following the
implementation and operation of any proposed lighting;

b. the placement of baffles where necessary and any additional measures necessary
to obtain lighting levels satisfactory to the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter the development shall be operated in accordance with the approved measures
unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and in accordance with Policy 33 of
the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

INFORMATIVES

A.

A formal application to requisition water infrastructure is required in order to service this
development. Please contact Southern water, Sparrowgrove House, Sparrowgrove,
Otterbourne , Hampshire SO21 2SW

Follow the risk management framework provided in CLR11, Model Procedures for the
Management of Land Contamination, when dealing with land affected by contamination.

Refer to the Environment Agency Guiding principles for land contamination for the type of
information that is required in order to assess risks to controlled waters from the site. The
Local Authority can advise on risk to other receptors, such as human health.

Refer to the contaminated land pages on GOV.UK for more information.

Network Rail strongly recommends the developer contacts Network
Rail Asset Protection London South East

at AssetProtectionsussex@networkrail.co.uk prior to any works
commencing on site adjacent to the Horsham — Crawley link railway,
and also to agree an Asset Protection Agreement with us to enable
approval of detailed works. More information can also be obtained from
our website at www.networkrail.co.uk/aspx/1538.aspx.

The scope of the bat surveys must be agreed with the Local Planning Authority at least 4
months in advance of the survey season, and may include advanced surveys for example
for rare bat species, if considered necessary by a suitably qualified ecologist. The surveys
must be completed in accordance with the agreed scope, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Background Papers: DC/16/1677

Page 81


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/land-contamination-technical-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/contaminated-land
mailto:AssetProtectionsussex@networkrail.co.uk
http://www.networkrail.co.uk/aspx/1538.aspx

28 abed

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Appendix 1: DC/16/1677 — Land North of Horsham s106 Heads of Terms

Area of Obligation | Obligation Description/Quantity
Open Space MUGAs Multi Use Games Areas — (0.5 ha)
NEAPs Neighbourhood Equipped Areas of Plan — 3 across the site at least 1.07
ha including buffers
LLAP Landscaped Local Area of Play — minimum 0.09 ha

Formal sports pitches

3.66 ha including Natural Turf Pitches and 3G football pitch

Youth Activity Facility

0.45 ha including bike track, skate park and kick about areas

Open Access Ball Courts

0.15 ha

Indoor Sports Contribution

£1.1m

Allotments

1.32ha (to east and west)

Greenspace Amenity

Minimum 3.12 ha

Greenspace Natural

Minimum 15.01ha

Greenspace Parks

Minimum 8.76 ha

Community Centre

To be a minimum size and be built to an agreed specification

Sports changing
room/pavilion

Land of 0.8ha. Specification in line with FA design standards as set out in
Football Foundation Data Sheets for Changing Accommodation

Nature Conservation Areas

Specification and management details

Cemetery Land

10.0ha Safeguarding for a specified period, with the exception of a
suitable temporary use.

Housing for Local Affordable Rent 12.73%
Need
Shared Ownership 5.27%
Build to rent 7.27%
Discount Market Units 3.64%
Custom or Self Build 1.09%
Total housing for 30%

local need

Review mechanism

To ensure clawback of any uplift in value across the site, to be reviewed
every 5 years

Business Park

The provision of 46,450 square metres of business floorspace

The provision of specified areas of the business park, in a fully serviced
condition, linked to the occupation of a specified number of dwellings

Safeguarded
Land(Railway)

Safeguarding of railway station land and associated parking for a specified
period.




Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17
Appendix 1: DC/16/1677 — Land North of Horsham s106 Heads of Terms

Medical Centre Provision of medical centre on site of at least 2000 sgm or a financial
contribution to be used off-site (which would be used by occupiers of the
development site).

cq abed

Management Full details of their responsibilities, funding and ‘step in’ arrangements
company

Library Library contribution as agreed with WSCC

Education A £1.9m contribution towards post 16 education facilities off site (The

College of Richard Collyer).

A proportional contribution towards land and capital cost of a six form
entry secondary school (43%), phased in line with development need, or
the provision of such a facility with a proportionate contribution from West
Sussex County Council.

Land and capital cost to build a two form entry primary school on the
education campus site, and a one form entry primary school on the
western side of the site as, in line with the development need. The
provision of additional land for a fourth form of entry, should this be
required.

Land and capital cost to accommodate 65 early years places within the
two primary school buildings.

Provision of land for a Special Educational Needs school, at an
appropriate phase in the development with a proportionate contribution
towards the number of places arising from the development.

Air quality Contribution to monitor and if necessary mitigate effect of development on
air quality.
Sussex Police Contribution £117,690 towards:

Start up costs for 5 officers

Horsham fleet capacity

Three ANPR cameras

Increasing radio cover/control room capacity




78 abed

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Appendix 1: DC/16/1677 — Land North of Horsham s106 Heads of Terms

Increased on-site CCTV capacity.

Retail Provision

Provision of a minimum of 4,900 square metres.

Commercial Leisure
Facilities

1,900 square metres of space

Community A sum to be held should the management companies either fail or do not
Maintenance meet the required standards

Account

Highways Traffic signals Install traffic signals on existing roundabout — A264 Moorhead
Obligations Roundabout. Trigger 1,292 dwellings or 21,831sgm of employment

Alter timing of traffic signals at Roffey Corner. Trigger 1,375 dwellings and
23,225sgm of employment

Alter timing of traffic signals at Kings Road/Harwood Road Roundabout.
Trigger 2,200 dwellings and 37,160sgm of employment

Junctions

Additional approach and circulation lanes around A24 Hop Oast
Roundabout. Trigger 2,200 dwellings and 37,160sgm of employment

Increase in flare length/arm width at Rusper Road/Lemmington Road
Roundabout. Trigger 1,375 dwellings and 23,225sgm of employment

Crawley Road Roundabout. Trigger 2,200 dwellings and 37,160sgm of
employment

Increase width of Pondtail Drive arm to accommodate two way movement
of buses. Trigger Prior to occupation of any use within any phase or sub
phase forming Phase 3

WSCC Improvement Scheme at A24/A264 Great Daux Roundabout.
Trigger 1,237 dwellings and 20,900sgm of employment

WSCC Improvement Scheme A264 Bewbush Manor Roundabout. Trigger
1,787 dwellings and 30,192sgm of employment

Traffic Regulation Order

To enable a Traffic Regulation Order to enable the reduction of the speed
limit on the A264 between Great Daux and Moorhead Roundabout.
Trigger TBA, although this needs to be linked ideally to the various works
proposed on the A264

Underpass

Surfacing/lighting improvements to the underpass below the A264 and
Riverside Walk to the south of the A264. Trigger Needs to be linked to a
relevant sub phase of phase 2

Monitoring

Scheme to monitor the increase in traffic using the lanes to the north of




Gg abed

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17
Appendix 1: DC/16/1677 — Land North of Horsham s106 Heads of Terms

the development — rural lanes north of the site. In the event that
monitoring indicates an increase, the applicant shall propose suitably
proportionate measures to resolve any development related problems.

To monitor traffic growth on these two arms, and the impact upon the
operation of the Faygate Roundabout — Tower Road and Faygate Lane
arms of A264 Faygate Roundabout. If the monitoring determines it
necessary then in agreement with the LHA, the applicant shall either
implement the works as shown on drawing number 25216/5506/015B or
make a contribution towards a highways improvement scheme to the
equivalent cost of those works shown on the above drawing. Trigger 1,760
dwellings and 29,728sgm of employment

To monitor pedestrian crossing demands at Old Holbrook (to commence
in conjunction with Phase 3). Monitoring is to commence annually from
the first occupation of the 100th dwelling within Phase 3. Based on the
monitoring, it shall then be determined whether pedestrian crossing
improvements are needed at Old Holbrook. Trigger Monitoring is to
commence annually from the first occupation of the 100th dwelling within
Phase 3

The applicant shall monitor parking demands in and around Littlehaven
railway station. If monitoring indicates increased demands, the applicant
shall contribute towards the cost of reasonably, proportionate, and
relevant measures necessary to mitigate any resultant highway safety
issue.

Travel Plan

Trigger Varies as related to delivery of specific uses within the
development

Bus Subsidy Provision of a bus service via an appropriate subsidy or by an alternative
means to provide a minimum service during hours to be agreed of two
services per hour to serve each phase of the development.

Highways North of A264 on Rusper North of A264 Rusper Road Roundabout - Construction of new

infrastructure Road roundabout. This includes the provision of a signalised crossing over




9g abed

Appendix 1 - Committee Report 28/4/17

Appendix 1: DC/16/1677 — Land North of Horsham s106 Heads of Terms

secured by condition

Rusper Road. Trigger Prior to occupation of any use within any phase or
sub phase forming Phase 1

Rusper Road/A264

A264 Rusper Road Roundabout - Construction of new signalised
roundabout. Trigger Prior to occupation of any use within any phase or sub
phase forming Phase 1

Rusper Road/A264
pedestrian and cycle bridge

To the east of Rusper Road Roundabout. Delivery of new pedestrian and
cyclist bridge. Trigger Prior to occupation of any use within any phase or
sub phase forming Phase 1

Wimlands Road emergency
Access

Wimlands Road - New emergency, pedestrian, and cyclist access. Trigger
Prior to occupation of any use within any phase or sub phase forming
Phase 2

Langhurstwood Road/A264

A264 Langhurstwood Road Junction - Construction of new signalised
roundabout and bus gate onto Pondtail Drive. Trigger Prior to occupation
of any use within any phase or sub phase forming Phase 3

Langhurstwood/Mercer Road

Langhurstwood Road and Mercer Road - Construction of new signalised
roundabout and bus gate onto Pondtail Drive. Trigger Prior to occupation
of any use within any phase or sub phase forming Phase 3

Left in/Left Out on A264

Mid way between A264 Rusper Road and Moorhead Roundabouts - New
signalised left in, left out access on northbound A264. Trigger Prior to
occupation of any use within any phase or sub phase forming Phase 2 or
any phase of the Business Park

Old Holbrook Crossroads

Old Holbrook Crossroads - New access where development link road
crosses Old Holbrook. Trigger Prior to the link road between Phase 1 and
3 coming into first use.

M23 Junction 11

Mitigation to Junction 11 to ensure M23 and A23 continue to be an
effective part of the network by increasing the flare of the approach filter
lane




Appendix 2 — Addendum to Report dated 28™ April 2017

Horsham

District

Council

28 April 2017

RECOMMENDATION

ADDENDUM A

AMENDED RECOMMENDATON:

‘To delegate the application for approval to the Director of Planning, Economic
Development and Property, in consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Planning
Committee (North), the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee (South) and the
Cabinet Member for Planning & Development, subject to a Legal Agreement to secure the
details as set out in the attached Heads of Terms and appropriate conditions. Both the
Legal Agreement and planning conditions may be added to, removed or varied.’

OUTCOME OF CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

3.9.1 HDC -Economic e
Development .

3.9.2 HDC - Air Quality

Strong support for the proposal.

The proposed business park is a key element of the emerging

Economic Strategy offering an excellent opportunity to

increase skilled, higher paid jobs in the District.

Timing of delivery must be secured to ensure the business

park comes forward.

The branding and identity of the business park should be

secured through the Reserved Matters application.

Proposal presents opportunities to assist home based and

micro businesses.

Links to the Town Centre must be secured including a new

entry sign and information points.

The S106 should seek to secure:

- Opportunities for apprenticeships and work experience
placements relating to construction;

- Procurement opportunities advertised with local traders
and suppliers; and

- Job opportunities advertised locally.

No additional comments to make. The issue of the phasing of

the business park is still to be addressed.

The development would be classified as a ‘Major’ proposal
through the Horsham District Council Planning Advice
Document: Air Quality & Emissions Reduction Guidance and a
quantitative air quality assessment is therefore needed (this
should focus on the Horsham Gates area of North Street).
Concern that the traffic flow data appears inaccurate in terms
of where traffic arising from the development is likely to be
directed.

Page 87



3.31.1

3.31.2

3.31.3

Appendix 2 — Addendum to Report dated 28™ April 2017

e There is some uncertainty over the calculation of the required
contribution arising from the traffic flow data.

e Both an operation and construction phase mitigation plan are
required.

OUTSIDE AGENCIES

Letters of representation received from the following organisations are summarised here
separately for clarity.

CPRE Objection to the planning application. Main concerns include:
(Campaign to 1. Inadequate provision of affordable housing, and not policy
Protect Rural compliant.

England) — 2. Inadequate consideration for biodiversity and ecology.
Sussex Branch Lack of appropriate surveys and mitigation proposals.

o  Supplementary representation to the previous objection.
Concerns are:

1. Results obtained by the applicant’s Integrated
Magnetometry and Fieldwalking Survey are not sufficient
to identify areas of particular archaeological interest or
sensitivity.

2. LIDAR data should be used to find and identify
archaeological features North of Horsham.

3. Determination as to whether there are archaeological
features in the area of Ancient Woodland that could be
destroyed or damaged by road construction.

4. Potential for presence of Romano-British settlements and
activity on this site should not be underestimated.

e Further objection. 30% offer for affordable housing (AH) is not
policy compliant (policy 16 requires 35%). This would result in
a shortfall of 137 affordable homes. The applicant proposes
that 5% of the AH will be conditional on the performance of the
business park; therefore there may be less than 30%. The
Objectively Assessed Needs for the District will not be met if
this development provides less than 35% AH. This site was
included in the HDPF on the understanding it would provide

35% AH.
Horsham HTCP neither object nor support the planning application. Main
Town reasons for comment include:
Community o HTCP welcome the inclusion of the Riverside Walk project
Partnership team in discussions relating to this planning application.

¢ Rather than the installation of a new footbridge over the A264
the HTCP would rather see improvements to the existing
PRoW pathway running alongside the A264 and railway line.

o If a footbridge is installed, a better location would be on the
A264 section near Wimland Road.

The Horsham  Objection to the planning application. Main concerns and reasons
Society for objection include:
e The principle of the development.
o Lack of clarity on what the development will offer.
e Lack of consideration for retention of ancient
woodland/hedgerows. The proposed road through Bush
Copse should be rerouted to avoid destruction of the

Page 88



Appendix 2 — Addendum to Report dated 28™ April 2017

woodland.

Inadequate consideration and assessment of wildlife habitats.
Mitigation only covers selected species.

The Environmental Assessment is far from acceptable and is
challengeable.

Wildlife corridors need to be created and enhanced, with a
funded management plan.

The A264 is a dividing line; more thought is needed on how
the site will integrate with the existing town.

A speed restriction of 40mph will impact on traffic flow.
Proposed footbridge is unsightly, and will not aid pedestrians
and cyclists. Underpasses should be included instead.
Route for waste recycling vehicles through the new
development will be dangerous and will pose a health risk.
The parkway station is not guaranteed, and an existing station
is likely to be closed as a result.

Impact on traffic on A24 is unknown.

The design and layout of the proposed commercial/business
space is unknown, so comment cannot be passed on its
quality. Take up of these units will be slow, and dependant on
railway station/Gatwick expansion.

Inclusion of a major supermarket will encourage out-of-town
shopping — harming the existing town centre, and increasing
traffic on A264.

Little information about leisure facilities.

It is not clear that the Education offer is compliant with HDPF
policies.

Healthcare provision is not clear.

Insufficient affordable housing offer (not policy compliant).
35% must be achieved. The AH contribution should be
secured in the s106 to ensure it is enforceable.

CIL — no CIL contribution is offered. How will the council fund
required ‘off site’ infrastructure?

Plot references on the Phasing Plans and the Framework
Plan-Development are different which is confusing.
Clarification is required.

A statutory Design Panel should be appointed to monitor
design of the development.

The density plans are confusing. High density development
near the A264 will reveal the undesirable intensity of the
development.

The proposed road at Morris Farm should be re-routed.

No account taken of the West Sussex Strategy for Walking
and Cycling.

Few routes for cycling are indicated on the Movement and
Access Plan.

Further Objection received. Main concerns include:

No justification for loss of Ancient Woodland

Inadequate number of proposed road crossings to link the
development to the existing town. An underpass should be
included.

No footbridge design. HS would like to be involved with the
design of this feature.

The method of allocation and design of each building parcel is

Page 89



Appendix 2 — Addendum to Report dated 28™ April 2017

unclear.
A Design Panel should be set up for the development.

¢ No further information is available on Landscape Management
Companies.

o Affordable Housing offer remains too low.
HDC should re-assess the decision not to require a CIL
contribution.

PUBLIC CONSULTATIONS

3.38.1 A total of 91 letters of representation objecting to the development have been received
along with 25 letters of representation which neither object nor support the proposal. The
comments raised within these letters are summarised within the main report.

PLANNING ASSESSMENTS
Transport Issues
6.22 CORRECTION - Replace first bullet point with:

o ‘A new roundabout where the re-aligned Langhurstwood Road meets the A264. This
will be a signalised, multi modal junction, including a prioritised bus link into the
development from the south and at grade pedestrian and cycle links into the
development.’

RECOMMENDATIONS

7.2 Since the publication of the main report a few alterations and additions are proposed to
some of the suggested conditions. In relation to time limits, it is proposed to break these
down such that the submission of details for Reserved Matters applications and the
commencement of the main phases are controlled (see Conditions 3 and 4 below).

7.3 Given that the application site spans a number of different land ownerships, further
conditions and obligations are proposed to ensure that all of the land is appropriately
bound into the Legal Agreement at the appropriate time. This will ensure that the provisions
of the Agreement are secured and that infrastructure costs are appropriately shared across
the development to safeguard a timely delivery of approved details and phases.

Suggested conditions:

Time Limit

3. Applications for the approval of all of the Reserved Matters for all phases of the
development shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration of 12
years from the date of this permission and shall be made in respect of the following phases
before the expiration of the following timescales:

o Phase 1: within 2 years from the date of this permission
o Phase 2: within 5 years from the date of this permission
o Phase 3: within 10 years from the date of this permission

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to
comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

4. The development hereby permitted shall be begun in accordance with the following:

) Phase 1 of the development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the
expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of 2

Page 90



52.

53.

54.

Appendix 2 — Addendum to Report dated 28™ April 2017

years from the date of approval of the last of the Reserved Matters to be approved
in respect of Phase 1 of the development, whichever is the later.

o Phase 2 of the development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the
expiration of 7 years from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of 2
years from the date of approval of the last of the Reserved Matters to be approved
in respect of Phase 2 of the development, whichever is the later.

o Phase 3 of the development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the
expiration of 12 years from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of 2
years from the date of approval of the last of the Reserved Matters to be approved
in respect of Phase 3 of the development, whichever is the later.

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to

comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Land Ownership & S106
Further conditions and obligations to be included covering:

No development shall commence within a relevant sub-phase under the Planning
Permission unless and until all parties with a legal or equitable interest in the land forming
part of the relevant sub-phase, as identified on the approved Phasing Plan (“a Third
Party”), have been satisfactorily joined as parties to the S106 Agreement.

Reason: To satisfactorily secure the necessary infrastructure and other S106 Agreement
requirements for the development in accordance with the NPPF and Policies SD5, SD6,
SD7, SD8, SD9 and 39 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

The development within each sub-phase under the Planning Permission shall be fully
carried out and completed prior to development commencing on a further sub-phase
unless:

¢ an amended Phasing Plan has been approved accordingly; and

e unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Council, satisfactory public road access and
all mains services have been provided to the edge of the boundary of any part of the
relevant sub-phase where any Third Party land has not yet been joined into the S106
Agreement, subject to an agreement (which the Developer shall use reasonable
endeavours to achieve) with the relevant Third Party in respect of appropriate cost
sharing in relation to overall S106/equivalent infrastructure costs and any other
appropriate costs sharing in relation to the overall Development.

Reason: To satisfactorily secure the necessary infrastructure and other S106 requirements

for the development in accordance with the NPPF and Policies SD5, SD6, SD7, SD8, SD9

and 39 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

In respect of land comprising the following title numbers: WSX200825, WSX65325,
WSX63427, WSX205794, WSX87009 and WSX201293 (“Third Party Developer Land”), no
works shall be carried out on the Third Party Developer Land under the Planning
Permission unless and until all parties with a legal or equitable interest in the Third Party
Developer Land have satisfactorily entered into a cost sharing agreement with those
owners (or their successors in title) of land which is bound by the terms of the s106
Agreement and satisfactory evidence of such agreement has been provided to the Local
Planning Authority. Such cost sharing agreement shall address overall S106/equivalent
infrastructure costs sharing and any other appropriate costs sharing in relation to the
overall Development.

Reason: To satisfactorily secure the necessary infrastructure and other S106 requirements
for the development in accordance with the NPPF and Policies SD5, SD6, SD7, SD8, SD9
and 39 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).

Page 91



Appendix 2 — Addendum to Report dated 28™ April 2017

Contact Officer: Helen Lowe Tel: 01403 215187

Page 92



Appendix 3 — Addendum to Report of 28" April 2017 (91" May 2017)

Horsham

District ADDENDUM B
Council

2214 May 2017

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Further to the Committee discussion of this application, the following section seeks
to provide additional information and details to assist in considering the points
raised by Planning Committee (North). There are also two points of correction.

TRANSPORT AND HIGHWAYS

The proposed improvement works to the Langhurstwood Road / A264 junction
were discussed. It is proposed to close the existing left in/left out Langhurstwood
Road junction and to create a four arm signalised roundabout in a position to the
east of its current alignment. The proposed roundabout would create an improved
junction in terms of safety and access onto Langhurstwood Road, over the current
situation, particularly for heavy goods vehicles (i.e. those serving the waste
services site). In addition, as a signalised junction, the new roundabout will enable
the provision of an ‘at grade’ pedestrian/cycle crossing from the development site
linking to Pondtail Drive.

Policy SD9 of the HDPF requires a number of transport infrastructure
improvements to be brought forward as part of the development of the Land North
of Horsham site. This policy requires, at point 6., that the existing Langhurstwood
Road junction with the A264 be closed and a new junction created in the form of a
roundabout. The proposal therefore accords with this policy and also allows for
increased connectivity between the site and the existing settlement of Horsham,
through the creation of a new crossing.

Notwithstanding the above and the approved policy to close Langhurstwood Road,
the developer has agreed to consider the concerns raised by some Members and
to provide an update on whether other options for this junction are possible. This is
likely to be reported at the Council meeting.

In terms of crossings of the A264, the development will create the aforementioned
Langhurstwood Road crossing, another ‘at grade’ crossing at the proposed
signalised Rusper Road / A264 roundabout, a pedestrian and cycle bridge over the
A264 adjacent to the Rusper Road roundabout, and the existing railway underpass
will be improved with a new cycle route proposed to connect with the existing
Public Rights of Way network. These proposed crossings will significantly improve
the current level of connectivity across the A264 and provide opportunities for
pedestrians and cyclists to safely cross the A264 and continue into Horsham, or
elsewhere, along the most likely desire lines for movements.

In addition to the crossings of the A264, the proposed development will provide
within its internal layout, footpaths and cycleways adjacent to the primary roads that

Page 93



1.6

1.7

20

2.1

2.2

Appendix 3 — Addendum to Report of 28" April 2017 (91" May 2017)

will lead around the development, and a number of greenways through the site.
These will link up to existing routes outside of the site, including the Riverside Walk.
The development has also been designed to allow for connectivity to Horsham
through a bus service. Whilst the operation of such a service is ultimately a
commercial decision for a bus service operator, the layout of the site and the
proposed junctions with the A264 will allow for a bus route through the site and
linking up with Horsham town centre. The fourth arm from the proposed
Langhurstwood Road roundabout would allow for bus only access to Pondtail
Drive, which has been assessed and considered by the County Highways
Authority, as suitable and satisfactory to accommodate a bus service.

The applicants have agreed to provide a scheme to monitor future vehicular
movements through the village of Rusper and to develop and install, at the
applicants expense, traffic calming measures here if confirmed to be necessary.
Any scope of such measures would be separately consulted upon by the County
Council.

The proposed development is considered to have been designed to ensure that it is
appropriately, adequately and safely accessible both via motorised and non-
motorised forms of transport. Improvements to existing junctions are proposed
which will aid highway safety and allow for increased pedestrian and cycle
crossings of the A264, ensuring that the proposed development is linked to and
accessible from Horsham.

VIABILITY

The applicants submitted a viability assessment of the proposed development,
which has been subsequently reviewed by the Council’s appointed independent
specialist surveyors, Dixon Searle Partnership (DSP). It is acknowledged that
elements of the viability assessment, specifically sales revenues and costs, date
from prior to the submission of the application. However, reference to a fixed point
in time is common practice for undertaking viability assessments, in order to be
able to fix certain baseline figures. DSP are satisfied that the information submitted
is sufficient to be able to carry out a full appraisal of the scheme’s viability at this
stage. Whilst it is true that certain figures could be argued should be changed, the
viability assessment has to be considered ‘in the round’ and whether it is, on
balance, reasonable. DSP have advised that it is and that the affordable housing
has been pushed as far as can reasonably be expected. In order to ensure that any
future or on-going uplift in net return for the developer proportionately results in an
uplift in affordable housing provision (up to a full 35% provision) the Legal
Agreement will contain a review mechanism which will trigger a review of the
scheme’s viability at 5 yearly intervals (from the date of the original assessment)
throughout the development’s delivery.

During the consideration of the proposal, at application and pre-application stages,
Officers have argued for the overall level of housing for local needs (HFLN), and
specifically the traditional forms of affordable housing, to be increased. This has
resulted in a total provision of 30% HFLN, with 18% being split between affordable
rented and shared ownership properties, with the emphasis on rented. This is
considerably higher than first offered by the developer with the ‘traditional’
affordable housing offer increasing from 9.4% to 18%.:

Page 94



3.0

2.3

24

25

2.6

3.0

3.1

Appendix 3 — Addendum to Report of 28" April 2017 (91" May 2017)

SERVICES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

The development proposes the provision of land for two primary schools, a
secondary school, a special educational needs school and an early years facility. In
addition, the construction of the first primary school, part of the second primary
school, almost half of the secondary school and a proportion of the special
educational needs school are to be funded by the development. This is in
accordance with the requirements of Policy SD8 of the HDPF.

In terms of locating the schools within the site, the first primary school, secondary
school and early years facility are to be situated towards the centre of the
development site, just to the east of Rusper Road and adjacent to the new junction
of this road with the primary road running east/west through the development. This
location will allow for the early delivery of the school facility, as the strategic
infrastructure elements needed to access this location will be provided early on
within the construction period, and will also allow for ease of access for residents of
the new development, and those from elsewhere. This location for the main school
campus site is considered to be appropriate and desirable. The second primary
school would be delivered later on during the development stage in a location
further to the west.

Concerns have been raised regarding the potential for noise disturbance to existing
residents living to the south of the A264, resulting from additional vehicular
movements along this road. The noise assessment submitted as part of the
Environmental Statement considers that any potential increase in noise to these
properties arising from road traffic would be negligible. The Council’s
Environmental Health Officer has raised no objections to the development in this
regard. The potential for a noise fence/bund can be considered in detail at
Reserved Matters stage.

It is acknowledged that there is currently insufficient capacity with the local
sewerage network to accommodate the development proposed. However, the
requirement to address this falls upon the developer in conjunction with the
statutory undertaker and they will be required to make appropriate upgrades,
improvements and connections to ensure that the foul drainage from the
development can be appropriately and adequately accommodated within the
sewerage network. The applicant is aware that substantial drainage infrastructure
needs to be provided in order to meet the requirements imposed by Southern
Water, with this to include sewer upgrades, flow control replacements and
upgrading of the local treatment plant. These works will be controlled and ensured
under the Water Industry Act 1991 and carried out at the developer’s expense.

ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED
Since the application was reported to Planning Committee (North) on 28t April
2017, 3 No. further letters of representation have been received. Two of these

object to the development and one raises a query only. The objections can be
summarised as follows:

Page 95



Appendix 3 — Addendum to Report of 28" April 2017 (91" May 2017)

e There will be more traffic and the railway station won’t go ahead, as this
would slow trains to existing stations;

Parking problems in Horsham will be worsened,;

Unclear about proposed medical facilities;

Insufficient local employment opportunities;

Not enough affordable housing is proposed.

4.0 REPORT CORRECTIONS

5.1 At paragraph 6.133 it should be noted the development will also provide a post 16
education contribution for off-site provision.

5.2 At paragraph 6.9 of the Officers report it states, when referring to the housing for
local needs package ‘these types of unit reflect the wider affordable housing
definition currently being consulted on through the Housing White Paper.” Whilst
the Council has a requirement to identify suitable sites for self-build and the
Government is supportive of expanding the offer of private rent, these do not
currently sit within the draft definition of affordable housing as set out within the
Housing White Paper. They would however make a valuable contribution to the
local housing needs of the District in addition to the current offer of affordable
housing. The new Government may change the definitions again and so the focus
should remain on the ‘traditional’ affordable housing, which is only 18% but for the
reasons set out in the main report and above, is considered to be all that is viable.

The recommendation is set out in the Full Council Report

Contact Officer: Helen Lowe Tel: 01403 215187

Page 96



Appendix 4 - Letter from Liberty Property Trust

LIBERTY
PROPERTY
TRUST

For the attention of Chris Lyons - Director of Planning
Horsham District Council

Parkside

Chart Way

Horsham

West Sussex

RH12 1RL

9 May 2017

Dear Chris

Re: Land North of Horsham - Application Reference DC/16/1677.
Points of Clarifications following Planning Committee (North) on 28 April 2017.

Naturally we are disappointed that the Planning Committee (North) did not feel able on its own to accept the
recommendation of its officers.

As you know, our outline planning application has been interrogated and tested by the council and every relevant
statutory authority consulted. It has proven to be fit for purpose and the council's own expert viability
consultants confirmed that it represents a good deal for the district.

We hope that the development will be positively received at full Council on 22 May so as to not delay any longer
the delivery of much needed housing. Importantly, the outline application provides the foundations for future
detailed Reserved Matters applications, which we are committed to bringing forward in consultation with the
council and community to deliver the best possible development for the area.

A number of specific matters were raised at the meeting on 28 April and these are briefly set out below in order
to provide clarity that the application has adequately addressed those points.

Viability

Horsham District Council engaged the services of Dixon Searle Partnership (DSP), a specialist in viability
assessments, who agreed the format of the standard residual valuation model that Liberty and our consultant
Turner Morum prepared. This is a standard valuation model widely used for strategic developments to ensure it
fairly appraises the scheme. To be clear, there are no additional layers of cost associated with Liberty’s delivery

model as the valuation methodology is completely agnostic as to delivery methodology. Your officers and DSP can
confirm that.

Whilst the Viability Assessment is a snapshot in time, your officers and DSP pushed very hard for additional value
in all areas and, in particular, Housing for Local Needs (HFLN). In doing so the council has negotiated the HFLN
upwards from Liberty’s historical initial proposals of 20% to the conditional 30% (25% + 5%) to the final level of
30% ensuring that no element was contingent on business park delivery.

Liberty Property Trust UK Limited
The Control Tower, 29 Liberty Square, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent ME19 4RG
+44 (0)1732 870375 | libertyproperty.com

|ncorpopa' |ag71d Wales. Company Number 5340012, VAT Reg. No. 871 3506 28
Liberty Property Trust UK Limited is a subsidiary of Liberty Préperty Trust — Head Office: 500 Chesterfield Parkway, Malvern, PA 19355 USA



Appendix 4 - Letter from Liberty Property Trust

The final mix of housing (within the HFLN) matches the aspirations of emerging Government policy as set out in
the Housing White Paper designed to promote accessibility of housing to a much wider demographic.

Housing Policy 16 of the HDPF clearly acknowledges that the mix of housing types, sizes and tenures for each site
will depend on the viability of the scheme.

The Council are also requiring a review mechanism which will reassess the project periodically (every 5 years) with
a view to increasing housing for local needs in the event that there is an uplift in value across the site. This review
mechanism is in addition to the baseline provision of 30% HFLN, which the DSP report found to be a reasonable
level of provision given the quality of development to be delivered and the considerable site infrastructure costs.

Business Park

Concerns were raised by some Councillors regarding demand for the Business Park and the general confidence in
the office market.

North of Horsham is about positively supporting the future success and prosperity of the town and District for
many years to come. It will deliver much-needed new homes and schools, as well as attracting high value
businesses and jobs for the community.

We regularly take enquiries for office space from high quality businesses looking to relocate, however as many of
these businesses are reacting to their existing lease events, without the clarity of an outline planning consent we
cannot, as yet, make firm commitments on delivery. We do know, however, that a number of companies that
have recently taken large new offices in the Gatwick and Crawley areas would have considered the North
Horsham Business Park as an alternative had planning permission been in place.

Highways & Transportation

Langhurstwood Road junction

Considerable time was spent debating the highway developments proposed for Langhurstwood Road, which it is
important to note has been developed specifically in response to HDPF Policy SD9.6 which promotes; “Closure of
Langhurstwood Road left in / left out junction onto A264 and re-alignment of Langhurstwood Road to the east
with a new roundabout junction on the A264”.

The proposed highway scheme is fully compliant with Policy, and accepted by both WSCC and Highways England
but concerns over the intensity of use by HGV’s travelling to and from the waste facility to the north-west and
how that would impact on the residential community were raised by Members.

it should be noted that the only elements of the scheme that require detailed consent now are constrained to the
highway junction improvements as submitted. The internal estate roads are all subject to further consultation and
approval at reserved matters stage and councillors will have the opportunity to ensure the scheme design at that
time is appropriate which will include an indicative section through Langhurstwood Road within the residential
development that demonstrates how the heavy goods vehicles will be segregated from the residential streets and
open space, thus alleviating fears of direct conflict between pedestrians, cyclists and HGV traffic.

Liberty Property Trust UK Limited
The Control Tower, 29 Liberty Square, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent ME19 4RG
+44 (0)1732 870375 | libertyproperty.com

Incorporated in England and Wales. Company Number 5340012. VAT Reg. No. 871 3506 28
Liberty Property Trust UK Limited is a subsidiary o‘ﬁbﬁtgpépg\grust —Head Office: 500 Chesterfield Parkway, Malvern, PA 19355 USA



Appendix 4 - Letter from Liberty Property Trust

Traffic Modelling & Rusper Road

Rusper Parish Council are concerned that there may be a risk of increased traffic though the village of Rusper. In
response to this concern, a scheme of monitoring and traffic calming will be developed, at Liberty’s expense,
which as confirmed by WSCC will be subject of a separate statutory consultation process before they are agreed.
In addition, Liberty have attended regular meetings with Rusper Parish Council and will continue to do so
throughout the lifetime of the project.

A264 Crossings:

An existing but dangerous at grade PRoW exists to the east at FP1586 with the railway underpass FP3565
currently leading nowhere. An unofficial at grade crossing exists at Old Holbrook which is a very dangerous
crossing. The current situation provides little if any safe means of access along designated PRoW from the
development site across the A264.

The proposals submitted and agreed as appropriate with HDC Officers and WSCC will provide 4 safe crossing
options, including at grade signalised crossings at the new Langhurstwood Road and Rusper Road roundabouts,
along with a new footbridge at Rusper Road providing a choice of methods to cross the A264 by both pedestrians
and cyclists. The eastern railway underpass will be improved and will connect to FB1586 via a new cycle path,
discouraging the use of the uncontrolled crossing at FP1586 across the A264.

The footbridge has not yet been designed in detail and we have a great opportunity by way of an architectural
competition to come up with an award winning design, judged and selected by local Parish Councils and the
public.

The proposals have been agreed by WSCC as being appropriate, and they are all deliverable as they are entirely
within either land controlled by Liberty or within Highways Authority land.

Tunnelling under the A264 has been reviewed and due to extensive technical constraints has been discounted,
Factors that preclude underpasses from the proposals are physical landform, existing utility services, a risk of
flooding, anti-social risk, safety concerns and permanent lighting and maintenance burden. WSCC and HDC
Officers agree that tunnelling under the A264 is not an appropriate solution in this instance.

A264 Speed Reduction:

The junctions have been designed to reflect the existing speed limit on the A264. WSCC are supportive of a speed
reduction between Great Daux and Moorhead roundabouts. However, that will be the subject of a separate
consultation process and TRO, so cannot be assumed within the current design.

Bus Strategy:

Concerns over the proposed bus route through the designated bus gate at Pondtail Drive were raised. At this
stage, the bus route is a proposal and has been agreed in principle with the bus operator. The basic frequency
suggested by Metrobus would be 2 buses per hour with an aspirational service of 4 buses per hour. However, as
explained in the Addendum to the Transport Assessment, this is the proposed route only likely at completion of
the development when the western link road is complete, and so, for a considerable time, alternative routes will
be into and out of the development at Rusper Road. The final decision on the routing will be made by the
operator on commercial grounds and in consultation with WSCC.

Liberty Property Trust UK Limited
The Control Tower, 29 Liberty Square, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent ME19 4RG
+44 (0)1732 870375 | libertyproperty.com

Incorporated in England and Wales. Company Number 5340012. VAT Reg. No. 871 3506 28
Liberty Property Trust UK Limited is a subsidiary of Lib(]yagﬂéy g;g— Head Office: 500 Chesterfield Parkway, Malvern, PA 19355 USA



Appendix 4 - Letter from Liberty Property Trust

Cycling Strategy:

The Horsham District Cycle Forum felt a ‘cycle plan’ was missing; requested a ‘cycle review panel’ and wanted
more crossings over the A264, repeating the suggestion of underpasses.

Underpasses have been dealt with above.

The Access and Movement chapter of the DAS includes a plan at page 131 that clearly shows the proposed
pedestrian and cycle movement strategy, which includes cycle paths, bridleways and existing PRoW interlinking
across the development.

The primary access roads will have either on-carriageway cycle lanes, or combined footpath / cycle paths and the
new greenway links will allow excellent permeability throughout the development without having to integrate
with motor cars or other vehicles.

None of the internal roads or greenways form part of the detailed elements of the Outline application and will all
be the subject of further consultation when the Reserved Matters applications come forward. This will allow an
opportunity for the Cycle Forum to make detailed desigh comments.

Liberty are happy to continue to engage with the Cycle Forum to discuss practical (and deliverable) matters and
will be accepting of a Travel Plan condition as part of the outline consent.

Riverside Walk:

Liberty have met with the Horsham Town Community Partnership on a number of occasions specifically to discuss
the retention and enhancement of the Riverside Walk. There is a great opportunity to extend the Riverside Walk
to include the Nature Park, and Sports Hub, following the line of the rivers that make up Chennells Brook and
emerging at the A264 at the new footbridge providing a safe means of crossing. The Walk is further enhanced by
including the Motte & Bailey on the southern side of the A264 before re-joining the existing route at Lemmington
Way.

Whilst the Riverside Walk currently follows a PRoW along parts of Bush Lane, FP1586 and the railway underpass
FP3565, much of the route is not on a formal footpath and has been tolerated by the land owners. The new
development will allow us to formalise the route of the Riverside Walk and include an additional 1km alongside
the Chennells Brook. This is a substantial net gain to the community.

A24 & Impact on Warnham:

Warnham Parish Council have concerns over traffic impacts on the wider highway network. A number of traffic
calming measures have been identified by Warnham PC in partnership with WSCC as a result of housing
development to the West of Horsham (not North Horsham). The Parish Council also refer to existing problems on
the A24 and rural lanes citing high accident rates and rat running. The development of Land North of Horsham
cannot be required to mitigate existing highway issues that do not arise as a result of the development being
proposed (as this would be contrary to the CIL Regulations). Refer to Planning Committee report para 6.39.

Warnham PC identify accident ‘hot spots’ and feel that improved crossing facilities in a number of locations as a

consequence of the development would benefit the village. Liberty would be happy to have a planning condition
requiring monitoring of these locations and the application of funds to improve crossings if subsequently shown

to be appropriate.

Liberty Property Trust UK Limited
The Control Tower, 29 Liberty Square, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent ME19 4RG
+44 (0)1732 870375 | libertyproperty.com

Incorporated in England and Wales. Company Number 5340012, VAT Reg. No. 871 3506 28
Liberty Property Trust UK Limited is a subsidianﬁ&@é’riﬁaust —Head Office: 500 Chesterfield Parkway, Malvern, PA 19355 USA



Appendix 4 - Letter from Liberty Property Trust

Railway station:

As stated in the Committee Report at paragraph 6.41, the railway station does not form part of the outline
application, however the safeguarding of land for a station is included and the s106 Heads of Terms will detail
this.

It should be noted that there were no objections from Network Rail.

Community Infrastructure

There were references to ‘shortfalls within the s106’ and misunderstandings from many Councillors about what is
included in the s106 Heads of terms.

To be clear;
Education:

There was a suggestion that the secondary school was in the wrong location. This presumably refers back to pre-
public examination opinion when the decision to locate the secondary school at North Horsham was debated at
length. The location of a school on the North Horsham site is identified in Policy SD8 of the HDPF, and therefore
its delivery on this site is a key concept in the policy framework for North Horsham.

The location of the secondary school campus on the North Horsham site was discussed at length with the WSCC
Education team and the original location further to the east was amended to that as now shown on the HDPF
Concept Masterplan.

The more central location adjacent to Rusper Road, whilst being fully policy compliant, will allow for early delivery
within the first phase of development and is appropriate for ease of access to both existing and future residents.
The desire from WSCC is to have the school operational by September 2020 and any further delay will jeopardise
this objective.

Medical Centre:

The 5106 heads of Terms refer to a Medical Centre to be provided on site of at east 2000 sqm or a financial
contribution. Liberty have allowed for the requested contribution in the viability assessment.

We have an expression of interest from a local practice and have allocated a site for a new medical centre,
however we cannot progress further without outline planning consent.

Community Hall & Policing:

The 5106 heads of Terms refer to a Community Centre to be built to a minimum size and to an agreed
specification. Liberty have agreed to this.

Sussex Police have requested a contribution towards policing which Liberty have agreed to and we will explore
the provision of a multi-functional room within the Community Hall which can be used as a base for community
policing / PCSO’s.

Liberty Property Trust UK Limited
The Control Tower, 29 Liberty Square, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent ME19 4RG
+44 (0}1732 870375 | libertyproperty.com

Incorporated in England and Wales. Company Number 5340012. VAT Reg. No. 871 3506 28
Liberty Property Trust UK Limited is a subsidiary of Libpyérqéy ilﬂjl-lead Office: 500 Chesterfield Parkway, Malvern, PA 19355 USA



Appendix 4 - Letter from Liberty Property Trust

Construction Impacts

Noise & Air Quality:

There was a concern raised that the existing residential properties on the southern side of the A264 would suffer
from increased noise levels and a request for a condition requiring acoustic fencing was made.

Environmental Statement Chapter 16 - Noise & Vibration states at paragraph 16.7.15 that in relation to the
existing dwellings:

The results of the assessment show that the increase in noise levels due to road traffic would be classed as
negligible for all existing noise sensitive receptors and no mitigation measures are considered necessary.

Notwithstanding this, at the various public events, these concerns were raised by a number of residents south of
the A264. In response, we have allowed within the viability cost plan at line 6.10 for acoustic fencing to the south
of the A264 in a number of locations between Langhurstwood Road and Moorhead roundabout totalling 1400m.

6.10 | Noise Mitigation South of A264 (acoustic fence) :2352:;5;L}’t"°ffog’n"1"%°;head

350/m

Ancient Woodland:

All concerns have been fully addressed. HDC have included condition 33 to prevent an access road being
constructed through Bush Copse.

Ecology:

All concerns have been fully addressed. HDC have included numerous conditions to ensure appropriate surveys,
management plans and mitigation measures come forward with the Reserved Matters applications. The Council’s
Ecologist raises no objection to the scheme, subject to the imposition of these conditions.

Utilities:

Initial capacity assessments have been undertaken by Southern Water, Southern Gas Networks, UK Power
Networks and BT Openreach, all of whom have identified the need for off-site reinforcement to their strategic
networks. These allowances have been identified in the submitted Preliminary Foul Sewerage and Utilities
Assessment and included in the viability cost plan.

Sewage:

The following extracts from the Preliminary Foul Sewerage and Utilities Assessment identify the need for
significant off-site reinforcement works:

6.2.2 Southern Water's capacity study states that reinforcement of the existing sewers will be required in two
locations. The first requires the existing 400mm @ sewer (to the north of Channells Brook and east of Pondtail
Road) to be increased to a 525mm @ sewer over a length of 122m. The 9300mm g sewer (located in Kingfisher Way
and Old Millmeads) will also have to be upgraded to an 1800mm @ sewer over a length of 540m. In addition to
these sewer reinforcements, flow controls will also have to be replaced to control the release of increased foul
flows generated by the development.

Liberty Property Trust UK Limited
The Control Tower, 29 Liberty Square, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent ME19 4RG
+44 (0)1732 870375 | libertyproperty.com

Incorporated in England and Wales. Company Number 5340012. VAT Reg. No. 871 3506 28
Liberty Property Trust UK Limited is a subsidiarpféi'ﬁréPrjf@tgrust — Head Office: 500 Chesterfield Parkway, Malvern, PA 19355 USA



Appendix 4 - Letter from Liberty Property Trust

6.2.3 Following completion of upgrades to the existing network, connection can be made to the sewer in Pondtail
Road (manhole reference 6704). A new sewer will need to be constructed from the southern site boundary to this
manhole over a length of approximately 1km.

These are major works to upgrade the SW network including the local treatment plant to ensure the
accommodation of the sewerage from the proposed development, which any developer would be obliged to
undertake as is the case for Liberty on this project.

We trust the above clarifies that the points raised at committee have been adequately addressed within the
submitted outline application and remain committed to ensure that the development at North Horsham will be of
the highest quality that we will all be proud of.

Yours sincerely

erek Lloyd
Associate Director — Development

Liberty Property Trust UK Limited
The Control Tower, 29 Liberty Square, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent ME19 4RG
+44 (0)1732 870375 | libertyproperty.com

Incorporated in England and Wales. Company Number 5340012. VAT Reg. No. 871 3506 28
Liberty Property Trust UK Limited is a subsidiary of Libp(é'rggy Itf)glead Office: 500 Chesterfield Parkway, Malvern, PA 19355 USA



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Planning Application DC/16/1677 - Land North of Horsham Wards: Holbrook West, Rusper & Colgate, Holbrook East Applicant: Mr Derek Lloyd, Liberty Property Trust
	Appendix 1 - Committee report 28 04 2017
	Appendix 2 - Addendum A to Committee Report 28 04 2017
	Appendix 3 - Addendum B 22 05 2017
	Appendix 4 - Letter from Liberty Property Trust 9 05 2017




